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ABOUT THIS REPORT
Introduction

Dis-Chem has pleasure in presenting its first Integrated Report to its stakeholders since listing in
November 2016. We have a diverse Group of stakeholders including shareholders, employees,
customers, suppliers, government and society but our Integrated Report is aimed primarily at our
shareholders, who are the principal providers of financial capital, and the investor community locally
and abroad. While other stakeholder groups influence our business, most notably our customers
and employees, their needs and interests are addressed through other communications media.

Scope of the report

The scope of our Integrated Report includes material information relating to the Group’s business
model, strategy, material risks and related opportunities, financial and operational performance,
governance and social responsibility of the Group.
It covers the Group’s main operating segments, being Retail (retail stores of pharmaceuticals and
household items, e-commerce, corporate wellness clinics and courier services) and Wholesale
(wholesale of pharmaceuticals to Dis-Chem retail stores and independent pharmacies). Dis-Chem
predominately operates in South Africa, with only two stores in Namibia and therefore this report
focuses on operations in South Africa.
Where applicable, our report has been prepared in accordance with the King Code of Corporate
Governance (King III), the JSE Listings Requirements and the Companies Act and draws on the
international IR Framework of IIRC which was considered (but not adopted) in the preparation of the
Integrated Report. Financial information is reported in accordance with Internal Financial Reporting
Standards (IFRS).
With respect to comparability, all significant items are reported in a consistent manner if we had
prepared an integrated report in the prior year.

Content of the report

Our Integrated Report is our primary report to shareholders with the following content also available
on our website.
• Register documenting the assessment of the principles of King III
• Four year financial review

• Group and company audited annual financial statements and notes
(including independent auditors’ report and Audit and Risk Committee’s report)
• Year-end results presentation

• Notice to shareholders and proxy form

Materiality

Our Integrated Report aims to provide concise and material information on the Group’s strategy,
performance and prospects. The Board and management have used their judgement in determining
the issues that could substantively affect the Group’s ability to create and sustain value for our
stakeholders. In determining our material issues we have considered our top business as well as
operational risks identified through interaction with our stakeholders and consists of both financial
and non-financial risks.

Assurance

Dis-Chem applies a combined assurance model which seeks to optimise assurance obtained from
management and external assurance providers. The Group’s external auditor, Ernst & Young Inc.
(EY), has provided assurance on the annual financial statements and expressed an unmodified audit
opinion. EY has also reviewed the accuracy of the financial information extracted from the annual
financial statements that appears in the Integrated Report. PricewaterhouseCoopers (PwC) was
appointed as the internal audit providers to the Group in March 2017 and will provide additional
assurance in the years to come. Certain non-financial information has been provided from accredited
service providers, such as market share statistics.
The content of our Integrated Report has been reviewed by the Board and management but has not
been independently assured.
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THIS IS DIS-CHEM
LEADERSHIP

Directors’ approval

As part of the Board Charter, the Board is responsible for the integrity of our Integrated
Report and acknowledge this responsibility. The Board confirms that they have collectively
assessed the content of this report and approves it for release to its stakeholders.

Larry Nestadt
Independent Non-executive Chairman

Ivan Saltzman
Chief Executive Officer

Forward looking information

No assurance can be given that the forward-looking information will prove to be correct
and undue reliance should not be placed on such information. Factors that could cause
actual results to differ materially from those in the forward-looking information include,
but not limited to: global and local economic conditions; changes in legislations; changes
to International Financial Reporting Standards and interpretations; changes in trading
space; changes in working capital ratios and changes in margins achieved.
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SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

The Dis-Chem Group does not undertake to update or revise any of the forward-looking
information, whether to reflect new or future events and no liability is accepted by the
Dis-Chem Group whatsoever for any direct or consequential loss arising out of reliance
upon all or any part of the information contained in this report.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The Dis-Chem Integrated Report contains certain forward-looking information and
statements with respect to the financial condition and results of operations of the
Dis‑Chem Group. Dis-Chem Group has made every reasonable effort to ensure the
accuracy of the information in the report, but forward-looking information by their
very nature involve risk and uncertainty because they relate to events and depend on
circumstances that may occur in the future. Past performance is not indicative of future
results.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Audit and Risk Committee which has oversight responsibility for the Integrated Report,
recommended the report for approval to the Board. The Integrated Report was approved
by the Board on 23 June 2017 and signed on its behalf by:

2017 PERFORMANCE

Ivan Saltzman (CEO) and
Lynette Saltzman (MD) at the JSE
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OUR HISTORY
Dis‑Chem is a leading pharmacy group in South Africa, having been awarded South Africa’s favourite pharmacy
brand and #1 health and wellness brand by PMR.Africa. Dis‑Chem has a “Pharmacy First” approach, where its
customers can always depend on there being a pharmacist to serve their pharmaceutical needs whenever they
enter a Dis‑Chem store. In addition to pharmaceutical products and services, Dis‑Chem’s retail pharmacies also sell
personal care and beauty, healthcare and nutrition and baby care products as well as confectionary, dry grocery,
household and other ancillary products and services. As at 28 February 2017, Dis‑Chem had 108 stores in South
Africa and two stores in Namibia.
Dis‑Chem is also in the wholesale business of serving third parties and Dis‑Chem retail pharmacies through
CJ Distribution. Over time, Dis‑Chem intends to expand CJ Distribution’s operations whereby it would serve both
wholesalers and retailers.

Dis-Chem founded by
Ivan and Lynette Saltzman.
Mondeor was the first retail
pharmacy store opened

1978

1984

Second retail
pharmacy store
opened in
Randridge Mall

6

Dis-Chem expands its
offering to include nonpharmaceutical/front shop
products

1989

Dis-Chem launched its
loyalty programme

1997

Dis-Chem began selling
its own private label line
of non-pharmaceutical
products

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual
Integrated
Integrated
Report for
Report
the financial
for the financial
year ended
year 28
ended
March
282017
February 2017

2003

2004

First store in Cape
Town opened and
national store roll
out began

THIS IS DIS-CHEM
LEADERSHIP

Controlling stake in
CJ Group acquired; entry
into Wholesale business

Listed on the JSE with Ivan as CEO
and Lynette as Managing Director
September 2016
Acquisition of remaining stake in
CJ Group

2006

April 2016

Online shopping platform
introduced

2008

2013

2014

2016

First franchise store in
Namibia opened. Voted
best Pharmacy band by
Readers Digest South Africa

2017

June 2017
First Integrated Report
issued

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Partner store concept
conceived in which DisChem acquires majority
stake in independent
pharmacy and converts
to a Dis-Chem store

100th store opened

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Saltzmans established
the Dis-Chem Foundation,
which supports charitable
causes in South Africa

2017 PERFORMANCE

November 2016

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
DIS-CHEM
DIS-CHEM
PHARMACIES
PHARMACIES
Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017
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HIGHLIGHTS FOR 2017

FINANCIAL
CAPITAL

MANUFACTURED
CAPITAL

HUMAN
CAPITAL

TURNOVER
14.7%
TO R17.3 BILLION

OPENED
11 NEW STORES
INCREASING
STORE FOOTPRINT
TO 108

OVER 11 000
PERMANENT
EMPLOYEES

EBITDA
21.8%
TO R1.3 BILLION
OPERATING
PROFIT
24.3%
TO R1.1 BILLION
HEPS AT
74.7 CPS
(ADJUSTED HEPS
AT 69.2 CPS)
RETURN ON
EQUITY
AT 66.9%

OPENED
14 400 m2
DURBAN DC
INCREASED
DELMAS DC
BY 3 250 m2
15 693 m2
CAPE TOWN
DC BEING
COMPLETED
WHOLESALE PROVIDES
PRODUCTS TO
108 DIS-CHEM STORES
AND 525 INDEPENDENT
PHARMACIES

OVER 2 500
CASUAL
EMPLOYEES
76% OF
EMPLOYEES ARE BLACK
67% OF
EMPLOYEES
ARE WOMEN
406 EMPLOYEES
COMPLETED
LEARNERSHIP
AGREEMENTS
OVER R39 MILLION
SPENT ON TRAINING
AND EDUCATION

(BETWEEN APRIL 2016 AND MARCH
2017 PER SUBMISSION TO SETA)
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THIS IS DIS-CHEM
LEADERSHIP

NATURAL
CAPITAL

SOCIAL AND
RELATIONSHIP CAPITAL

LISTED ON
THE JSE IN
NOVEMBER 2016

1 734 TONS
OF RECYCLING

R157 MILLION
PAID BACK TO LOYALTY
PROGRAMME MEMBERS

GAINED MARKET
SHARE IN ALL KEY
CATEGORIES

VARIOUS SOCIAL
CAMPAIGNS
run by Dis-Chem
Foundation including:
Maintaining a food garden
which donates
fresh produce to
21 FEEDING SCHEMES
Sponsoring the
Western Cape Government’s
MOBILE HEALTH CLINIC

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

WHOLESALE CONTROL
OF OWN STORE STOCK
INCREASED TO 78%
FROM 70%

10 000 m2
OF CULTIVATED AREA
FOR FOOD GARDEN

OVER R15 MILLION
DONATED TO THE
DIS-CHEM
FOUNDATION

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

193 YEARS OF
RETAIL BUSINESS
EXPERIENCE
AMONGST
8 BOARD MEMBERS

ETHICAL WASTE
MANAGEMENT

2017 PERFORMANCE

INTELLECTUAL
CAPITAL

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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OUR BUSINESS MODEL
Our “Pharmacy First” approach, means that our customers can always depend on there being a pharmacist to serve
their pharmaceutical needs whenever they enter a Dis-Chem store. Our vision is to be the leading retail pharmacy
in South Africa.
We aim to continue growing our market share across our product offering by focusing on our customers and
building on Dis-Chem’s brand positioning. We strive to maintain our category leadership by always being
responsive to consumer preferences and trends, such as food and sport supplements, beauty salon products
and treatments.

INPUTS

BUSINESS ACTIVITIES

Financial Capital

Increase revenue and profitability through
expansion
•	Reinvested cash flow generated from
operations

•	Efficient systems, controls and process

Manufactured Capital

Retail and Wholesale structure through which we
sell our products

Destination format
with loyal customers
Our large product
range and pharmacyled approach drives our
customers loyalty

Operating
efficiency

Lean structure with industry
leading metrics

•	Focused retail stores across South Africa and
Namibia

•	Wholesale warehouses to facilitate delivery of
products across network

Significant
infrastructure

• 	Pharmacy first approach to stores

Human Capital

Invest in our biggest asset – our people

•	Appropriate skills in Retail and Wholesale
•	Training and development
• Over 13 500 employees

Intellectual Capital

BUSINESS
MODEL
Underpinned by
“Pharmacy First”
footfall and service

Lead through innovation (embracing technology
and market shifts)
•	Wholesale controls majority of own store
inventory

•	Effective IT solution and innovative offerings

Natural Capital

Our impact on the environment

•	Sustainable approach to supply

Social and Relationship Capital

Build and maintain relationships with stakeholders
and our commitment to social initiatives

Founder-led
Management Team

Significant
wholesale
opportunity
Ability to leverage existing
infrastructure to capture
extra volume and serve
independent pharmacies

Significant Long Term
Growth Opportunities

Expanding markets with yet
to mature stores. Ability to
We are entrepreneurial & have consolidate independents
a clear vision for the business.
market plus large
We have invested in our culture
whitespace opportunity
and have our interests aligned
with new shareholders

•	Engaging with stakeholders
• 	Being socially responsible

10

Well invested
infrastructure with
capacity to cater for
medium term store
expansion
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THIS IS DIS-CHEM

STRATEGY
Increasing Dis-Chem’s store footprint

Driving margins by leveraging Dis-Chem’s existing head office cost base
Expanding CJ Distribution
OUTPUTS

LEADERSHIP

Driving secondary retail opportunities through innovation

OUTCOMES

Financial Capital

•	Effective margin management

Shareholders

•	Turnover increased by 14.7%
•	EBITDA increased by 21.8%
•	Returns on equity at 66.9%

•	Adjusted headline earnings growth of 30.8%

Manufactured Capital

•	11 new stores opened

•	Warehouse space increased by 17 650m2
•	Invested R221 million in capex in FY17

•	Namibian footprint increased to two stores

•	Accredited training programme for
pharmacists and store managers
•	Low turnover of staff

•	Over R2 billion paid in employee benefits
•	67% of employees are women
•	76% of employees are black

Human Capital

•	3 901 employees trained from April 2016 to
March 2017

•	Remuneration policy in place with competitive
remuneration paid to employees

Intellectual Capital

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

•	Dis-Chem Direct (retail courier) growth

Employees
•	Skilled workforce able to deliver high quality
service

2017 PERFORMANCE

•	Cash flow generated from operations
amounted to R159 million

Customers

•	Click and Collect in every store

•	Continual improvement on private label

•	R157 million paid back to loyalty programme
members
•	Wide range of products that meet our
customers’ needs
•	All stores have pharmacies

Natural Capital

Government and society

•	Ethical waste management

•	R247 million paid in income taxes and R605
million in VAT and PAYE to SARS

•	Recycling of packaging

• 10 000 m2 of cultivated area for food garden

Social and Relationship Capital

•	Social campaigns run through Dis-Chem
Foundation

•	Social campaigns run include maintaining a
food garden that donates fresh produce to
21 feeding schemes and sponsoring Western
Cape Government’s mobile health clinic
•	Broadening access to healthcare through
108 stores and 212 store clinics
•	104 bursaries to pharmacy students

Suppliers

•	R12.6 billion paid to suppliers
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SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

•	Programme of engagement including annual
stakeholder roadshows and one-on-one
meetings

•	Over 90% of inventory purchased locally

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

•	E-commerce growth
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STAKEHOLDER ENGAGEMENT
Dis-Chem is committed to engaging with all its stakeholders to ensure we create value for them over the mediumand long-term.

Stakeholders

Main issues, needs
and concerns

Engagement platforms

•	Return on investment

•	Results presentations

•	Growth in Group

•	Integrated Annual
Report

•	Strong business
performance

Shareholders

•	Managing margin
and costs
• Feeling rewarded
•	Opportunities for
enhancement

Employees

•	Competitive and fair
remuneration

•	Road shows of results

•	Annual General
Meeting (AGM)

• Product range

Customers

• Service
• Quality

• Accessibility

•	Establishment of
investor relations team
•	Growing online and
courier
•	Strong investment case
and performance

•	Our website

•	Management and team
meetings
•	Internal publications

•	Performance reviews

•	Trust in management

• Price

Addressing issues,
needs and concerns

•	Market remuneration
benchmark exercise
done annually

•	Effective intranet to
facilitate communication
across Group
•	Staff wellness
programme

•	Direct engagement with •	Customer complaint
customers
line monitored by
senior management
•	Online and social media
interaction

• Call centres
•	Dis-Chem magazines

•	Investment in social
media teams

•	Promotional activities
including 2-for-1 sale
items

•	Product lines widened

•	Internal quality check
team insuring product
quality and creditability
•	Giving back to society

Government
and society

•	Return through taxes
(income tax, VAT and
employees tax)
•	Compliance with
legislation
•	Transformation

•	Supply to customers
(distribution channel)

Suppliers

12

•	Operational practices

•	Regular meetings with
MCC, South African
Pharmacy Council and
Department of Health

•	Engagement with
Department of Labour
(DOL)

•	Regular meetings
•	Site visits
•	Electronic
communication
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•	Internal relations
department has
effective engagement
with DOL
•	Compliance teams
in place to ensure
regulation adhered to

•	Donating to foundation
•	Clinic services
•	Category led business
model encouraging
engagement with
suppliers
•	Consistent site
audits by quality
check team to ensure
supplier standards are
maintained

In determining our material issues we have considered our top business as well as operational risks
identified through interaction with our stakeholders and consists of both financial and non-financial risks.
Managing risk is fundamental to ensure the Group continues to create and sustain value for its stakeholders.

LEADERSHIP

The Audit and Risk Committee is an integral component of the risk management process of the Group
and oversees the development and annual review of the risk policy and plan for risk management.
This policy and plan is recommended to and approved by the Board annually. In addition, the Audit and
Risk Committee ensures a risk register is maintained by management and ensures management considers
and implements appropriate risk responses. The material risks facing the Group (as shown below)
have been obtained from this risk register.

THIS IS DIS-CHEM

MANAGING OUR MATERIAL ISSUES,
RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES

1

5
5

Brand loss
Shortage of
retail space

3

2
4

Residual risk (after mitigation)

4
5

Shortage of skills

Regulations
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SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Competition in
independent market

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1
2
3

4

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Material risk

1

3

2017 PERFORMANCE

2
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MANAGING OUR MATERIAL ISSUES,
RISKS AND OPPORTUNITIES CONTINUED
Principal risk

Mitigation/opportunity

1 Brand loss
Dis‑Chem’s financial performance is influenced by
the image, perception and recognition of the
Dis‑Chem brand, which, in turn, depends on many
factors including the ability to maintain high levels
of service in store; the ability to offer a wide range
of products and services responsive to customers’
needs; the quality of its products; the ability to
offer competitive pricing; the availability of stock in
store; the image of its stores; the perception of its
loyalty programme; and the strength of its
communication activities including advertising
campaigns.

• Dis-Chem focuses on having a wide range of
products that meets its customers’ needs

• Deliveries to stores are made on a regular basis to
ensure availability of stock in store. This will be
further enhanced in areas outside of Johannesburg
with the KwaZulu-Natal and Cape Town warehouses
coming online

• Dis-Chem prides itself on excellent customer service
• Loyalty programme gives benefit back to customers
for shopping in the Dis-Chem stores
• Dis-Chem has an “Everyday Low Price” strategy

Any failure to maintain favourable brand
recognition could have a material adverse effect on
Dis‑Chem’s business, results of operations and
financial condition.

2 Shortage of retail space
Part of Dis‑Chem’s growth strategy is to increase
the number of stores it has by opening new stores
or by acquiring existing independent pharmacies
and converting them into Dis‑Chem pharmacies.
Dis‑Chem’s ability to acquire or open profitable new
stores in line with its strategy depends on many
factors, including its ability to identify and secure
attractive acquisitions, and locations for new stores.

• 21 new stores have already been identified and
secured for FY18

• Additional 20 stores under final negotiation for FY19
• Growth in Dis-Chem brand has made it an anchor
store in malls

• Additional stores to be opened in Namibia in FY18
• On track to reach 200 stores by 2023

If Dis‑Chem does not open new stores on a timely
or profitable basis, it may not realise its growth
strategy.

3 Competition in independent market
The level of competition faced by Dis‑Chem’s
network of retail pharmacy stores and its
e-commerce website, its corporate wellness clinics
and its courier service is high, particularly with
respect to pricing, product range and quality, store
location and format, customer service levels and
advertising. Dis-Chem competes at the local,
regional and national levels with a wide variety of
retailers of differing sizes and with differing but
competing offerings, including other pharmacy
groups, independent pharmacies, courier
prescription providers and various other retailers
such as grocery stores, convenience stores and
online retailers.

• Dis-Chem continues to look for opportunities to be
price competitive including 2-for-1 sale items
• Dis-Chem focuses on having a wide range of
products that meets its customers’ needs

• Loyalty programme gives benefit back to customers
for shopping in the Dis-Chem stores

• Dis-Chem prides itself on excellent customer service
• 100% of stores have click and collect thereby
ensuring convenience for customers
• Dis-Chem works closely with key suppliers to
optimise supply chain efficiency

• Dis-Chem has an “Everyday Low Price” strategy

If Dis‑Chem cannot respond adequately to these
multiple sources and types of competition, it could
have a material adverse effect on Dis‑Chem’s business,
results of operations and financial condition.
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THIS IS DIS-CHEM

Principal risk

Mitigation/opportunity

Dis‑Chem’s operations are dependent on the
efforts, ability and experience of the professionals
it employs, in particular pharmacists, qualified
pharmacy assistants and store managers. Dis‑Chem
competes with other employers, including other
pharmacies, healthcare providers and the
government, in recruiting and retaining these
professionals.

• Short-term and long-term incentives in place
including the introduction of share scheme
participation for senior management (refer
to Remuneration section)

• Implementation of measures to encourage and
develop the pharmacy profession, such as through
running an undergraduate bursary programme for
pharmacy students and by facilitating ways for
employees to fulfil continuing professional
development requirements
• Accredited training programmes for store
management

5 Regulations
• Dis-Chem actively monitors changes in regulation to
ensure they are aware of any upcoming changes.
This includes any draft regulations that are issued

• Regular meetings held with the National Department
of Health and the South African Pharmacy Council
• Internal quality check team to administer compliance
programme and audit

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Any changes in the legislation, regulation or
healthcare policies in South Africa, or the
imposition of further requirements or restrictions
on Dis‑Chem, could have a material adverse effect
on Dis‑Chem’s business, results of operations
and financial condition.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The healthcare industry in South Africa is subject to
extensive government regulation. Dis‑Chem is
subject to, and incurs costs to comply with,
numerous laws and regulations, such as the
Pharmacy Act, the Medicines Act and the
Consumer Protection Act. There is uncertainty
regarding the coming into force (either in their
current form or at all) of various draft regulations
which have been issued by the National
Department of Health and the SAPC. Untimely
compliance or non-compliance with these laws and
regulations could result in increased expenditure or
the imposition of civil and criminal penalties that
could adversely affect the continued operation of
Dis‑Chem’s business, such as loss of licences,
inability to obtain new licences or significant
monetary fines.

2017 PERFORMANCE

If Dis‑Chem is unable to hire qualified personnel
when needed, or experiences a higher than normal
turnover rate for its employees, it could have a
material adverse effect on Dis‑Chem’s business,
results of operations and financial condition.

• Competitive remuneration paid to employees

LEADERSHIP

4 Shortage of skills

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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INVESTMENT CASE
Dis-Chem offers a compelling case for investors seeking equity exposure to South Africa’s retail market and more
specifically the healthcare sector.
The directors believe that the Group’s competitive strengths consist of:

RESILIENT
MARKETS

CUSTOMER
CENTRIC STRATEGY

Group operates in resilient
markets which offer protection
against weak consumer
environment

Category-specific customer service excellence is an
ethos upon which the company was founded and is
embedded into its corporate culture

HIGHLY EXPERIENCED
FOUNDER-LED
MANAGEMENT TEAM

HIGHLY
QUALIFIED
STAFF

Dis‑Chem’s founders, Ivan and Lynette Saltzman, are
supported by a very experienced management team,
as well as very competent and professional regional
store and category managers

Employees are highly qualified and
Dis-Chem invests in their training
to ensure its service standards are
continuously improving

PROVEN
FINANCIAL
METRICS AND
TRACK RECORD
•

Retail leading trading density
• Driven superior pharmacy footfall
• Return on equity average of 53.3%
over past three years
• 14% four year compound growth in
profit before tax and headline earnings

16

ORGANIC AND
ACQUISITIVE GROWTH
• Strong organic growth complemented by strategic
acquisitions to extend retail and wholesale base, with
proven ability to integrate acquisitions
• 21 stores planned to be opened in FY18
• Store base to increase to 200 stores by 2023
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THIS IS DIS-CHEM
LEADERSHIP

WELL INVESTED
ASSET BASE

MARKET
LEADING POSITION
Recognised brand in the South African retail pharmacy
and ability to scale makes it well-positioned to benefit
from market leading position
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SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

• Core to the Dis‑Chem
brand is the “Pharmacy
First” approach where every
store has a pharmacy so
that customers can always
depend on there being a
pharmacist to serve their
pharmaceutical needs
whenever they enter a
Dis‑Chem store
• Extensive range of
products and excellent
service

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

• Target market of consumers in LSM 6 to 10 has grown
significantly in last 10 years
• Pharmacy retail industry positioned to benefit from increased
urbanisation, trends and increased awareness of healthy living and
inelastic demand for dispensary products

A
WINNING
RETAIL
BUSINESS
MODEL

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

POSITIONING WITHIN
AN INDUSTRY POISED TO
BENEFIT FROM STRONG
FUNDAMENTALS

2017 PERFORMANCE

Capital expenditure of R748 million
invested over past four years,
mainly in stores, warehouses and
information technology
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GAINED MARKET
SHARE IN ALL
CATEGORIES
193 YEARS OF
RETAIL BUSINESS
EXPERIENCE
AMONGST
8 BOARD
MEMBERS

OUR BOARD

Laurence Michael
Nestadt (66)

Ivan Leon Saltzman
(66)

Lynette Frances
Saltzman (64)

Rui Manuel Morais (33)

Larry Nestadt has a long
and successful corporate
career, both in South Africa
and internationally. He is
a co-founder and former
Executive Director of
Investec Bank. In addition,
Larry was instrumental in
the creation and strategic
development of a number
of listed companies such as
Capital Alliance Holdings,
Super Group, HCI, SIB,
CorpGro, Reckon and
Global Capital, in addition
to having served as past
chairman on the Boards of
these companies. Larry sat
on the Boards of Softline, JCI
and Abacus Technologies.
Larry has acted as Chairman
on a number of non-listed
company Boards both
internationally and locally
including Stenham (UK)
and Prefsure Life (AUS).
He is the current Chairman
of Global Capital, Blue Label
Telecoms, Universal Partners,
National Airways, the
Morecorp Group, Melrose
Motor Investments and
SellDirect Marketing. Larry
is a life member of the World
Presidents Organisation,
Lloyds of London (since 1983)
and is an Honorary Colonel in
the South African Airforce.

Ivan Saltzman is the CoFounder of the Dis‑Chem
business and Chief Executive
Officer of the company.
He has 41 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical sector
in South Africa and has spent
36 of them at Dis‑Chem.
He is a qualified pharmacist
with a Diploma in Pharmacy.

Lynette Saltzman is the CoFounder of the Dis‑Chem
business and a Managing
Director of the company.
She is also the Founder
and Director of the Dis‑Chem
Foundation. She has
41 years of experience in
the pharmaceutical sector in
South Africa and has spent
36 of them at Dis‑Chem.
She is a qualified pharmacist
with a Diploma in Pharmacy.

Rui Morais is the Chief
Financial Officer of the
company. He has 10 years
of experience in the retail
pharmaceutical sector in
South Africa and has been
at Dis‑Chem for seven years.
Prior to becoming Chief
Financial Officer, he served
as Group financial executive
for 12 months. Prior to joining
Dis‑Chem he had senior
managerial roles in the audit
retail sector at EY, with
Dis‑Chem included in his
portfolio. He is a Chartered
Accountant in South Africa
and has a Bachelor of
Accounting degree from the
University of Johannesburg.

Chairman/Independent
Non-executive director
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Chief Executive Officer/
Executive director

Managing Director/
Executive director

Saul Eytan
Saltzman (36)

Alternate Executive
Director to Lynette
Saltzman
Saul Saltzman is an alternate
director to Lynette Saltzman.
He has 16 years of experience
in the pharmaceutical sector
all of which has been at
Dis‑Chem. Prior to becoming
a Group Executive, he
served as various executive
administration roles. He has
a Bachelor of Commerce
degree and a Post-Graduate
Diploma in Business
Administration from the
University of Witwatersrand.
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Mark Bowman (50)

Joe Mthimunye is one of
the founding partners of
Gobodo, the accounting
and auditing practice
that merged with
SizweNtsaluba to form
SizweNtsalubaGobodo. Joe
established the corporate
finance and advisory services
as a division within Gobodo
in 1997. He subsequently
led a management buy-out
(MBO) of the corporate
finance division which was
rebranded as aloeCap in
2001. As the leader of the
aloeCap team he has been
involved in a number of
mergers and acquisitions,
restructuring, capital raising,
debt issuance and IPO
mandates. As the Executive
Chairman of aloeCap, he led
the team that established
aloeCap Private Equity.
Joe was a non-executive
director at Invicta Holdings
and currently serves as an
independent non-executive
director and the chairman of
the audit committee of Blue
Label Telecoms. He sits on a
number of private company
Boards (non-executive)
in which aloeCap is an
investor. Joe is a Chartered
Accountant in South Africa
and holds a BCompt Hons/
CTA from UNISA.

Mahomed Gani is a
Chartered Accountant with
over 35 years’ experience
in the accounting and
auditing profession. He was
a founding partner of Saboor
Gani & Co, MSGM Masuku
Jeena Inc and a partner of
PwC Inc until his retirement
in June 2013. He is a nonexecutive director on a
number of Boards including
Basil Read Holdings Limited,
Tsogo Sun Holdings Limited
and Hosken Consolidated
Investments Limited. He
is also a member of the
Investigations Committee of
the Independent Regulatory
Board of Auditors.

Independent nonexecutive director

Independent nonexecutive director
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Dr Anuschka Coovadia is
the Head of Healthcare for
Africa at KPMG International,
a Director on a healthcare
investment development
fund, Ayurveda Investments,
and executive member of
community business and
social forums and a member
of a Global Task Team on
Universal Health Coverage,
which advises governments
and ministries of health in
emerging economies on
the design, financing and
implementation of National
Health Insurance schemes.
She has more than 15 years
of experience in the health
and research industry,
working with governments,
donor funders, payers,
providers and private sector
organisations across Africa.
Previously, Anuschka served
as the African lead for
Novartis (Coartem), Head of
Clinical Advisory Services at
the Government Employees
Medical Scheme, a Product
Development Specialist at
Momentum Health’s Health
in the Health Actuarial
Department and in the
managed care division of the
Metropolitan Group’s Durban
office. She has a Bachelor
of Medicine and Surgery
degree and a Masters in
Economics (Health) from the
University of KwaZulu-Natal,
having also completed
various management and
actuarial courses.

Independent nonexecutive director

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Mahomed Gani (64)

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Mark Bowman has over
23 years of experience in
the South African corporate
sector. He joined SABMiller’s
beer division in 1993 and
was appointed managing
director of SABMiller Africa
in 2007. Mark’s work led
to the consolidation of
SABMiller’s South Africa
beverage business and Africa
division into one region for
management purposes, and
as a result he was appointed
managing director of the
enlarged SABMiller Africa
region on 1 July 2014.
He is also a non-executive
director of Tiger Brands and
he holds directorship roles
with numerous subsidiary
African breweries. Mark has
a Bachelor of Commerce
degree from the University of
Witwatersrand and a Masters
of Business Administration
from the University of Cape
Town.

Joe Mthimunye (51)

2017 PERFORMANCE

Independent nonExecutive director

Anuschka Coovadia
(40)
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A MESSAGE FROM OUR CHAIRMAN

BECOMING LISTED
HAS PROVIDED THE
CAPITAL AND EXPANDED
LEADERSHIP STRUCTURE
TO ADVANCE DIS-CHEM’S
GROWTH STRATEGY
Larry Nestadt
Dis-Chem is pleased to report that at financial year-end the business had made an exemplary start to its JSE listed
existence. This robust performance has continued into the first months of the 2018 financial year.
Preparing the business for its listing was a mammoth task achieved over the course of several months. On behalf of
the Board, I thank the team within Dis-Chem, our sponsors, bankers and consultants for working so ceaselessly to
achieve a smooth and successful listing.
Dis-Chem has joined eight companies in the Food and Drug Retailers sector of the JSE with a combined market cap
averaging over R200 billion.
Becoming listed has provided the capital and expanded leadership structure to advance Dis-Chem’s growth
strategy and build on its household brand recognition established over the last 38 years.

Operating environment and our market segments

With South Africa’s economy having slipped into a technical recession, Dis-Chem anticipates that consumer
spending will remain muted throughout 2018. Although average household debt has fallen back from historic
highs, consumer and business confidence is low due to political uncertainty, rising unemployment and increasing
costs for household inputs such as electricity and food.
Fortunately Dis-Chem trades in the pharmacy retail and complementary health categories, which in the current
economic climate are significantly more robust than general retail.
Dis-Chem’s chosen market has grown substantially in the last 10 years and is set to continue expanding. The size
of South Africa’s middle class is growing steadily in tandem with a process of increasing urbanisation. Middle
class consumers are adopting healthier lifestyles and seek convenient access to a wide choice of healthcare
and complementary products. The older population is tending to live longer and are driving a greater demand
for chronic illness management. Dis-Chem’s “Pharmacy First” business model is continually refined to engage
and attract an increasing share of this market.

A new growth phase for Dis-Chem

All the fundamentals are in place for Dis-Chem to embark on an accelerated growth path. The listing has raised
sufficient capital to retire certain debt and Dis-Chem has sufficient funds from trading to fund our immediate
pipeline of new stores. The well proven founder-led management team remains in place and is bolstered by a
new Board filled with experienced business leaders. Dis-Chem’s distribution backbone has capacity for at least
three years expansion and numerous new store sites have been identified. Dis-Chem business model delivers
consistently.
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Corporate governance and management restructuring

As a result, Mark Bowman, Anushka Coovadia, Joe Mthimunye and I joined the Dis-Chem Board as independent
non-executive directors, with effect from 13 October 2016. At the same time, Brian Epstein, Stanley Goetsch, Niall
Hegarty and Kevin Sterling resigned from the Board, but retained their executive roles in management. Louis
van der Watt also resigned from the Board and left Dis-Chem, as he had been the Board representative of a prelisting shareholder. Mahomed Gani joined the Board as an independent non-executive director with effect from
3 May 2017.

One of my first duties as the incoming Chairman was to set up the necessary Board committees and to populate
these with the appropriate directors. We accordingly established an Audit and Risk Committee, a Remuneration
and Nominations Committee, and a Social and Ethics Committee. These Board committees are led by
Joe Mthimunye, Mark Bowman and Dr Anuschka Coovadia respectively. Dis-Chem is confident that it has found
the right combinations of experience and skills to ensure that each committee fulfils its mandates and contributes
to exemplary corporate governance from the outset.

Sustainable business in support of society

The business also works to bolster the more vulnerable members of our society through the Dis-Chem Foundation
established in 2006 by our founders, Ivan and Lynette Saltzman.
The Foundation works with NGOs, community organisations and social workers to enhance the lives of
underprivileged people around South Africa. Well-loved across the country for its proactive approach to
community care, the Dis-Chem Foundation is an integral part of the Dis-Chem ethos and brand.

Outlook

Appreciation

The Board and management are deeply grateful to all the Dis-Chem employees and our associates who were part
of the process of converting from a private business into a listed company.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dis-Chem’s solid start to its 2018 financial year augurs well for this next period. As discussed elsewhere in this
report, the company’s business model is running smoothly and a pipeline of 21 new stores is secured for the 2018
financial year. Barring any unforeseeable events, Dis-Chem is on track to leverage its listing and it’s strategy for
another year of growth and profitability.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Dis-Chem’s business model and role in society is to make healthcare widely and conveniently available.
With business and purpose so closely linked, management must steer the company in line with strategy to ensure
its long-term sustainability.

2017 PERFORMANCE

The Board accepts full responsibility for effective governance and applies the principles of the King III code in
both letter and spirit. The Board did consider an early corporate governance migration to the incoming King IV
principles, but decided this would be a step too far for a newly listed company. Dis-Chem do intend reporting in
terms of King IV standards in Dis-Chem’s 2018 integrated report.

LEADERSHIP

Prior to listing, Dis-Chem was managed by an executive Board, with each director responsible for a management
or operational function. The JSE requires its listed companies to establish company Boards featuring independent
non-executive directors with a spread of talent and experience that will oversee strategy, sustainability and
governance.

Larry Nestadt
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Independent non-executive Chairman
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CEO’S REPORT TO STAKEHOLDERS

DIS-CHEM’S BUSINESS
MODEL IS LONG PROVEN
TO DELIVER CONSISTENT
RESULTS, YEAR-AFTER-YEAR

Ivan Saltzman
After months of meticulous preparation, Dis-Chem listed on the JSE in November 2016 and continued delivering
pleasing results in all aspects of the business. The Group adapted well to the realities of being listed and has
continued growing in accordance with our business model and strategy.
In the 2017 financial year, Dis-Chem expanded market share in all categories where we compete. The dispensary
business, which contributes 36% of our overall retail turnover, lifted market share to 21.4% (2016: 19.6%), while
personal care and beauty, which contributes 27% to retail turnover, raised its market share to 15% (2016: 12.4%).
The Group’s biggest gain was in healthcare and nutrition, where we recorded 43.1% against the previous year’s 38%
of market share (from Nielsons South Africa).
Growth in turnover of 14.7% to R17.3 billion was accompanied by improved margins, with gross margin recorded at
24.4% (2016: 23.4%) and operating margin at 6.5% (2016: 6.0%).
Earnings before interest, tax, depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA) increased by a healthy 21.8%, accompanied
by a 13.8% growth in profit after tax. Return on equity improved to 66.9%, compared to 52.8% for the prior year.
Headline earnings and adjusted headline earnings are at 74.7 and 69.2 cents per share respectively.
This strong performance was based on 11 new stores, strict margin management and steady revenue growth in
newer stores. By 28 February 2017, Dis-Chem had expanded to 108 stores, with 21 new stores planned for the 2018
financial year.

Performance by business unit

Dis-Chem retail pharmacy performance
Our Retail Business comprises Dis-Chem’s network of retail pharmacy stores and e-commerce website, wellness
clinics and Dis-Chem Direct, our delivery service.
Turnover in the retail business lifted 15.3%, with like-for-like turnover in stores increasing by 9.1%. We attribute this
gratifying performance to growth in sales volume from maturing stores and addition of new retail space. At the
same time, we also adjusted and improved trading densities, which is a key metric for retail sustainability.
Our relatively new online ordering service is proving to be a significant driver of trading densities across our
network. Online shopping is a fast-growing trend and we expect our Click & Collect and Direct services to generate
an increasing share of retail revenue.
Consumers also demand Dis-Chem convenience in smaller and local shopping centres. We have responded by
developing various store formats ranging down to 150 m², under the Dis-Chem and ‘The Local Choice’ (‘TLC’) brands
with the smaller outlets adopting the TLC brand.
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In addition to fulfilling Dis-Chem’s requirements, CJ Distribution is working to grow its wholesale market share by
signing up independent pharmacies in increasing numbers.

Strategy and business model

LEADERSHIP

CJ distribution performance
Pharmaceutical wholesaler and distributor CJ Distribution grew its turnover 22.2% and increased gross profit by
19.4% to R4.2 billion. The distributor expanded its warehouse capacity significantly by opening a 14 400 m² Durban
warehouse and adding 3 250 m² of storage to its Delmas warehouse. The 15 693 m² warehouse to be opened in
Cape Town will commenced operations in H1 of the 2018 financial year. We now have sufficient warehousing and
distribution capacity in place for Dis-Chem’s planned growth over the next three to five years.

Dis-Chem’s business model is long proven to deliver consistent results, year after year. It is based on recognising
retail opportunities early and developing these through astute management and our tested growth methodologies.

To deliver consistent growth, Dis-Chem must continue building scale by opening new stores, or partner with
existing outlets that we rebrand and right size for each particular location. We have identified opportunities for
at least 83 new stores and have found spaces for 50. Over this current financial period, Dis-Chem intends opening
21 new stores and by 2023 we should have at least 200 stores across South Africa. In April 2016, our 100th store
opened in the Mall of Africa.

Growing the store footprint is accompanied by expanding the reach and capacity of our supply chain.
CJ Distribution has invested heavily in new warehouses and now has the capacity to handle Dis-Chem’s planned
distribution needs for the next three to five years.
At the same time, CJ Distribution is expanding its supply chain by serving increasing numbers of independent
pharmacies.
Getting the trading density in each Dis-Chem store correct is essential to successful retailing, as is consumer
convenience. Current trends show that consumers expect more convenient shopping options outside of the
traditional regional and super regional malls. Dis-Chem is broadening our range of store formats and footprint sizes
to provide the optimum mixes of trading density and convenience wherever we are located.

Although online buying is gaining traction in developed economies, South Africans remain entrenched in the mall
shopping culture. Nevertheless, Dis-Chem has moved quickly into offering a comprehensive online buying service,
which is already delivering healthy revenues.
Cross border strategy
Dis-Chem has entered Namibia and we will have opened a third store by the end of the 2018 financial year. We have
assessed that Namibia could support up to eight Dis-Chem stores in the medium-term, which will require extending
the South African supply chain into Namibia. This project will pilot how the Group builds distribution capacity in
African countries so that we can expand further into adjacent countries.

Although expanding into Africa has undoubted potential, our growth strategy in South Africa is lower risk and
currently prioritised for management attention.
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The dispensary regulations of each country is a major factor when deciding on which markets to enter. In each case,
we need to decide whether the Dis-Chem business model is viable, given the logistics and regulatory issues that
must be resolved.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Most existing Dis-Chem stores are between 1 000 m² and 1 500 m2, but we are developing a range of store sizes
down to 150 m² to suit local shopping centres or corporate premises. These smaller community stores grow brand
recognition and revenue without diluting sales at our larger mall outlets. These stores will be under Dis-Chem and
TLC brands with the Dis-Chem brand not being compromised in too small a space to deliver what customers expect
of the brand.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Of our current 108 outlets, 63 are located in Gauteng and 15 in the greater Cape Town region. The Group presently
has just 11 stores in the Durban area. We therefore have multiple opportunities for expanding across South Africa
and into neighbouring countries.

2017 PERFORMANCE

The Dis-Chem value proposition to our customers and shareholders is built on the ‘Pharmacy First’ philosophy,
which requires that service-driven pharmacists anchor excellent dispensaries stocking medications at the most
competitive prices for consumers and medical schemes. Each Dis-Chem dispensary is at the core of a wider
offering of healthcare, complementary medicine, personal care and selected health food ranges. This broad and
well-priced offering, supported by excellent service, encourages bigger baskets of purchases.
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CEO’S REPORT TO STAKEHOLDERS CONTINUED
Dis-Chem’s people

Dis-Chem’s “Pharmacy First” approach depends on our ability to attract and retain suitably qualified and motivated
employees.
Consumers are taking healthcare and personal lifestyle choices more seriously than ever before. When entering a
Dis-Chem store they expect service and product advice beyond the ordinary, which only exceptional employees
can provide. We fully appreciate that consistently outstanding service is a primary driver of volume growth.
As a family owned and managed business for decades, we have nurtured a family and service orientated internal
culture that engenders a real sense of belonging throughout our workforce. As a result, staff turnover in Dis-Chem
is exceptionally low.
Although Dis-Chem is now a public company, we are determined to maintain our internal culture of respect,
professionalism and belonging. That attitude is intrinsic to Dis-Chem’s future prospects.

Outlook

Our first set of results after listing are highly encouraging. The listing and the additional capital following the
conversion to a public company, as well as the leadership expertise it brought into the business has strengthened
the attributes that make Dis-Chem great.
These results also show that Dis-Chem’s growth strategy and business model remain on track, despite the fact that
South Africa’s economy has technically entered into a recession. Some commentators have stated that the country
has been an actual recession for some years already, which would further confirm the strength of the Dis-Chem
model.
We recognised years back that healthcare and wellness are strengthening priorities for middle class consumers
and will be more resilient than other retail categories. At the same time, South Africa’s middle class has expanded
dramatically.
With these interlinked trends set to continue for the foreseeable future, Dis-Chem will continue building on and
optimising the strategies that serve our customers, shareholders and communities so well. While trading space
and opportunities remain available, we have developed stores of various size formats and ranges, so that our
customers can choose to access Dis-Chem convenience in local shopping centres or large regional malls.
In practical terms, we will open 21 new stores in the 2018 financial year, providing approximately 26 900 m² of
added trading space. We will also open an additional store in Namibia.
Having expanded its wholesale capacity substantially in recent years, CJ Distribution is energetically pursuing
new business with independent pharmacies. By launching The Local Choice as a smaller healthcare storebrand,
Dis-Chem will continue converting independent pharmacies through its compelling economic proposition. For
many independents, converting to the Dis-Chem or The Local Choice brands is the logical and profitable response
to the consolidation of the pharmaceutical sector currently underway.

Appreciation

Thank you to all our stakeholders for their support and commitment to Dis-Chem during the current year.
Thank you to our Chairman, Larry Nestadt, for his leadership of the Board and to the non-executive directors for
sharing their extensive experience and insight. A particular thank you to my colleagues on the executive Board and
executive team for their hard work and dedication, especially through the listing process.
To all our employees, I thank you for your commitment, teamwork and energy.

Ivan Saltzman

Chief Executive Officer
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Consumers also demand Dis-Chem convenience in smaller and local shopping
centres. We have responded by developing various store formats ranging
down to 150m², with the smaller outlets adopting ‘The Local Choice’ brand
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DIS-CHEM RETAIL PHARMACY
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OPERATING PROFIT
24.3% TO
R1.1 BILLION
WHOLESALE SPACE
INCREASED
BY 17 650 M2

SUMMARISED ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

%
change

Revenue
Turnover
Cost of sales

17 897 313 15 508 284
17 268 475 15 061 293
(13 059 154) (11 534 533)

15.4
14.7
13.2

Gross profit
Other income
Other expenses
Transaction costs on listing

4 209 321
604 861
(3 679 386)
(8 074)

3 526 760
439 676
(3 059 758)
–

19.4
37.6
20.3

Operating profit
Net finance costs

1 126 722
(225 240)

906 678
(89 151)

24.3
152.6

– Finance income
– Finance costs

23 977
(249 217)

7 315
(96 466)

Share of profit from associates
Profit before tax
Taxation
Total comprehensive income
for the year, net of tax
Profit attributable to:
– Equity holders of the parent
– Non-controlling interests
Earnings per share
– Basic and diluted (cents)
Headline earnings per share
– Basic and diluted (cents)
WANOS (’000)
Dividend per share*
– Interim paid (cents)
– Final declared/paid (cents)

501

344

901 983
(246 871)

817 871
(242 116)

655 112

575 755

612 346
42 766

512 775
62 980

75.0

212.0

74.7

206.0

816 617

241 831

109.5
7.3

208.1
79.3

10.3
2.0
13.8

Retail turnover up 15% from FY16 with like-for-like
up 9.1%. Wholesale turnover up 22% from FY16.
Turnover growth was a result of a maturing store
base and the addition of 11 stores in the current year,
resulting in 108 stores at February 2017.
Retail gross margin increased from 23.9% in FY16
to 24.2% in FY17 due to better trade terms with
suppliers and scale leverage. Wholesale gross
margin was maintained at 8.5%. The Group continued
to increase market share across all core categories.
Other income increased in Retail and Wholesale
partly due to the renegotiation of Midrand DC lease
and certain store leases. In addition, other income
increased from better terms and scale leverage.
Other expenses as a % of turnover increased from
20.3% in FY16 to 21.3% in FY17; this increase is due
to the increase in the warehouse and retail space.
Employment costs remains the largest contributor to
costs at 55% in both FY16 and FY17.
Increase in finance costs is due to the change in
capital structure of the Group. A new loan was taken
out with Absa of R800 million with interest linked
to JIBAR.
The tax rate has decreased from 29.6% in FY16 to
27.4% in FY17 and it is expected to remain at a similar
level to FY17 going forward.

* After share split

Refer to website for full annual audited financial statements and notes (including
independent auditors’ report)
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

1 191 740

1 064 929

11.9

995 401
40 310
156 029
–

918 979
35 253
108 762
1 935

Current assets

4 704 921

4 104 904

14.6

Inventory
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable
Taxation receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

3 233 911
1 091 901
72 270
12 141
294 698

2 806 572
767 807
198 672
58 644
273 209

15.2
42.2
(63.6)
(79.3)
7.9

Total assets

5 896 661

5 169 833

14.1

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity attributable to equity
holders of parent

1 106 902

722 566

53.2

Share capital
Common control reserve
Retained earnings

6 140 554
(990 991)
(4 042 661)

1 352 074
(990 991)
361 483

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred tax
Investment in associates

Non-controlling interests

8.3
14.3
43.5
(100.0)

Loans have been settled by counterparties in the
current year and additional loans were not extended
as this is not a core activity for Dis-Chem.
Refer to Bank overdraft below:

Share capital increased significantly due to the issue
of shares upon listing in November 2016.

839 683
822 551

622 907
179 162
647 000
73 309

651 679
170 872
–
–

Current liabilities

3 243 800

3 507 599

Trade and other payables
Employee oblilgations
Deferred revenue
Contingent consideration
Finance lease liability
Loans payable
Taxation payable

2 641 215
125 391
95 364
24 003
2 390
173 659
14 719
167 059

1 754 293
102 441
77 026
–
2 541
27 026
14 564

1 529 708

50.6
22.4
23.8
100.0
(5.9)
542.6
1.1

Total equity and liabilities

5 896 661

5 169 833

14.1

(79.9)
34.6
(4.4)
4.9
100.0
100.0

(89.1)

Buy back of NCI of R101 million in FY17.
The Midrand DC lease was renegotiated in the
current year resulting in a decrease in the effective
interest rate from 14.7% to 10%.
The lease liability has increased through the
additional stores that have been opened, however
this increase was partly offset by the renegotiation of
the lease terms of certain older stores.
The increase in loans payable mainly relates to the
Absa loan that was taken out in the current year
amounting to R800 million. R600 million of this loan is
payable quarterly over four years and R200 million is
payable at the end of the four-year period.
The contingent consideration relates to the
acquisition of the non-controlling interest in 9 partner
stores and is based on the future performance of
each respective partner store.
Trade and other payables days have improved from
41 days in FY16 to 61 days in FY17 thereby resulting in
a higher creditors balance at year-end.
Cash and cash equivalents has moved into a net asset
position in the current year with R700 million of the
capital raised on listing being used to reduce the
overdraft balance.

Refer to website for full annual audited financial statements and notes (including
independent auditors’ report)
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1 130 483
1 522 378

Bank overdraft

Trade and other receivables increased due to the
increase in turnover in the current year as well as a
decrease in trade and other receivable days from
17 days in FY16 to 20 days in FY17. Trade and other
receivable days is expected to improve in FY18.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

117 117

Finance lease liability
Operating lease liability
Loans payable
Contingent consideration

Inventory levels increased at year-end through the
opening of additional stores, stocking up the Durban
warehouse that was completed in February 2017 and
pre-buying before price increases.

Movement relates to total comprehensive income
(R0.6 bn) less dividend paid (R0.9 bn) less acquisition
of NCI (R0.5 bn) less shares repurchased during the
year (R3.6 bn).

23 581

Total equity
Non-current liabilities

The Group continues to invest in capex through new
stores, IT and movable equipment in Wholesale.
Total capital expenditure of R221 million comprised
of R73 million replacement expenditure and
R148 million expansionary expenditure in FY17.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

%
change

2017 PERFORMANCE

2016
R’000

LEADERSHIP

2017
R’000
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CFO’S REPORT TO STAKEHOLDERS

TURNOVER GROWTH
OF 14.7% WAS A RESULT
OF THE MATURING
STORE BASE AND THE
ADDITION OF 11 STORES
IN THE CURRENT YEAR,
RESULTING IN 108 STORES
AT FEBRUARY 2017
Rui Morais
This is the first year that the Group has presented its Integrated Report after listing on the Johannesburg Stock
Exchange in November 2016. This was a major milestone for the company’s management team.
The Group has continued to deliver a strong performance in the 2017 financial year with the financial targets all
being improved upon from the prior year despite the weak consumer spending environment. As a result market
shares across all categories have increased.

Medium-term financial targets
Achieved
2016
Working capital days

Achieved
2017

50

43

2018 to 2020 target
40 to 50

(m2)

5 000

5 350

Inflation adjusted

Gross margin 

(%)

23.4

24.0 to 25.0

EBITDA

(%)

7.0

24.4

Operating margin 

(%)

6.0

6.0 to 7.0

Dividend pay-out ratio 

(%)

–

6.5

New store capex 

7.5

7.0 to 8.0

–

40 to 50

The performance for the year resulted in an increase of 21.8% in earnings before interest, tax, depreciation
and amortisation (EBITDA) and an increase of 13.8% in profit after tax from the prior year. Return on equity for
the year improved to 66.9% compared to 52.8% in the prior year.
Earnings attributable to shareholders and headline earnings increased by 19.4% and 22.5% respectively from the
prior year.
Headline earnings per share and adjusted headline earnings per share are 74.7 and 69.2 cents per share, a decrease
of 63.7% and 61.3% respectively as a result of a significant change in the weighted average number of shares
(WANOS) in the 2017 financial year. The shares were issued in January and February 2016 and therefore included
in the determination of WANOS for 12 months in the current year versus less than two months in the comparative
period. The change was as a result of a group restructure prior to listing on the JSE.
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2016
R’m

%
change

610

498

22.5

Headline earnings
Items deemed to relate to capital structure of the Group

(80)

Finance lease obligation renegotiation
Operating-lease renegotiation
Items related to neither retail nor wholesale day-to-day operations
Fair value loss relating to non-hedging derivative
Items not expected to reoccur

(92)

(29)

–

36

–

8

Transaction costs on listing
Adjusted headline earnings
WANOS 

26

565

432

816.6

(millions)

Adjusted headline earnings per share

–

20

241.8

69.2

(cps)

30.8

178.8

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE – STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
Turnover

Turnover growth for the Group was a result of the maturing store base and the addition of 11 stores in the current
year, resulting in 108 stores at February 2017.
The Northridge store in Bloemfontein was flooded as a result of heavy rains late in the 2016 calendar year and is
being rebuilt with an expected opening in the second quarter of 2017. Although this had no effect on comparable
turnover numbers, it did impact both the retail and Group turnover numbers (the impact was approximately 0.3% at
year-end). The direct losses are fully covered by insurance.

Gross margin

PROFITABILITY

DIS-CHEM SHARE PRICE (CPS)

R

%

20 000 000

7
6

15 000 000

28

5

2017-02-27

2017-02-17

2017-02-10

2017-02-23

2017-01-20

20
2017-01-13

0

2017-01-06

Gross proﬁt

2017

2016-12-23

2016

2016-12-16

Turnover
Operating margin

2015
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2014

22

2016-12-09

1

24

2016-12-02

2

5 000 000

2016-11-25

3

26

2016-11-18

4

10 000 000

0
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Gross profit increased by 19.4% to R4.2 billion from the prior year (2017 margin: 24.4%; 2016 margin 23.4%).
The increase is due to better trade terms with suppliers as the Group continued to increase market shares across
our core categories.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Group turnover increased by 14.7% to R17.3 billion from the prior year with product inflation being 6.5% for the
year. Retail turnover increased by 15.3% from the prior year with like-for-like (LFL) turnover increasing by 9.1%.
Wholesale turnover increased by 22.2% from the prior year.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Taxation

LEADERSHIP

2017
R’m
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CFO’S REPORT TO STAKEHOLDERS CONTINUED
Other income

Other income increased by 37.6% to R605 million from the prior year. This increase has been boosted in the current
year through the renegotiation of the Midrand warehouse lease as well as the renegotiation of certain store leases.
Although the Group continues to look for opportunities to reduce lease expenses these opportunities are unlikely
to occur to the same extent in years following. Excluding the lease renegotiations, other income increased by
R148 million from better terms and scale leverage.

Operating expenditure

As a percentage of turnover, other expenditure increased by 1.0% from 20.3% in February 2016 to 21.3% in
February 2017, with the largest expenditure for the Group still relating to employee costs.

Expenses as a percentage of turnover

February
2017
% of
turnover

February
2016
% of
turnover

0.9

1.0

(0.1)

11.8

11.1

0.7

2.9

–

5.7

5.3

0.4

Depreciation and amortisation
Employee costs
Occupancy costs
Other operation costs

2.9

%
difference

The increase in operating expenditure from the prior year amounted to 20.3% due to costs associated with the
increase in warehouse and retail space. Retail space increased by 11 new stores in the current year as well as
additional space obtained in certain stores. CJ Distribution’s wholesale space has been increased through the
opening of the Durban warehouse (14 400 m2) as well as the additional space (3 250 m2) added to the Delmas
warehouse. The Cape Town warehouse (15 693 m2) is currently being completed with operations starting in the first
half of the new financial year. Management believes that the wholesale space is fully invested and will be able to
accommodate the retail and wholesale growth strategies over the next three to five years.
It is expected that expenses will grow at a lower rate than turnover in the coming financial year.

Operating profit

Operating profit increase by 24.3% to R1.1 billion from the prior year as the Retail margin increased by 0.4% while
the Wholesale margin increased by 0.1%. The Group’s operating margin increased by 50 basis points to 6.5%.

Finance costs

Net finance costs increased by 1.5 times to R225 million from the prior year. The increase is due to a change in
capital structure of the Group.

Taxation

The Group’s effective tax rate of 27.4% is in line with expectations and is expected to be similar in the coming year.
Group tax rate
Standard tax rate
Prior year adjustment
Non-taxable items
Non-deductable items
Other

%
2017
28.00
0.43

(0.90)
-

(0.16)
27.37
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FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE – STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
The Group is in the process of expanding its store footprint and investing in warehouse space and IT infrastructure.
Total capital expenditure in the current year of R221 million comprises of R73 million replacement expenditure
and R148 million expansionary expenditure.
Capital expenditure
Leased land and buildings
Office equipment
Furniture and fixtures

2016
R’m

–

619.0

25.8

42.9

30.8

26.7

121.5

98.4

35.9

33.7

6.4

13.2

221.4

843.6

1.0

Motor vehicles
Computer hardware
Computer software

9.7

2017 PERFORMANCE

Leasehold improvements

2017
R’m

LEADERSHIP

Property, plant and equipment and computer software

Working capital

February
2016

Difference

84.4

81.3

3.1

19.7

16.7

3.0

Creditor days

61.4

48.4

13.0

Working capital cycle

42.7

49.6

(6.9)

Inventory days
Debtor days

Contingent consideration

The contingent consideration relates to the anticipated amount to be paid to the non-controlling shareholders
that were bought out upon listing and is based on the future performance of each respective stores, times
the respective minority interests each year for five years to be paid in cash if performance targets are met.
The performance targets will be agreed on an annual basis with each selling non-controlling shareholder. It is
currently assumed that the stores will meet the performance targets in all five years and that the selling noncontrolling shareholders will therefore be entitled to the deferred consideration.

Cash management

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

February
2017

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

In the current year, the Group has improved its overall working capital position from 50 to 43 days. This was due to
a concerted effort made by management specifically in regards to average creditors’ days that have increased from
48 days at February 2016 to 61 days at February 2017. The Group is expected to maintain the overall working capital
position between 40 and 45 days going forward.

Cash inflow from operations before working capital movements amounted to R1.3 billion, which is an increase of
R284 million from the prior year. Working capital was well managed in the current year with a net cash inflow of
R218 million and the Group received a net R708 million on listing, after the deduction of capitalised listing costs.

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017
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The R800 million loan relates to the new loan taken out with Absa in December 2016. The first part of the term loan
is for R600 million repayable quarterly over four years and the second part is for R200 million repayable at the end
of four years. The loan is at a variable interest rate linked to JIBAR and is secured by the cession of the book debts in
and general notarial bond over movable assets.
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CFO’S REPORT TO STAKEHOLDERS CONTINUED
R’000

800
(69)
708

1 276

218

Cash inﬂow Working Net shares
from trading capital
issued
operations movements

(214)
(910)

Loan
received

Acquisition Capex and Dividends
of NCI and proceeds
subsidiaries on disposal

(247)

Tax

(178)

Net ﬁnance
costs

1 384

Increase
in cash
and cash
equivalents

Dividends

An initial dividend of 109.5 cents per share (amounting to R870 million) was declared and paid by the company to
shareholders on 30 March 2016. A final dividend of 7.3 cents per share was approved by the directors on 17 May
2017 and paid on 5 June 2017 to shareholders registered on 2 June 2018.
The Group’s policy is to declare dividends based on 40% of adjusted headline earnings weighted by the amount of
time the company was listed.

Outlook

For the eight weeks to 30 April 2017, Group turnover increased by 15.2% relative to the prior year and like-for-like
retail turnover by 9.7%. Despite the strong start to the new financial year it is expected that the weak consumer
spending environment will continue in 2017 with the ongoing political uncertainty, low economic growth and
increase in taxes constraining consumers. The resilient markets in which the Group operates will offer some
protection against the relatively weak consumer environment.
The Group remains focused on adding retail stores to its base and leveraging off an invested cost base associated
with a relatively young store base. An additional 21 stores (approximately 26 900 m2) will be added in the 2018
financial year and the Group is on track to reach 200 stores by 2023.

Appreciation

Extend my thanks to my finance team who have handled the preparation and transition into the listed space with
excitement, professionalism and an incredible work ethic.
In addition, a big thank you to the new board, the current executives and each employee who continues to perform
to assist the group in achieving our strategic objectives.

Rui Morais

Chief Financial Officer
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SUMMARY FOUR-YEAR REVIEW
Four-year
compound
growth %

2016

2015

2014

Property, plant and equipment
Inventory
Trade and other receivables
Other assets
Net cash and bank
Finance lease liability
Absa loan
Trade and other payables
Other liabilities
Equity

69
19
24
6
(299)
388

R’000

45

R’000

4

R’000

102

30
1
4

995 401
3 233 911
1 091 901
280 750
294 698
(625 297)
(796 000)
(2 641 215)
(703 666)
(1 130 483)

918 979
2 806 572
767 807
403 266
(1 256 499)
(654 220)
–
(1 754 293)
(391 929)
(839 683)

291 401
2 334 035
607 683
272 899
(445 295)
(4 674)
–
(1 305 040)
(449 469)
(1 301 540)

207 934
1 925 327
567 493
232 660
(37 633)
(5 391)
–
(1 194 493)
(690 807)
(1 005 090)

159 160

(668 312)

(234 976)

51 903

(221 539)

(142 892)

(211 369)

(199 650)

–

38 683

176 708

Statement of cash flows
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash flow from investing activities
(mainly due to capex spend)
Cash flow from financing activities
(mainly due to share issues)

1 446 517

Refer to website for full annual audited financial statements and notes (including independent auditors’ report)

AUDITED ANNUAL
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R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000

Statement of financial position

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

19 17 268 475 15 061 293 12 910 594 10 320 999
19 4 209 321
3 526 760
2 993 576
2 475 552
28
604 861
439 676
364 814
290 733
20 (3 679 386) (3 059 758) (2 681 942) (2 155 396)
(8 074)
–
–
–
23
1 126 722
906 678
676 448
610 889
436
(225 240)
(89 151)
(19 064)
(1 464)
98
501
344
59
65
14
901 983
817 871
657 443
609 490
14
610 314
498 232
433 515
408 651

2017 PERFORMANCE

R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Statement of comprehensive income
Turnover
Gross profit
Other income
Other expenses
Transaction costs
Operating profit
Net finance costs
Share of profit from associates
Profit before tax
Headline earnings

2017

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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SUMMARY FOUR-YEAR REVIEW CONTINUED
Performance indicators
Gross profit margin
EBITDA margin
Operating margin
EPS
HEPS
Inventory days
Debtors days
Creditors days
Net working capital days
Return on equity

%
%
%
cps
cps
Days
Days
Days
Days
%

Share performance
Actual shares at year-end*
WANOS
Share price at year-end
Net asset value per share (WANOS)
Net asset value per share (actual
shares at year-end)

Four-year
average

2017

2016

2015

2014

23.7
6.9
5.9
189.4
187.9
83
19
53
49
–

24.4
7.5
6.5
75.0
74.7
84
20
61
43
66.9

23.4
7.0
6.0
212.0
206.0
81
17
48
50
52.8

23.2
6.2
5.2
239.2
239.1
78
17
46
49
40.2

24.0
6.9
5.9
231.5
231.6
90
20
56
54
–

Four-year
compound
growth %

2017

2016

2015

2014

794 446
241 831
n/a
347.22

181 818
181 320
n/a
717.81

180 000
176 474
n/a
569.54

105.69

715.85

558.38

(‘000)
(‘000)
cps
cps

68
67
(38)

859 274
816 617
23.98
138.43

cps

(38)

131.56

* After share split in September 2016

A comprehensive four-year review is available on the website.
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW
RETAIL
11 NEW STORES
OPENED

CAPITAL
EXPENDITURE OF
R191 MILLION

Dis‑Chem’s Retail Business is comprised of Dis‑Chem’s network of retail pharmacy stores and its e-commerce
website, its corporate wellness clinics, and its courier service (Dis‑Chem Direct).

New stores opened in FY17
November 2016

Mossel Bay Mall

November 2016

Rynfield Terrace

November 2016

Namibia, Swakopmund

October 2016

Greenvalley

November 2016

Platinum Park

September 2016

Mayponya Mall

November 2016

Cape Gate

April 2016

Menlyn Park

November 2016

Mall of Africa

April 2016

New Market

November 2016

Dis‑Chem has stores located in almost all of South Africa’s regions, with a strong presence in Gauteng and
surrounding areas as well as KwaZulu-Natal, the Eastern Cape and the Western Cape.

3

4
1*

3

4

11

1

15

* One Namibian store owned; one franchise store
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62

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Liberty Promenade

2017 PERFORMANCE

Dis‑Chem operated 108 retail pharmacies at February 2017 (of which 99 are wholly-owned and nine majorityowned subsidiaries) throughout South Africa, two partner stores in Namibia and 20 corporate wellness clinics. It has
grown rapidly in recent years, opening 81 new stores between the beginning of the financial year 2008 and the end
of the financial year 2017, each with a “pharmacy first” approach, whereby every store has a pharmacist and at least
one wellness clinic.

LEADERSHIP

TURNOVER
UP 15.3%
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED
Review

Retail had a strong trading performance in the current year with turnover up 15.3% and market shares were
increased in all categories:
December
2016

Market share %

21.4

Dispensary*

15.0

Personal care and beauty #1

43.1

Healthcare and nutrition#
Baby care

December
2015
19.6
12.4
38.0

9.1

#

7.4

1 Prestige fragrance and cosmetics not included
# Nielsons South Africa
* IMS

Turnover growth is underpinned by volume growth, maturing stores and additional space. Like-for-like turnover
growth improved to 9.1% in the current financial year compared to 8.5% in the prior year. Turnover is also benefiting
from on-line sales with on-line turnover now amounting to approximately a small retail store. Click and collect is also
available in every store.

Loyalty programme

As shown in Our History section, the Dis-Chem loyalty programme was launched in 2003 with members increasing
each year. Loyalty members account for approximately 70% of turnover in front shop and have larger basket sizes
than non-loyalty customers. In the current year, the Group invested in Customer Relationship Management (CRM)
system which gives the ability to have a single customer’s information across all touch points of the brand and
thereby allowing better understanding our customers.

Own brand

Our approach is to focus on the quality of products with a target of own brand products being between 20% to 25%
of inventory hold per store. The inclusion of own brand exclusive lines allows the enhancement of product ranges in
stores.

Outlook

For the 2018 financial year, 21 new stores will be opened adding approximately 26 900m2 and the first corporate
The Local Choice (TLC) store will be opened. An additional 20 new stores are under final negotiation and are
expected to be predominately opened in the 2019 financial year.

Retail roadmap
Plans/targets for 2017

Achievement

Plans/ targets for 2018

Drive existing revenue and market share growth
Optimise trading densities across
retail portfolio
Achieve strong like-for-like growth
Continue to grow market share across
product offering through Dis-Chem’s
brand positioning
Continue category leadership by
staying ahead of consumer market
trends and being first to market
(i.e. food and sport supplements
trends, beauty salon products and
treatments)

40

Trading density improved from
R90 500m2 to R95 600 m2
Like-for-like growth at 9.1%
Market share increased in all
categories

Improve trading density by price
inflation
Maintain like-for-like performance
Continue to gain market share in
categories
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Plans/targets for 2017

Achievement

Plans/ targets for 2018

Growth in loyalty customers
CRM implemented in current year;
now with 6.7 million customers
Reward programmes enhanced with
Absa and Discovery

Loyalty customers to continue to grow
ahead of customer base
Continue to increase loyalty basket
size

Drive customer loyalty

Retain first to market innovative
practices to deliver revenue
diversification
Enhance customer convenience
through Dis-Chem Direct and
Corporate Wellness Centres
Enhance e-commerce platform to
build on online success including Click
and Collect

Growth in Dis-Chem Direct and 212
wellness clinics
100% of stores facilitating Click and
Collect

Continue to open at least one clinic in
each store
Continue to have 100% stores
facilitating Click and Collect
Increase Dis-Chem Direct courier
services to third parties

Leverage off existing head office
infrastructure cost base
Negotiate better commercial terms
with vendors

Overall costs increased due to costs
associated with the increase in
Warehouse and Retail space
Margin improvement through better
trade terms and scale leverage

It is expected expenses will grow at a
lower rate than turnover in the coming
financial year
Gross margin between 24.0% and
25.0%

Consolidation of independent pharmacies
Opportunities continued to be looked
at in FY18

Store roll-out
Double store footprint over the next
five to eight years
Use of partner store model to benefit
from market consolidation

11 new stores opened in FY17

21 new stores to be opened in FY18
including additional Namibian store

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Significant opportunity to gain market Purchase of assets and liabilities of
share as the independent pharmacy
Platinum Park
market consolidates:
•	Partnership model ideal to optimise
on independent pharmacists’ loyal
customer base

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Driving margins by leveraging support services fixed cost base

2017 PERFORMANCE

Driving secondary retail opportunities through innovation

LEADERSHIP

Continue conversion of non-loyalty
customers
Drive cross-sell within Dis-Chem
stores through Customer Relationship
Management (‘CRM’) and targeted
marketing
Increase loyalty basket size
Increase number of partnerships
with blue chip companies’ reward
programmes

Trained and motivated staff
104 bursaries to pharmacy students
118 bursaries to pharmacy students
406 employees completed learnership 420 employees to complete
agreements
leanership agreements
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Bursaries given to students
Learnerships at head office and stores
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OPERATIONAL REVIEW CONTINUED
WHOLESALE
TURNOVER
UP 22.2%

CAPITAL
EXPENDITURE OF
R30 MILLION

WAREHOUSE
SPACE INCREASED
BY 17 650M2

The South African pharmaceutical wholesale and distribution value chain involves the distribution of goods
from product manufacturers through to distributors then to wholesalers and, ultimately, to retailers. Through
CJ Distribution, Dis‑Chem operates as a wholesaler, meaning it distributes products from distributors to retailers.
Prior to 2013, Dis‑Chem’s wholesale business focused solely on distributing products from its distribution centres
to its own store network. In 2013, with the acquisition of the majority interest in CJ Group, Dis‑Chem also began
distributing products to independent retail pharmacies.

Review

Wholesale had an exceptional trading performance in the current year with turnover up 22.2% and market share in
fine wholesale increasing from the prior year.
Dis‑Chem currently serves 525 independent retail
pharmacies in South Africa of which 61 are TLC stores.
Dis‑Chem distributes both dispensary and health-related
products, including medicines and scheduled substances,
and front shop products, to these independent pharmacies
and TLC stores. Revenue generated from servicing
Dis‑Chem stores comprised 85% of CJ Distribution’s
revenue for the financial year 2017, whereas revenue
generated from servicing TLC stores and independent
pharmacies comprised 15% of CJ Distribution’s revenue for
the same period.
In the current year, CJ Distribution’s wholesale space
has been increased through the opening of the Durban
warehouse (14 400 m2) as well as the additional space
(3 250 m2) added to the Delmas warehouse. The Cape
Town warehouse (15 693 m2) is currently being completed
with operations starting in the first half of the new
financial year. Management believes that the wholesale
space is fully invested and will be able to accommodate
the retail and wholesale growth strategies over the next
three to five years.

WHOLESALE TURNOVER
5%
10%

85%

Dis-Chem

Outlook

Independent pharmacies

TLC

From the increased wholesale space CJ Distribution will be focused on increasing its current market share by
continuing to service Dis-Chem, increasing supply to a greater number of TLC stores and serving a greater number
of independent pharmacies. The target is to maintain own store stock ownership from own warehouses at between
75% to 80%.
Dis-Chem is also investigating the pre-distribution market in the coming year.
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Wholesale roadmap
Plans/targets for 2017

Achievement

Plans/targets for 2018

Improved ability to service
independents and grow wholesale
customer base

Durban warehouse of 14 400 m2
opened

Warehouse space in Cape Town and
Durban frees up space in Midrand
Dis-Chem’s growth in retail
expected to create scale in
wholesale

Market share of fine distribution
increased

21 new stores to be opened in FY18
and stocked by Wholesale to remain
at 75% to 80%

Stock 78% of inventory in Dis-Chem
stores from own warehouse

Gain scale through acquisition of independent wholesalers
Consolidation of the independent
retail pharmacy market will drive
consolidation of the wholesale
market

Purchased assets and liabilities of
Platinum Park

Gain scale and bargaining power
with suppliers

Purchase wholesale business to
further grow base
Invest in price to attract
independent volume

Post-acquisition cost synergies and
efficiencies are expected
Opportunity to capture supply chain of additional The Local Choice stores
Grow market share through
conversion of independent
pharmacies to The Local Choice
brand

No Local Choice pharmacies owned
by Dis-Chem in current period

10 TLC’s to be owned by Dis-Chem
by end of FY19

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Leverage off acquired customer
base in regions where
CJ Distribution has no presence to
speed up market penetration

2017 PERFORMANCE

Continue to enhance efficiencies
throughout supply chain

11 new stores opened in FY17 and
being stocked by Wholesale

Cape Town warehouse of 15 693 m2
to be opened

LEADERSHIP

Continue to leverage our sophisticated infrastructure

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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OVER
R15 MILLION
DONATED
TO DIS-CHEM
FOUNDATION

2016 PERFORMANCE

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

OUR ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT
At Dis-Chem we believe that the integration of good corporate governance enables us to continuously improve
the way we manage our business and how we communicate information. This ensures that we have a sustainable
business incorporating discipline, independence, responsibility, fairness, transparency and accountability to
stakeholders.
Good corporate governance is implicit in our values, culture and processes. Our internal controls promote an
awareness of risk, compliance and good governance in every area of the business. Our governance process will
be reviewed regularly to align with legislative and regulatory changes and to reflect best practice.
With an increasing regulatory environment, the Group aims to maintain the balance between corporate governance
expectations and the expectation to deliver increasing financial returns.
The Board is of the opinion that the Group currently complies with the majority of the governance principles in
King III and that the Group complies with all requirements of the JSE Listings Requirements. The following King III
principles are partially complied with:
Principle

Applied

Comments

2.27. S
 hareholders should
approve the company’s
remuneration policy

Partially

Every year, the remuneration report, which is published in its
Integrated Annual Report, is presented to shareholders to pass a
non-binding advisory vote at Dis-Chem’s Annual General Meeting
(AGM). The first vote will take place at the AGM in July 2017.

6.3. C
 ompliance risk should
form an integral part of the
company’s risk management
process

Partially

Through Dis-Chem’s risk management framework, the risk
management function identifies, assesses and responds to
compliance risks. This is monitored by the Board through the
Audit and Risk Committee. The risk management framework is
currently being updated.

7.3. Internal audit should provide Partially
a written assessment of
the effectiveness of the
company’s system of internal
controls and risk management

The Board charter requires internal audit to be aligned with
the risk assessment process. An internal audit charter has been
established, which ensures that the internal audit function forms
an integral part of the combined assurance model and this model
is applied to financial, operational, compliance and sustainability
issues. The assurance model forms part of an effective
governance, risk management and internal control framework.

Internal audit will issue their first assessment of the effectiveness
of the company’s system of internal controls and risk management
in the forthcoming year.
7.5. Internal audit should be
strategically positioned to
achieve its objectives

Partially

Dis-Chem’s independent internal auditors report to the Audit and
Risk Committee. The internal audit function is suitably skilled and
resourced and a quality assurance plan is currently being finalised
for FY18.

9.3. Sustainability reporting
and disclosure should be
independently assured

Partially

The Audit and Risk Committee has overseen the compiling
of Dis-Chem’s sustainability report and its disclosures will be
independently assured in future years.

This report sets out the key governance principles adopted by the directors in governing the company.
The group intends to adopt King IV for its 2018 Integrated Report, and is currently assessing the impact of the new
code.

Governance framework

Our governance framework is structured in such a way to achieve our strategic objectives within compliance
requirements and by balancing the interests of our stakeholders, minimising and avoiding conflicts of interest, and
practising good corporate behaviour.

Register documenting the assessment of the King III principles
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The Dis-Chem Board

The Board of Dis-Chem has a unitary structure and consists of eight directors of which five are independent nonexecutives. Non-executive directors will be re-elected every three years. The Board was elected in October 2016
prior to listing on the JSE.

The non-executive directors are required to dedicate sufficient time to the concerns of the Board. They are
permitted to serve on other Boards provided that their other duties do not inhibit their commitment to the
Dis‑Chem Board to add value.

Our board of directors are shown on pages 20 to 21.
Responsibilities of the Board
• Providing effective leadership based on an ethical
foundation

• Oversight of the Group’s strategic direction

• Approving strategic plans

• Exercising objective judgement on the Group’s
business affairs independent from management

• Ensuring the sustainability of the business
• Monitoring operational performance and
management

• Legislative, regulatory and governance compliance

• Ensuring that appropriate governance structures,
policies and procedures are in place
• Ensuring the effectiveness of the Group’s internal
controls

• Approval of significant accounting policies and annual • Reviewing and evaluating the Group’s risks
financial statements
• Approving the annual budget and operating plan
• Selection, orientation and evaluation of directors

• Appropriate remuneration policies and practices
• Monitoring transformation and empowerment

• Balanced and transparent reporting to shareholders

• Approving the annual and interim financial results and
shareholder communications
• Approving the senior management structure,
responsibilities and succession plans
• Technology governance

Skills

The Board possesses extensive business experience and specialist skills across a range of sectors including
accounting, finance, retail and healthcare. This diversity enables them to provide balanced and independent advice
and judgement in the decision-making process.
The Group has a controlling shareholder with direct shareholder representation on the Board.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The role and duties of the non-executive chairman are separated from those of the CEO and are clearly defined.
The CEO, CFO, and Managing Director are the most senior decision-making executives in the Group. With the help
of relevant sub-committees they deliberate, take decisions or make recommendations on all matters of strategy
and operations. The decisions are referred to the Board or its relevant committee for final approval when required,
while in other cases the power to take decisions is delegated to the CEO, CFO and Managing Director.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

• Ensuring effective risk management and internal
controls

• Approving major capital projects, acquisitions or
divestments

2017 PERFORMANCE

The Board is responsible for the Group’s performance, its overall strategic direction, values and governance. It provides
the leadership required for the Group to meet its business objectives within the framework of its internal controls.

LEADERSHIP

The Board is committed to gender diversity and director appointment policies require director appointments to
appropriately address gender representation as per the change to the JSE Listings Requirements. Currently 25%
of the Board is female and the Board will proactively monitor the company’s performance in gender representation
which will include an annual review of the objectives set by the Board, and its progress in achieving them.

The Board is expected to meet at least four times a year. For any specific business issues that may come about
between scheduled meetings, additional meetings can be assembled to consider these issues.
Our Board-approved director appointment policy ensures a balance of power and authority within the Board
composition. Directors have no fixed term of appointment and will retire by rotation every three years. If available,
they are considered for re-appointment at the Annual General Meeting. The appointment of new directors is
subject to confirmation by shareholders at the first Annual General Meeting after their appointment.
Directors are entitled to seek independent professional advice at the company’s expense after consultation with
the chairman of the Board. No directors exercised this right during the year.

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Director appointment

47

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT CONTINUED
Access to information and professional advice

The directors have unrestricted access to all Group information, records, documents and property. Information is
distributed in a timely manner prior to Board meetings, to enable directors to adequately prepare and apply their minds.

Conflict of interest

Directors are required to declare any personal financial interest that pose a conflict of interest through a formal
disclosure process. This process will take place on a periodic basis. Where a conflict of interest may exist, directors
are required to excuse themselves from the meeting. The directors’ share dealing policy also requires a declaration
of interest.

Board and governance committee meetings and attendance

The following meetings (and attendance) were held from 18 November 2016 until the current date:
Director

Board

Audit and risk Nomination (2) Remuneration (2)

Social and ethics

IL Saltzman

2/2

2/2

–

–

1/1

LF Saltzman

2/2

–

–

–

1/1

RM Morais

2/2

2/2

–

–

–

LM Nestadt

2/2

–

–

–

–

JS Mthimunye

2/2

2/2

–

–

–

MJ Bowman

2/2

1/2

–

–

–

A Coovadiya

2/2

2/2

–

–

1/1

MSI Gani(1)

–

–

–

–

–

Other
attendees

Company
Secretary

Company Secretary,
Chief Financial Officer,
External auditors, internal
auditors and IT executive

(1)

Company Secretary

MSI Gani was appointed to the Board on 3 May 2017

Governance and operating committees
Nomination Committee

Current members: LM Nestadt (Chairman), JS Mthimunye, MJ Bowman and MSI Gani
The role of the committee is to assist the Board by:

• making recommendations regarding the appointment of new executive, non–executive and independent
directors, for its consideration and final approval;

• nominating successors to key positions in the Group as part of ensuring that a formal management succession
plan is in place;

• ensuring that the Board has the appropriate composition for it to execute its duties effectively and to comply with
the Code, the Act, the Listings Requirements and other applicable legislation;
• ensuring that directors are appointed through a formal and transparent process;
• determining whether the services of any director should be terminated;

• ensuring that induction and ongoing training and development of directors take place; and
• carrying out such other functions as the Board may request from time-to-time.

Remuneration Committee

Current members: LM Nestadt (Chairman), JS Mthimunye, MJ Bowman and MSI Gani
The role of the committee is to assist the Board to ensure that:

• the Group remunerates directors and senior management fairly and responsibly for their individual contributions
and performance;
• the disclosure of director and remuneration is accurate, complete and transparent;

• the company has a remuneration policy and philosophy that is aligned with its long-term business strategy, its
business objectives, its risk appetite and values;
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• ensure that contractual terms on termination of the Chief Executive Officer’s appointment and other Group
Executive committee members and any payments made, are fair to the individual and the Group, that failure is not
rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is fully recognised; and
• in determining such packages and arrangements, and in carrying out its duties under these terms of reference,
give due regard to any relevant legal requirements, the provisions and recommendations in King III and the
JSE Listings Requirements and the remuneration policy and philosophy is appropriately applied throughout
the Group.

LEADERSHIP

• within the terms of the agreed policy, the total individual remuneration package (including bonuses, incentive
payments, retention payments, share awards and any other benefits), of the Chief Executive Officer and, in
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer, the other members of the Group executive committee and any
other executive whose total remuneration is comparable to, or higher than, that of Group executive committee
members is determined;

Audit and Risk Committee

The role of the committee is to:

• assist the Board in discharging its duties relating to the safeguarding of assets and evaluation of internal control
frameworks and to ensure that financial risks are managed;

• evaluate and assess the adequacy and effectiveness of the established accounting, financial, compliance and
other internal control systems, which are consistent with the nature and complexity of risks inherent in the on and
off balance sheet activities of the company;
• consider the internal and external audit process and the accounting principles and policies of the company;

2017 PERFORMANCE

Current members: JS Mthimunye (Chairman), A Coovadiya, MSI Gani and MJ Bowman

• ensure the independence and effectiveness of the internal and external audit and compliance functions of the
company;

• ensure compliance with all applicable legal, regulatory and accounting standards in the preparation of fairly
presented financial statements and other required reports in respect of the company;
• contribute to a climate of discipline and control;

• ensure the integrity of information in the integrated report of the company’s activities; and
• evaluate and assist the Board with respect to the governance of risk.

Refer to Audit and Risk Committee Report in the audited financial statements.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

• ensure effective communication between internal audit, external audit, the Board, management, regulators and
shareholders;

Social and Ethics Committee

The role of the committee is to assist the Board with the oversight of sustainability, social and ethic matters
corporate social responsibility (CSR) relating to the company.
Refer to Social and Ethics Committee Report on page 58.

Compliance

The Group actively works to comply with relevant laws, regulations and company policies in all territories where it
operates.

Governance principles

We are committed to and fully endorse the principle of good corporate governance as recommended by King III
and in the JSE Listings Requirements. The Board is satisfied that the Group has complied with the substance of the
King III principles, except for items included on page 46.
Reporting frameworks were in line with the requirements of the International Integrated Reporting Framework and
the Companies Act of South Africa.

Regulatory compliance

All business units, departments and subsidiaries are required to comply with all applicable legislation and
regulations. Compliance risk is monitored by the Audit and Risk Committee and through the compliance
framework, which includes compliance reviews.
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Current members: A Coovadiya (Chairman), LF Saltzman, IL Saltzman and RM Morais
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Legal and regulatory environment

Legal and regulatory compliance is a core part of our corporate governance given the vast regulatory environment
in which we operate and the need to follow various legal and licence requirements. Although the outcomes of legal
proceedings, claims and actions instituted against the Group cannot be predicted, the Group is suitably resourced
to manage this process.
The Group has key management insurance policies that insures against liabilities they may incur in carrying out their
duties.
The Board is of the opinion that there is no current or pending legal action that will materially affect the operations
of the Group.

Company Secretary

All directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary, Mr W Green, who acts as a
channel between the Dis-Chem Board and the Group. He is not a director of the Group. The Company Secretary
is responsible for the flow of information to the Board and its committees, and for ensuring compliance with the
Board procedures.
In line with the JSE Listings Requirements, the qualifications and experience of the Company Secretary were
formally evaluated by the Nominations Committee and subsequently approved by the Board. The committee
specifically evaluated the objective nature of the role of the Company Secretary, confirming that he has no
affiliation or association to any single Board member, holds no directorship and provides independent advice to
the Board as a whole. The evaluation found that the Company Secretary is suitably qualified, experienced and fit
and proper to perform the function of Company Secretary and that an arm’s length relationship with the Board
is maintained. The appointment and removal of the Company Secretary is a matter for the Board and not the
executive management team.
The Company Secretary co-ordinates the induction programme for newly appointed directors as well as the annual
Board evaluation process.

Share dealings

The directors’ dealing policy governs directors’ dealings in Dis-Chem shares. All directors and Company
Secretaries must receive written approval from the chairman prior to buying or selling Dis-Chem shares.
The chairman is required to obtain approval from the Chairman of the Audit and Risk Committee before
undertaking any share dealings.
It is mandatory for directors to notify the Company Secretary of any dealings in the company’s shares.
This information is then disclosed on SENS within 24 hours of receipt of such information.
The Group operated a closed period policy in line with the JSE Listings Requirements. During closed period,
directors are prohibited from dealing in Dis-Chem shares. Parties who may have access to confidential or pricesensitive information are cautioned against the possibility of insider trading during these periods.
Embargoes can also be placed on share dealings at any other time if directors or executives have access to price
sensitive information which is not in the public domain.

Stakeholder relationships

The Group’s relevance to the market depends on meaningful engagement with all stakeholders to ensure
and maintain a good relationship. This in turn assists the Group to understand the expectations of shareholders
and minimise reputational risk. Financial and non-financial information is disseminated timeously and accurately
to all stakeholders.

Investor relations

The Group ensures effective dialogue with all shareholders, where practicable. Communications around Group
strategies and financial performance in a timely, relevant and balanced manner is key to ensure transparency,
objectiveness, and honesty. Regular communication assists the Group to improve shareholder relationships.
Shareholders, potential shareholders, analysts and other relevant parties are invited to presentations by the Group
after the announcement of their interim and final results. These presentations are published on the Dis-Chem
Group website. Care is exercised to ensure that all price sensitive information is released to all shareholders
and relevant parties at the same time in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements. Shareholders are also
encouraged to attend the Annual General Meeting (AGM) which provides an opportunity for shareholders to raise
pertinent questions and to interact with directors.

Sustainability

Dis-Chems’s direct impact on the environment is limited and we focus on implementing mechanisms to effectively
manage the Group’s utilities where applicable. This includes minimising our carbon footprint, energy and water
efficiency considerations, and recycling and control of water waste.
50

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

THIS IS DIS-CHEM

Accountability and control

Going concern

The Group’s financial statements have been prepared on a going-concern basis. The directors have reviewed the
Group’s budget and cash flow forecasts, and are satisfied that the Group is in a sound financial position with access
to sufficient borrowing facilities to meet its foreseeable cash requirements.

LEADERSHIP

The annual financial statements are based on appropriate accounting policies and the external auditors
independently examine the annual financial statements in accordance with International Standards of Auditing.
The Board is satisfied that the Group annual financial statements for the 2017 financial year fairly represents the
Group’s operational results and financial position.

Internal control and internal audit

The Dis-Chem Board is responsible for ensuring that an appropriate system of internal controls is maintained to
provide reasonable assurance that:
• losses arising from fraud and/or other illegal acts are minimised; and

• accounting records, financial statements and operating information are accurate, complete and fairly presented.
PwC was appointed as the Group’s internal auditors in March 2017, and will fulfil an assurance and consulting function,
and is mandated to provide independent and objective assurance on Dis-Chem’s system of internal controls. They will
employ a systematic and disciplined approach when evaluating the effectiveness of risk management, control and
governance processes. In addition to highlighting process improvements, Group Internal Audit’s activities will provide
assurance to Dis-Chem’s stakeholders that the organisation operates in a responsible manner.
Group Internal Audit reports to the Audit and Risk Committee and assists this committee in effectively discharging
the responsibilities delegated to it by the Dis-Chem Board. This is achieved through independent financial, IT,
compliance and operational process reviews.
IT plays a critical role in achieving the Group’s objectives and managing its risks. Integrating good governance into
the Group’s IT requirements ensures that our business practices are sustainable. IT governance is integrated into
the Group’s operations.

Ethics

Dis-Chem is committed to a policy of fair dealing and integrity in the conduct of their business. This commitment,
which is actively endorsed by the Board of Directors, is based on a fundamental belief that business should be
conducted honestly, fairly and legally. The directors expects all employees and other representatives to share its
commitment to high moral, ethical and legal standards.

It is the duty of all directors and all managers in the Group to ensure that the Group ethical standards and policies
are made known to all employees for whom they are responsible. Ultimately, however, it is up to each one of the
employees to adhere to Dis-Chem’s principles of honesty, integrity and fairness, and to perform their duties in
accordance with all laws and regulations.

Managing unethical behaviour

A number of mechanisms are in place for stakeholders to report irregularities such as alleged theft, or fraudulent,
corrupt or unethical behaviour, including unethical medical behaviour. These mechanisms are available to all
Dis‑Chem employees in South Africa and to the public, including suppliers and consumers.

Political party support

Whilst the Group supports the democracy in South Africa, it does not make financial donations to individual political
parties.
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As a responsible corporate citizen, Dis-Chem takes a zero-tolerance approach to theft, fraud and corruption.
The Group evaluates reported incidents of theft, fraud and corruption to determine the appropriate manner in
which these incidents should be investigated. All identified cases are reported to the South African Police Services
and, where appropriate, to the applicable registered bodies such as the HPCSA. Civil recoveries are pursued by
prejudiced business units where financially appropriate.

AUDITED ANNUAL
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Any employee who has questions regarding conduct in specific situations should obtain guidance from his or her
Manager, a Director or the CEO. Dis-Chem has established a Compliance Committee comprising the General
and IT, Manager: Human Capital and an Operations Manager to implement and monitor education and training
programmes for employees, to respond to inquiries from any employee regarding appropriate business practices
and to investigate any allegation of possible impropriety.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Governance of IT

2017 PERFORMANCE

• Dis-Chem’s assets are appropriately safeguarded and managed;
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REMUNERATION GOVERNANCE
Remuneration Committee

The role of the committee is to assist the Board to ensure that:

• the Group remunerates directors and senior management fairly and responsibly for their individual contributions
and performance;
• the disclosure of director and remuneration is accurate, complete and transparent;

• the company has a remuneration policy and philosophy that is aligned with its long term business strategy, its
business objectives, its risk appetite and values;

• within the terms of the agreed policy, the total individual remuneration package (including bonuses, incentive
payments, retention payments, share awards and any other benefits), of the Chief Executive Officer and, in
consultation with the Chief Executive Officer, the other members of the Group executive committee and any other
executive whose total remuneration is comparable to, or higher than, that of Group executive committee members
is determined;
• ensure that contractual terms on termination of the Chief Executive Officer’s appointment and other Group
executive committee members and any payments made, are fair to the individual and the Group, that failure is not
rewarded and that the duty to mitigate loss is fully recognised; and

• in determining such packages and arrangements, and in carrying out its duties under these terms of reference,
give due regard to any relevant legal requirements, the provisions and recommendations in King III and the JSE
Listings Requirements and the remuneration policy and philosophy is appropriately applied throughout the Group.

Non-binding advisory vote

The Group’s remuneration policy will be put to a non-binding advisory vote at the Annual General Meeting (AGM)
on 28 July 2017. This will allow shareholders to express their views on the policy adopted.

Directors’ remuneration summary

Non-executive directors

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

951

–

Executive directors

43 514

36 553

Total

44 465

36 553

REMUNERATION STRUCTURE

The Group’s remuneration policy has been designed to ensure that all employees across the Group are rewarded
appropriately for their contribution to the overall Group strategy. The Group’s philosophy is to attract, motivate and
retain the best people to ensure a workforce that is highly capable and motivated.
Remuneration is made up of the following financial elements:
• Guaranteed package

• Short-term incentives

• Long-term incentives (started in 2018 financial year)
Remuneration is made up of the following non-financial elements:
• Leave

• Learning and development
• Diversity and inclusiveness
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Short-term
incentive (STI)

Base and benefits

Bonus

Long-term incentive (LTI)
Share Appreciation
Rights (SAR)

Forfeitable Share
Plan (FSP)

Nature

Market-related level of
13th cheque
remuneration per specific and/or bonus
role and includes salary
and benefits

Participants share
in the growth in the
share price between
grant price and
exercise price, and
receive shares to
the value of that
appreciation

Participants have all
shareholders rights
(including dividends)
from date of award

Determined based on
role, market value, length
of service, company
performance and
employee’s personal
performance. Salaries
are also compared to
external benchmarks

Annual award to
tier 2 managers
and upwards.
Other permanent
employees can
benefit at the
discretion of the
Remuneration
Committee

Annual awards of
bonus shares are
awarded to regional
managers and
restricted shares to
selected pharmacists

Incentivise and
reward employees
for the achievement
of company and
personal short-term
performance
objectives

Benefits include:
retirement contribution
(based on number of
years of service); car or
travel allowance; medical
aid; staff discounts

Basis for
determination/
performance
conditions

Annual assessment is
performed and increased
are awarded in March
each year

All employees
receive a 13th
cheque

All employees from
a manager level
receive an additional
bonus

Align the long-term interest of employees
and shareholders, such that employees
are encouraged to consider the
long-term future of the business.
Retain high-performing employees

Dispensary/store
manager: KPA(4) x
(1)
TGP in May x number CEO: 30% of TGP
(5)
of cheques
MD: 25% of TGP
CFO: 25% of TGP

Exco: 22.5% of TGP
T3 managers:
30% of TGP

Bonus shares: 40%
to 100% of the bonus
earned under STI
Restricted shares:
15% of TGP

Three year vesting
period
Exercisable on
vesting date

Three-year vesting
period

Exercisable for three
years after vesting,
after which award
will lapse
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T2 managers:
Note: individual
18% of TGP
performance criteria
must be met in order HEPS threshold
of CPI
to receive a bonus
+ 1% growth
must be reached
(performance
criteria) and
individual
performance
conditions met
(employment
condition) before any
issue made

AUDITED ANNUAL
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Head office/
warehouse manager:
TGP(1) x Bonus pool
% (2) x Manager Tier
% (3)

Comprises bonus
shares and restricted
shares

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Attract, motivate and
retain the best people to
ensure a workforce that
is highly capable and
motivated

2017 PERFORMANCE

Design

LEADERSHIP

Guaranteed package
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Guaranteed package

Short-term
incentive (STI)

Base and benefits

Bonus

Long-term incentive (LTI)
Share Appreciation
Rights (SAR)

Method of
payment

Monthly payment after
13th cheque is paid
Shares will be issued
deducting contributions
in December and
from vesting date
to retirement funding and annual bonus in June until they lapse
medical scheme

Limit

n/a

n/a

Forfeitable Share
Plan (FSP)
Shares will be issued
on vesting date

Maximum number of shares that can be
allocated to one employee is 1% of issued
share capital

Maximum number of shares that can be
allocated to schemes is 5% of issued share
capital
(1) TGP – total guaranteed package
(2)	The bonus pool % is the total bonuses earned as a percentage of the total annual packages of all of the regional and store managers. The regional and store
managers earnings are structured in a manner which ensures profitability growth and therefore bonus affordability
(3)	Three management tiers have been created; each tier is linked to a range of percentages. The placement of employees into the tiers is primarily based on
the following two criteria:
– The level of responsibility linked to your role
– The ability that you have in your current role, to influence the profitability of the Group, through strategic decision making
(4) KPA’s, these are based on the following rankings:
– If you achieve your net profit budget, your KPA will be set at 3/3, i.e. 100%
– If you don’t achieve your net profit but you achieve your Turnover budget, your KPA will be set at 2/3, i.e. 66.67%
(5) Number of cheques is based on years of achievable targets capped at four years

ACTUAL REMUNERATION DURING THE CURRENT YEAR
Annual salary increase

The average annual performance-linked increase for employees, effective from 1 March 2016, was 8%. This increase
was lower than the average increase of the executive directors (being 42%) due to the directors previously earning
below market remuneration levels due to their entitlement to equity in the Group. This was adjusted in the current
year after a benchmarking exercise was completed.

Executive directors’ remuneration

The Remuneration and Nomination Committee has responsibility for the determination of specific remuneration
packages for each of the executive directors and the Chairman. The Remuneration Committee also considers the
bonuses, which are discretionary and based upon general economic variables, the performance of the company
and the individual’s performance and certain other employee benefits and schemes. No remuneration of any nature
shall be paid, increased or varied to any director without the prior approval of the remuneration function of the
Remuneration and Nomination Committee.
In terms of their respective service agreements, each executive director is entitled to a gross annual remuneration
package payable to him which is allocated towards (i) a base salary, (ii) pension fund contributions by the company
(iii) travel allowances and (iv) other benefits. In addition they are entitled to consideration for annual incentive bonus
payments based on the fulfilment of certain targets set by the Board. No such annual incentive bonuses were paid
to executive directors in the 2017 financial year. Going forward such annual incentive bonuses will be determined
by the Remuneration Committee which has responsibility for the determination of specific remuneration packages
and bonuses for each of the executive directors.
The service contracts of executive directors contain a three month notice period for termination of employment
(exclusive of termination for any reasons justifying summary dismissal in law) and all of the executive directors are
subject to restraints of trade.
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The following table provides an overview of the executive director’s remuneration for 2017:

Executive directors
IL Saltzman

LF Saltzman
RM Morais
SE Saltzman (alternate)
S Goetsch*
BI Epstein*

Other
benefits
R’000

Total
R’000

11 752

–

72

120

11 944

4 995

–

72

37

5 104

15

2 906

9 691

4 800
2 849

2 853

2 809

–

72

-

72

146

42

15

–

42

–

42

109

–

–

–

2 910

2 960

43 514

The following table provides an overview of the executive director’s remuneration for 2016:
Retirement
Salary and
and related
Other
allowances
Bonuses
benefits
benefits
2016
R’000
R’000
R’000
R’000

Total
R’000

42 602

–
-

456

–

* Resigned 13 October 2016

Executive directors

10 679

–

72

–

10 751

LF Saltzman

4 528

–

72

–

4 600

RM Morais

3 379

–

72

–

3 451

SE Saltzman

3 493

–

72

–

3 565

NM Hegarty

3 384

–

72

–

3 456

S Goetsch

3 542

–

72

–

3 614

BI Epstein

3 517

–

72

–

3 589

KS Sterling

3 383

–

72

–

3 455

–

–

72

–

72

35 905

–

648

–

36 553

L van der Watt
Total

Non-executive directors’ fees
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The non-executive directors have no fixed term of appointment except as rotation of directors is required by the
company’s Memorandum of Incorporation. In terms of their service agreements, non-executive directors who
wish to resign from the Board are required to give three months written notice to that effect. Each non-executive
director is entitled to fixed annual fee for their service to the company.
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IL Saltzman
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456

Total

–

42

5 018

2 909

L van der Watt*

–

9 763

14

KS Sterling*

2 853

–

2017 PERFORMANCE

NM Hegarty*

Retirement
and related
Bonuses
benefits
R’000
R’000

LEADERSHIP

2017

Salary and
allowances
R’000

55

REMUNERATION REPORT CONTINUED
The following table provides an overview of the non-executive director’s fees:

Non-executive directors
LN Nestadt #

MJ Bowman
A Coovadia

#

#

JS Mthimunye#
MSI Gani^
Total

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

625

–

72

–

119

–

135

–

–

–

951

–

Appointed 13 October 2016
^ Appointed 3 May 2017
#

The proposed fees for the 2018 financial year, subject to approval by shareholders at the AGM, are as follows:
Proposed fee for FY18

Board position
Chair: Board1
Non-executive director
Chair: Audit Committee
Member: Audit Committee
Chair: Remuneration and Nomination
Committee

–

Number of
anticipated
meetings
R

Total
fee for
meetings
R

Base
fee
R

Total
fee
R

–

2 670 000

2 670 000

4

260 592

–

260 592

3

125 430

–

125 430

–

61 944

4

41 810

4

65 148

41 810

247 776

167 240

–
–

247 776

167 240

Member: Remuneration and Nomination
Committee

22 428

3

67 284

–

67 284

Chair: Social and Ethics Committee

20 292

3

60 876

–

60 876

Member: Social and Ethics Committee
Chair: Special Committees
Member: Special Committees
1

56

Fee per
meeting
R

n/a

R6 500
per hour

n/a

R6 000
per hour

T he base fee relates to all meetings and therefore no additional fee is earned for the attendance of other committee meetings
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Direct and indirect shares held by the directors

The following table provides as overview of the direct and indirect shares held by the directors:

Director
LN Nestadt
MJ Bowman
A Coovadia
JS Mthimunye
IL and LF Saltzman
SE Saltzman

Direct
interest

Indirect
interest

Direct
interest

Indirect
interest

–

2 702 703

–

–

–

–

–

162 162

–

–

162 162

–

–

457 041 396

–

544 180 050

6 672 192

–

7 944 300

6 672 192

–

7 944 300

81 081

LM Nestaft, MJ Bowman, A Coovadia and JS Mthimunye acquired their shares in November 2016. IL Saltzman and
LF Saltzman sold 87 million shares while RM Morais and SE Saltzman each sold 1.3 million shares on listing.
There have been no changes to the directors interests between the end of the 2017 financial year and the date of
approval of the annual financial statements.

2017 PERFORMANCE

RM Morais

29 February 2016
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28 February 2017
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SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE REPORT
A Social and Ethics Committee was established by the Dis-Chem Group in terms of section 72 of the Companies
Act, 2008. The Social and Ethics Committee operates under a mandate from the Board and in accordance with its
terms of reference.
The Social and Ethics Committee is a formal sub-committee of the Board.
The Social and Ethics Committee monitors the activities of Dis-Chem and its subsidiary companies having regard to
any legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing codes of best practice as prescribed by law.
The Social and Ethics Committee will focus on ensuring sustainable social responsibility, ethics, health, safety and
transformation initiatives with specific emphasis on transformation re: ownership, procurement, Employment Equity
and skills development.

Composition

The Social and Ethics Committee comprises of the following:
A Coovadia

Chairperson – Social and Ethics Committee – Independent non-executive director

IL Saltzman

Chief Executive Officer

LF Saltzman

Managing Director

RM Morais

Chief Financial Officer – attends meetings by invitation

Meetings

The Social and Ethics Committee will meet at least three times a year unless additional meetings are required.
The first meeting of the committee was held on 9 June 2017.

Reporting

The Social and Ethics Committee Chairperson reports formally to the Board on the proceedings after each
meeting. The Chairperson will attend the Annual General Meeting to report and respond to any questions from
stakeholders regarding the Social and Ethics Committee.

Responsibilities

The mandate of the Social and Ethics Committee is to assist the Board in the monitoring of group activities, having
regard to any relevant legislation, other legal requirements or prevailing codes of best practice, with regard to
matters relating to:
• social and economic development relating to the 10 principles set out in the United Global Compact Principles,
the Organisation of Economics, Co-operation and Development (“OECD”) recommendations regarding corruption,
the Employment Equity Act and the Broad Based Black Economic Empowerment Act;
• good corporate citizenship in terms of the promotion of equality, prevention of unfair discrimination, reduction
of corruption, contribution to development of the communities in which the Group’s activities are predominately
conducted, sponsorship and charitable donations;
• the environment, health and public safety, and the impact of the Group’s activities and its products or services;
• consumer relationships, including the Group’s advertising, public relations and compliance with consumer
protection laws; and

• labour and employment with regard to the Group’s standing in terms of the International Labour Organisation
Protocol on decent work and working conditions, the Group’s employment relationships and its contributions
towards the educational development of its employees, drawing matters within it mandate to the attention of the
Board and reporting to shareholders at the Annual General Meeting on the matters within its mandate.

Anuschka Coovadia

Independent non-executive Chairman
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY
DIS-CHEM’S SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY PHILOSOPHY

The Dis-Chem Foundation Fund (the Foundation) was established in 2006 by company founders Ivan and Lynette
Saltzman, as the logical social outreach of the “Pharmacists who care” philosophy. The Foundation provides the
practical mechanism through which Dis-Chem can implement social support projects.

Under the direct supervision of Lynette Saltzman and Foundation Director Penny Stein, a team of qualified DisChem social workers and care-givers work closely with registered NGOs to support social upliftment initiatives
across South Africa.
In addition to numerous community projects, Dis-Chem works with selected national campaigns each year, while
also farming a permanent food garden at our Midrand head office and distribution centre.

Funding

2017 PERFORMANCE

THE DIS-CHEM FOUNDATION AIMS TO PROVIDE CARE AND SUPPORT TO
IMPROVE THE LIVES OF INDIVIDUALS WHILE RELIEVING THE BURDEN ON
COMMUNITIES, FAMILIES AND FRIENDS

LEADERSHIP

Corporate social responsibility (CSR) is an integral part of Dis-Chem’s corporate ethos. Our countrywide CSR
initiatives are not only about good corporate citizenry. These are more about giving back authentically to the
communities in which we operate. We consider these communities to be key stakeholders with whom we can
share the economic value we create.

The Dis-Chem Foundation is funded by a percentage of turnover through our Loyalty Benefits Programme for
customers.
Unlike the prescriptive criteria placed on CSR funding by many other corporates, Foundation investments are
aligned primarily to identified community needs. Dis-Chem takes a ‘community-first’ approach and evaluates all
requests for help, whether routed through retail store managers or received directly by Penny Stein. Requests for
funding are considered on their community merits within the ambit of the Foundation’s CSR budget. Each request
is evaluated for challenges, opportunities and its problem solving potential to the beneficiaries.
Every month, the Foundation receives numerous requests from communities throughout South Africa.

2017 Dis-Chem Foundation highlights

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Dis-Chem Food Garden
The Dis-Chem food garden at our Midrand head office, launched in 2014, has transformed formerly underutilised
land on the premises into measurable dividends for many Gauteng communities. The garden donates
approximately 1 000kg of fresh produce to 21 feeding schemes in Gauteng, on a rotational basis. It has also
enabled the upskilling of nine permanent farmers who manage the food garden, with a further four casual workers
also undergoing internship.
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Identifying beneficiaries
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CORPORATE SOCIAL RESPONSIBILITY CONTINUED
National campaigns
Dis-Chem sponsors one or two national projects each year. In 2016, the Foundation funded a second year of the
‘Million Comforts’ campaign. In conjunction with Caring4Girls, this social programme distributes sanitary towels to
underprivileged girls. This practical initiative targets girls between the ages of 12 and 18 in disadvantaged areas.
As part of this programme, Dis-Chem installed branded drop-bins in all stores to encourage customers to donate
sanitary towels during a six-week campaign, which ran between June 14 and 24 July 2016. Three major suppliers,
Always, Lil-lets and Stayfree, committed to matching any public donations with an equal contribution of their own
products. The campaign far surpassed its target, making the 2016 Million Comforts campaign an outstanding success.
In total, over 4.6 million sanitary pads were donated and distributed. This campaign is again running in June 2017.
The crippling South African drought of 2015/16 caused unprecedented water scarcity and deprivation across many
communities. The Foundation’s ‘Operation Hydrate’ was launched to deliver water to drought-stricken areas
throughout the country. Working closely with the Department of Water Affairs to identify problem areas, volunteers
assisted with local water collection and distribution in four provinces, as well as preparing bulk water loads for
transport to the more isolated communities. In total, Operation Hydrate delivered trucks and tankers filled with
water and over 2 million litres of water to various communities across South Africa.

Foundation projects

Dis-Chem attempts to invest in each underprivileged community where we have a presence. These initiatives range
from disability sponsorships, investing in schools and other deserving causes. A particularly appropriate example is
the purchase of medical buses that provide clinical services to communities in the Western Cape.
Foundation project highlights during the reporting period include:
“Random Acts of Kindness”, a monthly initiative on radio stations 94.7, 702 Talk Radio, Cape Talk and KFM that
encourages listeners to nominate charities or other organisations in desperate need of support
The East Coast Radio initiative, through which local organisations are given monetary or product assistance,
ranging in value from R60 000 up to R120 000
Smile Week, sponsored by the Dis-Chem Foundation, has given 24 children reconstructive facial/cleft
palate urgery
65 000 condoms donated to regular beneficiaries – Afrika Tikkun and Imbumba Foundation
Lead SA Heroes Campaign, where four recent participants each won R250 000 from the Foundation
Vaccinations and immunisations to the value of R95 000
Mobile clinics, providing medical, optometry and dentistry services to school children in the Western Cape.
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Foundation beneficiaries

Regular beneficiaries include, among many others:

Assists child headed households

Wits Hospice

Comforts terminally ill patients

Union of Jewish Woman Soup
Kitchen

Feeding the sick at clinics

Little Eden

Caring for mentally and physically disabled children

Topsy Foundation

Assists HIV-affected children, woman and men in rural areas

Rape Crisis Helderberg

Supports abused woman and children

Cotlands

Caring for orphans and vulnerable children

Kwaggaspoort Reddingsdaad

Aiding squatter camps north of Pretoria

Walter Sisulu Environmental Centre

Educating children on ecosystems environmental preservation

Afrika Tikkun

Improving lives from cradle to career

Ububele

Learning centre with a focus on emotional development for children
under seven years old

Super Tutor Programme

Assists learners with extra tutoring

Forest Town School

Supports children with special needs

DL Link

Caring for oncology patients and their family

Robin Hood Foundation

Assisting less fortunate people in KwaZulu-Natal

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Lonely Road Foundation

2017 PERFORMANCE
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STATEMENT OF DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES AND
APPROVAL OF THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the Group and company’s audited
annual financial statements of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited, comprising the statements of financial position at
28 February 2017, and the statements of comprehensive income, changes in equity and statements of cash flows for
the year then ended, and the notes to the financial statements which include a summary of significant accounting
policies and other explanatory notes, prepared in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards
(IFRS) as issued by the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), its interpretations issued by the IFRS
Interpretations Committee (IFRIC), the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices
Committee and Financial Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council (FRSC), the JSE
Listings Requirements and the Companies Act of South Africa. The annual financial statements are therefore based
upon appropriate accounting policies that present fairly the financial position, financial performance and cash flows
of the company and the Group, consistently applied and supported by reasonable and prudent judgements and
estimates.
The directors are required by the Companies Act of South Africa, to maintain adequate accounting records and
are responsible for the content and integrity of the Group and company annual financial statements and related
financial information included in this report. It is their responsibility to ensure that the Group and company annual
financial statements fairly present the state of affairs of the Group and company as at the end of the financial year
and the results of its operations and cash flows for the period then ended.
The directors acknowledge that they are ultimately responsible for the system of internal financial controls
established by the Group and company and place considerable importance on maintaining a strong control
environment. To enable the directors to meet these responsibilities, the board of directors sets standards for
internal controls aimed at reducing the risk of error or loss in a cost-effective manner. The standards include the
proper delegation of responsibilities within a clearly defined framework, effective accounting procedures and
adequate segregation of duties to ensure an acceptable level of risk. These controls are monitored throughout
the Group and company and all employees are required to maintain the highest ethical standards in ensuring the
Group and company’s business is conducted in a manner that in all reasonable circumstances is above reproach.
The focus of risk management in the Group and company is on identifying, assessing, managing and monitoring
all known forms of risk across the Group and company. While operating risk cannot be fully eliminated, the Group
and company endeavours to minimise it by ensuring that appropriate infrastructure, controls, systems and ethical
behaviour are applied and managed within predetermined procedures and constraints.
The directors are of the opinion, based on the information and explanations given by management that the system
of internal controls provides reasonable assurance that the financial records may be relied on for the preparation of
the Group and company annual financial statements. However, any system of internal financial controls can provide
only reasonable, and not absolute, assurance against material misstatement or loss.
The directors have reviewed the Group and company’s cash flow forecast for the year to 28 February 2018 and
beyond, and other appropriate information. The directors have also considered forecasts and budgets for
a 12-month period from the approval of these financial statements. In the light of this review and the current
financial position, they are satisfied that the Group and company have access to adequate resources to continue in
operational existence for the foreseeable future, and are thus considered it to be a going-concern.
The external auditors are responsible for independently auditing and reporting on the Group and company annual
financial statements. The Group and company annual financial statements have been audited by the company’s
external auditors and their report is presented on pages 71 to 73.
The annual financial statements set out on pages 74 to 126, were approved by the board of directors on 23 June
2017 and were signed on its behalf by:

Ivan Leon Saltzman

Chief Executive Officer
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Rui Manuel Morais

Chief Financial Officer
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In terms of section 88(e) of the Companies Act of South Africa, No.71 of 2008 (the Act), as amended, I,
Whitney Green, in my capacity as company Secretary of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited, confirm that, to the best
of my knowledge and belief, in respect of the year under review, Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited has filed with the
Companies and Intellectual Property Commission all such returns and notices as are required of a public company
in terms of the Act and that all such returns and notices appear to be true, correct and up to date.

THIS IS DIS-CHEM

COMPANY SECRETARY CERTIFICATION

Whitney Green

Company Secretary
2017 PERFORMANCE

23 June 2017
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REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
for the year ended 28 February 2017

Review of activities

Main business and operations

The company is engaged in the retailing and wholesale of affordable healthcare products and pharmaceuticals.
On 18 November 2016, the Group listed on the Johannesburg Stock Exchange.
The operating results and state of affairs of the Group and company are fully set out in the attached annual financial
statements and do not, in our opinion, require further comments. Additional information is also available in the
integrated report on the Dis-Chem website.

Going concern

The annual financial statements have been prepared on the basis of accounting policies applicable to a goingconcern. This basis presumes that funds will be available to finance future operations and that the realisation of
assets and settlement of liabilities, contingent obligations and commitments will occur in the ordinary course
of business. The directors have reviewed and considered all relevant information to support their view that the
Group and company is a going concern, and will continue to operate as such in the foreseeable future.

Authorised and issued share capital

On 30 September 2016, a 150-for-1 share split took place and therefore increased the number of shares in issue to
794 446 200.
In addition, during the current year 261 135 336 shares were issued for R4.8 billion and 196 307 863 shares were
repurchased for R3.6 billion.
During the prior year, 4 084 187 (before the 150-for-1 split) shares were issued for R1.2 billion to the current
shareholders in proportion to their existing shareholding prior to the issue through a recapitalisation of shares.
Refer to note 18 for the share capital analysis.

Dividends

In preparation for listing, as part of a capital restructure, dividends amounting to R870 million were declared and
paid by the company to shareholders on 30 March 2016.
A final dividend of 7.3 cents per share or R63 million was approved by the directors on 17 May 2017. The dividend
was paid on 5 June 2017 to shareholders registered on 2 June 2017.
In the prior year, dividends amounting to a total of R777 million were declared and paid by the company to
shareholders in three separate declarations on 29 May 2015, 26 June 2015 and 29 February 2016 amounting
to R59 million, R88 million and R630 million respectively.
Dividends amounting to a total of R910 million (2016: R1 038 million) were declared and paid by the Group to
shareholders during the year. The difference between the company and Group dividend, represent dividends paid
by the subsidiaries to shareholders.
Refer to note 25 for the dividend per share analysis.

Events after reporting period

The directors are not aware of any additional material matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial
year up to the date of this report that would require amendment or additional disclosure in these annual financial
statements, except that disclosed in note 32.

Special resolutions

Special resolutions passed during the year:
Special resolution 1: Authorisation of the public company conversion from a private company
Special resolution 2: Authorisation of the share capital conversion (1-to-150 split)
Special resolution 3: Authorisation of the adoption of the new Memorandum of Incorporation
Special resolution 4: Authorisation to allot and issue up to 42 963 684 ordinary no par value shares in terms of long
term incentive plan (this plan has not been implemented at year end).
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Borrowing limitations

In terms of the Memorandum of Incorporation of the companies within the Group, the directors may exercise all the
powers of the Group to borrow money, as they consider appropriate.
LEADERSHIP

Subsidiary companies/Group structure

Refer to note 4 in the annual financial statements.

Directors
Independent non-executive directors
African)
African)
African)
African)
African)

Executive directors
IL Saltzman
LF Saltzman
RM Morais
SE Saltzman
BI Epstein
SRN Goetsch
NM Hegarty
KS Sterling
LLS van der Watt

(South African)
(South African)
(South African)
(South African)
(South African)
(South African)
(South African)
(South African)
(South African)

(Appointed
(Appointed
(Appointed
(Appointed
(Appointed

13 October 2016)
13 October 2016)
13 October 2016)
13 October 2016)
3 May 2017)

(Alternate for LF Saltzman)
(Resigned 13 October 2016)
(Resigned 13 October 2016)
(Resigned 13 October 2016)
(Resigned 13 October 2016)
(Resigned 13 October 2016)

Directors’ interest in shares and contracts

There are no material contracts involving directors’ interests except for the lease contract between Dis-Chem
Distribution Proprietary Limited and Columbia Falls 7 Proprietary Limited (refer to notes 24 and 29).
Direct and indirect shares held by the directors as at 28 February 2017 are as follows:

LM Nestadt
MJ Bowman
A Coovadia
JS Mthimunye
IL Saltzman and LF Saltzman
RM Morais
SE Saltzman

Indirect
interest

–
81 081
–
–
–
–
–

2 702 703
–
162 162
162 162
457 041 396
6 672 192
6 672 192

On listing LM Nestadt, MJ Bowman, A Coovadia and JS Mthimunye acquired their shares. IL Saltzman and
LF Saltzman sold 87 million shares while RM Morais and SE Saltzman each sold 1.3 million shares on listing.

Secretary
WT Green

Registered office
23 Stag Road
Midrand
1685

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

There have been no changes to the directors’ interests between the end of the 2017 financial year and the date of
approval of the annual financial statements.
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LM Nestadt
MJ Bowman
A Coovadia
JS Mthimunye
MSI Gani
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT
The Audit and Risk Committee is constituted as a committee of the Dis-Chem Board in accordance with the
company’s memorandum of incorporation, and section 84(4)(c) of the Companies Act, 2008. The committee has a
documented terms of reference under which it operates and which has been approved by the Board. This report
is presented to shareholders in compliance with the requirements of the Companies Act and the King Code of
Governance Principles (“King III”).

Composition

The committee comprises of four directors, with suitable qualifications, all of whom are independent non-executive
directors of the company. The following independent non-executive directors served on the committee during the
financial year under review:
•

JS Mthimunye (Chairman)

•

A Coovadia

•
•

MJ Bowman

Mr MSI Gani (appointed on 3 May 2017)

The executive directors, external audit, internal audit and senior management have a standing invitation to attend
meetings of the committee. The committee also meets separately with the external auditors, internal auditors and
senior management as required.
At each annual general meeting the Board shall present the shareholders with at least three suitable candidates
from amongst the independent non-executive directors, on recommendation by the Nomination Committee, for
election as committee members. The Board shall have the power at all times to appoint, remove and replace any
member from the committee.

Role and responsibilities of the committee

The committee has the following specific responsibilities:

Integrated reporting

The committee oversees integrated reporting, and in particular the committee must:
• have regard to all factors and risks that may impact on the integrity of the integrated report;

• review the annual financial statements, interim reports, preliminary or provisional result announcements,
summarised integrated information, any other intended release of price-sensitive information, circulars and
prospectuses, trading statements and similar documents;
• comment in the annual financial statements on the financial statements, the accounting practices and the
effectiveness of the internal financial controls of the company;

• consider the frequency for issuing interim results and whether the external auditors should perform assurance
procedures on the interim results;
• review the disclosure of sustainability issues in the integrated report to ensure that it is reliable and does not
conflict with the financial information;

• recommend to the Board the engagement of an external assurance provider on material sustainability issues; and
• recommend the integrated report for approval by the Board.

Combined assurance

The committee ensures that a combined assurance model is applied to provide a coordinated approach to all
assurance activities, and in particular the committee should:
• ensure that the combined assurance received is appropriate to address all the significant risks facing the company
via suitable mitigating controls;
• provide an effective counterbalance to executive management, thereby upholding the independence of internal
and external assurance providers, to enhance effectiveness; and
• monitor the relationship between the external assurance providers and the company.
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Finance function and financial director
The committee:

• considers and satisfies itself as to the suitability of the expertise and experience of the financial director every year
and confirm this in the integrated report.

External audit

The Committee is responsible for recommending the appointment of the external auditor and to oversee the
external audit process and in this regard the committee:

LEADERSHIP

• reviews the expertise, resources and experience of the company’s finance function, and disclose the results of the
review in the integrated report; and

• nominates the external auditor (a registered auditor), who in the opinion of the committee, is independent of the
company, for appointment by the shareholders;
• approves the terms of engagement and remuneration for the external audit engagement;

• ensures that the appointment of the auditor complies with the provisions of the Act and any other legislation
relating to the appointment of auditors;

• defines a policy for non-audit services and pre-approve the contracts for non-audit services to be rendered by the
external auditor;
• ensures that there is a process for the committee to be informed of any issues identified and reported by the
external auditor; and
• reviews the quality and effectiveness of the external audit process.

Internal audit

2017 PERFORMANCE

• monitors and report on the independence of the external auditor in the annual financial statements;

The committee is responsible for overseeing the internal audit function, and in particular the committee:

• reviews and approves the internal audit plan;

• annually reviews and approves the internal audit charter;

• receive and deal appropriately with concerns or complaints, including those on its initiative relating to the
accounting practices and internal audit of the company; the content or auditing of the company’s financial
statements; the internal financial controls of the company or any related matter;
• review and confirm the independence of the internal audit function on an annual basis; and

• ensure that the internal audit function is subject to an independent quality review, as and when the committee
determines it appropriate.
The committee is an integral component of the risk management process and specifically the committee must
oversee financial reporting risks; internal financial controls; fraud risks as it relates to financial reporting; and IT risks
as it relates to financial reporting. The committee performs all the functions necessary to fulfil its risk management
role and including the following:
• ensuring the establishment of an independent risk function at a Group level;

• overseeing the development and annual review of a policy and plan for risk management to recommend for
approval to the Board;

• monitoring implementation of the policy and plan for risk management taking place by means of risk management
systems and processes;

AUDITED ANNUAL
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Risk management
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• is responsible for the appointment, performance assessment and/or dismissal of the head of internal audit or the
outsourced service provider;

• making recommendations to the Board concerning the levels of tolerance and appetite and monitoring that risks
are managed within the levels of tolerance and appetite as approved by the Board;
• ensures that risk management assessments are performed on a continuous basis and at least once a year;
• ensures that continuous risk monitoring by management takes place;

• expresses the committee’s formal opinion to the Board on the effectiveness of the system and process of risk
management;

• reviews reporting concerning risk management that is to be included in the integrated report for it being timely,
comprehensive and relevant; and

SHAREHOLDER
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• ensures that management considers and implements appropriate risk responses;

• ensures that a risk register is maintained by management and provided to the Board regularly.
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AUDIT AND RISK COMMITTEE REPORT CONTINUED
Financial reporting and financial control
The committee:

• evaluates the adequacy and effectiveness of the accounting policies adopted by the company in terms of IFRS,
JSE Listings Requirements and other legal requirements;
• considers the adequacy and clarity of disclosures in the financial statements ;

• reviews the effectiveness of financial management and the quality of internal accounting control systems and
reports produced by financial management;

• concludes and reports annually to stakeholders and the Board on the effectiveness of internal financial controls;
• reviews the impact of new financial systems, tax and litigation matters on financial reporting;

• reviews the company’s interim and audited annual financial statements, summarised financial information interim
and preliminary announcements, dividend announcements, and all financial information, including non-financial
information in the integrated report, for distribution to shareholders and the general public, prior to submission to
the Board or publication and confirm that the annual financial statements present a balanced and understandable
assessment of the company’s position, performance and prospects; and
• reviews the basis on which the company has been determined a going concern and make a recommendation to
the Board.

Evaluation of Chief Financial Officer and finance function

The committee is satisfied as to the expertise, resources and experience of the company’s finance division and the
appropriateness of the experience and expertise of the Chief Financial Officer. It is satisfied that the composition of
the finance function meets the Group’s requirements.

Independence of external auditors

The committee appraised the independence, quality and effectiveness of the external audit function. Part of
this process was to obtain confirmation from the external auditors that the firm, partner and staff responsible for
the audit comply with all legal and professional requirements in regard to independence. The committee also
approved the fees paid to the external auditors.
The committee confirmed its satisfaction with the independence and level of service rendered by the external
auditor, Ernst & Young Inc., for the 2017 financial year.

Policy on non-audit services

Non-audit services provided by the external auditors in the current financial year related to the listing of the
company and amounted to R9.8 million. This fee was approved by the Audit Committee. The committee
subsequently formulated a policy to manage and approve non-audit services.

Execution of functions of the Audit Committee

The committee is satisfied that, in respect of the period under review, it has conducted its affairs and discharged its
duties and responsibilities in accordance with its terms of reference, the Companies Act and King III.

J Mthimunye
Audit and Risk Committee Chairman
23 June 2017
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
To the Shareholders of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited

Report on the Audit of the Consolidated and Separate Financial Statements
Opinion

In our opinion, the accompanying consolidated and separate annual financial statements present fairly, in
all material respects, the consolidated and separate financial position of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited as at
28 February 2017, and its consolidated and separate financial performance and its consolidated and separate
cash flows for the year then ended in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) and
the requirements of the Companies Act of South Africa and the JSE Listing Requirements.
We conducted our audit in accordance with International Standards on Auditing (ISAs). Our responsibilities under
those standards are further described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated and
Separate Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent in accordance with the Independent
Regulatory Board for Auditors Code of Professional Conduct for Registered Auditors (IRBA Code), the International
Federation of Accountants’ Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (IFAC code) and other independence
requirements applicable to performing the audit of the financial statements of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited.
We have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the IRBA code, IFAC code and in accordance
with other ethical requirements applicable to performing an audit of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Basis for opinion

LEADERSHIP

We have audited the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited (the
Group) set out on pages 74 to 126, which comprise the statements of financial position as at 28 February 2017, and
the statement of comprehensive income, the statements of changes in equity and statements of cash flows for the
year then ended, and notes to the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

Key audit matters

Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key matter

Supplier rebates (Group)

There are therefore a number of agreements which are
in progress at the financial year-end and for which final
settlement will only occur at the end of the agreement
or at a future point.

Significant time is therefore required to assess the
completeness and accuracy of the source data and to
obtain the evidence of all agreements in place at year-end.

• on a sample basis we selected invoices and
debit notes raised post year-end to test the
completeness of accrued supplier income at
28 February 2017; and

• in addition we tested the recoverability of
the amounts due at the year-end by agreeing
the amounts to subsequent settlement from
suppliers.
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There are also various types of rebate agreements which
differ in their targets, percentages applied and relate to
different periods, for each supplier. The calculation of these
accruals are managed centrally and calculated manually.

to the amount recognised in the financial
statements;
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As described in notes 16 and 17 to the Financial Statements, In respect of the receivable recognised/accrued
the Group recognises a reduction in cost of sales as a result of supplier income for in progress rebate agreements:
amounts receivable from suppliers. The reduction primarily
• on a sample basis we inspected the rebate terms
comprises contributions received in relation to promotions
in the agreement and agreed them to inputs
in the Retail business, strategic volume moves and annual
used in the calculation;
volume-based rebates.
• on a sample basis we vouched the sales volumes
to those per the accounting records and
The majority of these contributions tend to be small in unit
considered whether the amounts being used
value but high in volume. The agreements include those
related to the correct period per the agreement;
which span relatively short periods of time but also and to
a lesser extent annual agreements whose timing does not
• we tested the arithmetical accuracy of the
coincide with the company’s year-end.
calculation and agreed the amount calculated

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most significance in our audit of
the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated and separate annual financial statements as a whole, and in forming our
opinion thereon, and our response to each matter below does not represent a separate opinion on each of these
matters.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT CONTINUED
To the Shareholders of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited
Key audit matter

How our audit addressed the key matter

Acquisition of minority interest in subsidiaries
Dis-Chem acquired the non-controlling interests in nine
of its partner stores on listing on the Johannesburg Stock
Exchange (JSE) as disclosed in note 23.

Our audit procedures to test the accounting for the
transaction included:

• inspecting the purchase prices which were paid
through the issue of Dis-Chem shares and/or
We focused on this area due to the material nature of the
cash and inspecting the contract clauses in the
acquisitions to the Group as well as the judgements and
signed sale and purchase agreement;
assumptions applied in determining the upfront and deferred
consideration paid/to be paid to each of the respective
• evaluating the accounting treatment in regards to
partner stores. The deferred consideration is based on the
IFRS 10, “Consolidated Financial Statements”;
following key assumptions:
• evaluating the calculation to determine the
• performance targets being reached over a five-year
deferred consideration payable including
period; and
considering the reasonability of the discount rate
which was used; and
• discount rate applied to the projected cash flows and the
interest expense associated with the unwinding of the
liability.

• evaluating the consolidation entries in
connection with the acquisition to determine
whether the accounting was appropriate
including the treatment of the non-controlling
interest.

Other information

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information comprises the directors’ report,
the Audit Committee’s report and the Company Secretary’s certificate as required by the Companies Act of South
Africa, which we obtained prior to the date of this report, and the annual report, which is expected to be made
available to us after that date.
Our opinion on the consolidated and separate financial statements does not cover the other information and we
do not express an audit opinion or any form of assurance conclusion thereon.
In connection with our audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements, our responsibility is to read
the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated and separate financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or otherwise appears to be
materially misstated. If, based on our work we have performed on the other information obtained prior to the date
of this auditor’s report, we conclude that there is a material misstatement of this other information, we are required
to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of directors for the consolidated and separate financial statements

The directors are responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated and separate annual
financial statements in accordance with International Financial Reporting Standards and the requirements of the
Companies Act of South Africa, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to enable the
preparation of consolidated and separate financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether
due to fraud or error.
In preparing the consolidated and separate annual financial statements, the directors are responsible for assessing
the Group’s ability to continue as a going-concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going-concern and
using the going-concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease
operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Auditor’s responsibilities for the audit of the consolidated and separate financial statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated and separate annual financial
statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s
report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an
audit conducted in accordance with ISAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements
can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these consolidated and separate
financial statements.
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As part of an audit in accordance with ISAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

• obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Group’s internal control;

LEADERSHIP

• identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated and separate annual financial statements,
whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit
evidence that is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion,
forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control;

• evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.;

• evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated and separate annual financial
statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated and separate annual financial statements
represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that achieves fair presentation; and

We communicate with the directors, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the audit and
significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.
We also provide the directors with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements regarding
independence, and to communicate with them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought
to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on other legal and regulatory requirements

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is Derek Engelbrecht (Director
and Registered Auditor).
In terms of the IRBA Rule published in Government Gazette Number 39475 dated 4 December 2015, we report that
Ernst & Young Inc. has been the auditor of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited for eleven years.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

From the matters communicated with the directors, we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated and separate annual financial statements of the current period and are therefore
the key audit matters. We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should not be
communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to
outweigh the public interest benefits of such communication.

CORPORATE
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• obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of the entities or business activities
within the Group to express an opinion on the consolidated and separate annual financial statements. We are
responsible for the direction, supervision and performance of the Group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

2017 PERFORMANCE

• conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going-concern basis of accounting and, based on
the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going-concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the consolidated and
separate annual financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions
are based on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going-concern;

Director: Derek Engelbrecht
SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

102 Rivonia Road
Johannesburg
Gauteng
South Africa
2146
23 June 2017
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COMPANY AND GROUP STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE
INCOME
for the year ended 28 February 2017

Company
2017
R’000
Revenue

7 11 700 870

Turnover
Cost of sales

7

Gross profit
Other income
Other expenses
Transaction costs for listing

7
8

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

10 045 549 17 897 313

15 508 284

11 070 211
(8 118 479)

9 624 054 17 268 475 15 061 293
(7 751 942) (13 059 154) (11 534 533)

2 951 732
611 134
(2 653 689)
(8 074)

1 872 112 4 209 321
414 927
604 861
(2 211 076) (3 679 386)
–
(8 074)

3 526 760
439 676
(3 059 758)
–

Operating profit
Net financing costs

8

901 103
(129 794)

75 963
(13 878)

1 126 722
(225 240)

906 678
(89 151)

– Finance income
– Finance costs

9
9

19 525
(149 319)

6 568
(20 446)

23 977
(249 217)

7 315
(96 466)

–

Share of profit from associates
Profit before taxation
Taxation

8
10

Total comprehensive income for the year, net
of tax
Profit attributable to:
– Equity holders of the parent
– Non-controlling interests
Earning per share (cents)
– Basic
– Diluted

74

Group

–

501

344

771 309
(188 456)

62 085
(9 073)

901 983
(246 871)

817 871
(242 116)

582 853

53 012

655 112

575 755

612 346
42 766

512 775
62 980

75.0
75.0

212.0
212.0
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as at 28 February 2017

Company

Group
2016
R’000

2 224 426

1 530 437

1 191 740

1 064 929

282 839
8 752
90 789
1 842 046
–

225 980
13 839
67 644
1 221 508
1 466

995 401
40 310
156 029
–
–

918 979
35 253
108 762
–
1 935

2 032 063

1 891 899

4 704 921

4 104 904

1 183 997
428 111
153 497
–
266 458

1 103 114
297 383
182 633
52 421
256 348

3 233 911
1 091 901
72 270
12 141
294 698

2 806 572
767 807
198 672
58 644
273 209

Total assets

4 256 489

3 422 336

5 896 661

5 169 833

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES
Equity and reserves

1 370 235

499 954

1 106 902

722 566

6 140 554
(23 207)
(4 747 112)

1 352 074
(23 207)
(828 913)

6 140 554
(990 991)
(4 042 661)

1 352 074
(990 991)
361 483

ASSETS
Non-current assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred taxation
Investment in subsidiaries
Investment in associates

12
13
14
15
15

Current assets
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable
Taxation receivable
Cash and cash equivalents

16
17
20
28.3
28.4

Share capital
Common control reserve
Retained (loss)/earnings

18

Non-controlling interests
Total equity
Non-current liabilities
24
26
23
20

Current liabilities
19
21
22
23
24
20
28.3
28.4

Total equity and liabilities

23 581

117 117

1 370 235

499 954

1 130 483

839 683

852 895

121 594

1 522 378

822 551

–
132 586
73 309
647 000

–
121 594
–
–

622 907
179 162
73 309
647 000

651 679
170 872
–
–

2 033 359

2 800 788

3 243 800

3 507 599

1 442 966
99 290
102 835
24 003
–
355 724
8 541
–

1 115 271
82 912
79 544
–
–
90 571
–
1 432 490

2 641 215
125 391
95 364
24 003
2 390
173 659
14 719
167 059

1 754 293
102 441
77 026
–
2 541
27 026
14 564
1 529 708

4 256 489

3 422 336

5 896 661

5 169 833

Net asset value per share (WANOS)

(cents)

138.43

347.22

Net asset value per share (actual shares at
year-end)

(cents)

131.56

105.69
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Trade and other payables
Employee-related obligations
Deferred revenue
Contingent consideration
Finance lease obligation
Loans payable
Taxation payable
Bank overdraft

–

AUDITED ANNUAL
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Finance lease liability
Operating lease obligation
Contingent consideration
Loans payable/receivable

–

CORPORATE
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2017
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

2016
R’000

LEADERSHIP

2017
R’000

Notes

THIS IS DIS-CHEM

COMPANY AND GROUP STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

75

COMPANY STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 28 February 2017

Share
capital
R’000
(Note 18)

76

Retained
earnings/
(loss)
R’000

Common
control
reserve
R’000

Total
R’000

Balance at 28 February 2015
Total comprehensive income for the year
Shares issued during the year
Dividends paid (note 25)

199 101
–
1 152 973
–

(104 867)
53 012
–
(777 058)

(23 207)
–
–
–

71 027
53 012
1 152 973
(777 058)

Balance at 29 February 2016

1 352 074

(828 913)

(23 207)

499 954

Total comprehensive income for the year
Shares issued during the year
Capitalised share costs for listing
Shares repurchased during the year
Dividends paid (note 25)

–
582 853
4 830 774
–
(42 294)
–
– (3 631 052)
–
(870 000)

Balance at 28 February 2017

6 140 554

(4 747 112)
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–
–
–
–
–
(23 207)

582 853
4 830 774
(42 294)
(3 631 052)
(870 000)
1 370 235
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GROUP STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
for the year ended 28 February 2017

Balance at 28 February 2015
Total comprehensive income for the year
Recapitalisation of reserves
Dividends paid (note 25)

199 101
–
1 152 973
–

Balance at 29 February 2016

1 352 074

Common
control
reserve
R’000

857 111
512 775
–
(1 008 403)

161 982
–
(1 152 973)
–

361 483

(990 991)

Total comprehensive income for the year
Dividends paid (note 25)
Acquisition of non-controlling interests
(note 4)
Acquisition of subsidiary (note 5)
Shares issued during the year
Capitalised share costs for listing
Shares repurchased during the year

612 346
(870 000)

–
–

–
(515 438)
–
–
4 830 774
–
(42 294)
–
– (3 631 052)

–
–
–
–
–

Balance at 28 February 2017

6 140 554

(4 042 661)

(990 991)

Noncontrolling
interest
R’000
83 346
62 980
–
(29 209)

Total
R’000
1 301 540
575 755
–
(1 037 612)

117 117

839 683

42 766
(39 927)

655 112
(909 927)

(100 885)
(616 323)
4 510
4 510
– 4 830 774
–
(42 294)
– (3 631 052)
23 581

1 130 483

2017 PERFORMANCE

–
–

Retained
earnings
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Share
capital
R’000
(Note 18)
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COMPANY AND GROUP STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
for the year ended 28 February 2017

Company
Notes
Cash flow from operating activities
Cash inflow from trading operations
Movement in working capital
Finance income received
Finance costs paid
Taxation paid
Dividends paid
Dividends received

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

(595 283)

159 160

985 155
228 938
19 525
(133 968)
(150 638)
(870 000)
73 540

153 990
25 162
6 568
(20 446)
(26 952)
(777 058)
43 453

1 276 127
218 460
23 977
(201 997)
(247 480)
(909 927)
–

991 682
(326 868)
7 315
(66 327)
(236 502)
(1 037 612)
–

(217 658)

(159 026)

(221 539)

(142 892)

12/13
12/13

(30 352)
(130 645)

(31 031)
(131 335)

(73 234)
(148 225)

(44 930)
(179 721)

15

4 177
(60 838)

28.1
28.2
9
28.3
25

3 340
–

7 432
–

81 759
–

–

Cash flow from financing activities

1 507 706

–

1 446 517

–

Proceeds from issue of share capital
Costs capitalised to issue share capital
Repurchase of shares
Bank loans received
Finance lease repayment
Acquisition of non-controlling interests

4 381 052
(42 294)
(3 631 052)
800 000
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–

4 381 052
(42 294)
(3 631 052)
800 000
(351)
(60 838)

–
–
–
–
–
–

18
20

Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

1 442 600
(1 176 142)
28.4

266 458

(754 309)
(421 833)
(1 176 142)
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(7 512)

(668 312)

–

5

Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash
equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year

78

2016
R’000

152 552

Cash flow from investing activities
Additions to property, plant and equipment
and intangible assets
– To maintain operations
– To expand operations
Proceeds on disposal of tangible and
intangible assets
Increase in investments
Acquisition of subsidiary, net of cash
acquired

2017
R’000

Group

1 384 138
(1 256 499)
127 639

–

(811 204)
(445 295)
(1 256 499)

for the year ended 28 February 2017

1.

Corporate information

2.

Basis of preparation

THIS IS DIS-CHEM

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited is incorporated in South Africa. The Group annual financial statements as at
28 February 2017 comprises the company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred to as “the Group”).

3.

Summary of significant accounting policies

3.1

Basis of consolidation

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of the annual consolidated financial statements
are set out in the relevant supporting note, unless no supporting note is presented or it impacts multiple line
items. In the latter case they are presented under 3.1 below. These policies have been consistently applied to
all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

• power over the investee (i.e., existing rights that give it the current ability to direct the relevant activities of
the investee) ;
• exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
• the ability to use its power over the investee to affect its returns.

Generally, there is a presumption that a majority of voting rights results in control. To support this
presumption and when the Group has less than a majority of the voting or similar rights of an investee, the
Group considers all relevant facts and circumstances in assessing whether it has power over an investee,
including:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Group annual consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Group and its
subsidiaries as at 28 February 2017. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable
returns from its involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the investee. Specifically, the Group controls an investee if, and only if, the Group has:

2017 PERFORMANCE

The Group and company annual financial statements are presented in South African Rands and are rounded
to the nearest thousand, except where otherwise indicated.

LEADERSHIP

The Group and company annual financial statements set out on pages 74 to 126 are prepared on the
historical cost basis as modified by fair value adjustments, and incorporate the following principal
accounting policies, which conform with International Financial Reporting Standards (IFRS) as issued by
the International Accounting Standards Board (IASB), its interpretations issued by the IFRS Interpretations
Committee (IFRIC), the SAICA Financial Reporting Guides as issued by the Accounting Practices Committee
and Financial Pronouncements as issued by the Financial Reporting Standards Council, the JSE Listings
Requirements and the Companies Act of South Africa.

• the contractual arrangement with the other vote holders of the investee;
• the Group’s voting rights and potential voting rights.

The Group re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there
are changes to one or more of the three elements of control.
Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Group obtains control over the subsidiary and ceases when
the Group loses control of the subsidiary. Assets, liabilities, income and expenses of a subsidiary acquired or
disposed of during the year are included in the consolidated annual financial statements from the date the
Group gains control until the date the Group ceases to control the subsidiary.
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Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income (OCI) are attributed to the equity holders
of the parent of the Group and to the non-controlling interests, even if this results in the non-controlling
interests having a deficit balance. When necessary, adjustments are made to the financial statements of
subsidiaries to bring their accounting policies in line with the Group’s accounting policies. All intra-Group
assets and liabilities, equity, income, expenses and cash flows relating to transactions between members of
the Group are eliminated in full on consolidation.
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• rights arising from other contractual arrangements; and
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NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 28 February 2017

3.

3.1

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Basis of consolidation (continued)

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.
If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it derecognises the related assets (including goodwill), liabilities,
non-controlling interest and other components of equity while any investment retained is recognised at fair
value. The resultant gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss in the period that control is lost.

3.2

Business combinations and goodwill

Business combinations, other than those under common control, are accounted for using the acquisition
method. The cost of an acquisition is measured as the aggregate of the consideration transferred measured
at acquisition date fair value and the amount of any non-controlling interests in the acquiree. For each
business combination, the Group elects whether to measure the non-controlling interests in the acquiree at
fair value or at the proportionate share of the acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition-related costs are
expensed as incurred and included in administrative expenses.
When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This includes the separation of embedded derivatives in host
contracts by the acquiree.
If the business combination is achieved in stages, any previously held equity interest is re-measured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or loss is recognised in profit or loss.
Any contingent consideration to be transferred by the acquirer will be recognised at fair value at the
acquisition date. Contingent consideration classified as an asset or liability that is a financial instrument and
within the scope of IAS 39 Financial Instruments: Recognition and Measurement, is measured at fair value
with changes in fair value recognised in profit or loss.
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess of the aggregate of the consideration transferred
and the amount recognised for non-controlling interests, and any previous interest held, over the fair value
of the net identifiable assets acquired and liabilities assumed. If the fair value of the net assets acquired is in
excess of the aggregate consideration transferred, the Group re-assesses whether it has correctly identified
all of the assets acquired and all of the liabilities assumed and reviews the procedures used to measure the
amounts to be recognised at the acquisition date. If the reassessment still results in an excess of the fair value
of net assets acquired over the aggregate consideration transferred, then the gain is recognised in profit or
loss in the year of acquisition.
After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost less any accumulated impairment losses. For the
purpose of impairment testing, goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from the acquisition date,
allocated to each of the Group’s cash-generating units that are expected to benefit from the combination,
irrespective of whether other assets or liabilities of the acquiree are assigned to those units.
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-generating unit and part of the operation within that unit is
disposed of, the goodwill associated with the disposed operation is included in the carrying amount of
the operation when determining the gain or loss on disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

3.3

80

Impairment of non-financial assets

At each reporting date, the carrying amounts of tangible and intangible assets are reviewed to determine
whether there is any indication that those assets may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the
recoverable amount of the asset is estimated in order to determine the extent of the impairment loss (if any).
Where it is not possible to estimate the recoverable amount for an individual asset, the recoverable amount
is determined for the cash-generating unit (CGU) to which the asset belongs. Where a reasonable and
consistent basis of allocation can be identified, corporate assets are also allocated to individual CGUs, or
otherwise they are allocated to the smallest Group of CGUs for which a reasonable and consistent allocation
basis can be identified.
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3.3

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)
Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

If the recoverable amount of an asset (or CGU) is estimated to be less than its carrying amount, the carrying
amount of the asset (or CGU) is reduced to its recoverable amount. Impairment losses are recognised as an
expense immediately in profit or loss.

Where an impairment loss subsequently reverses, the carrying amount of an asset (or CGU) is increased to
the revised estimate of its recoverable amount. This is done so that the increased carrying amount does not
exceed the carrying amount that would have been determined had no impairment loss been recognised for
the asset (or CGU) in prior years. A reversal of an impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit or loss.

3.4
3.5

Common control reserve

Common control transactions are accounted for using the pooling of interest method with the difference
between the carrying amount and consideration recognised in a separate reserve in equity.

Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions

Advertising agreements
The Group enters into cooperative advertising agreements with its suppliers. A cooperative advertising
agreement provides that the manufacturer will participate in the advertising cost of the Group. Significant
judgement is required to determine whether the reimbursement of advertising costs received by the Group
from the manufacturer should be accounted for as other income or as a reduction against cost of sales.
The Group accounts for the reimbursement as part of “other income” (note 7) when both of the following
criteria are met:

• The Group can reasonably estimate the fair value of the advertising services. If the amount of reimbursement
paid by the manufacturer exceeds the estimated fair value of the advertisement services, that excess amount
is characterised as a reduction of cost of sales when recognised in the Group’s income statement.
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• The manufacturer receives, or will receive, an identifiable advertising service in exchange for the
reimbursement. In order to meet this condition, the advertising service must be sufficiently separable from
the Group’s purchase of the manufacturer’s products such that the manufacturer could have entered into an
exchange transaction with a party other than a purchaser of its products or services in order to receive that
advertising service.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The presentation of the results of operations, financial position and cash flows in these annual financial
statements of the Group is dependent upon and sensitive to the accounting policies, assumptions and
estimates that are used as a basis for the preparation of these financial statements. Management has made
certain judgements in the process of applying the Group’s accounting policies. These, together with the
key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of the estimation uncertainty at the reporting
date, are discussed below:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

For goodwill and intangible assets that have an indefinite useful life, the recoverable amount is estimated at
each reporting date. Whenever the carrying amount of an asset or its CGU exceeds its recoverable amount,
an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss. As goodwill is not capable of generating cash flows
independently of other assets, in assessing the recoverable amount of goodwill, it is allocated to CGUs on
a reasonable and consistent basis. The recoverable amount of the CGU (including an allocation of goodwill)
is assessed with reference to the future cash flows of the CGU. Where an impairment is identified for a CGU,
the impairment is applied first to the goodwill allocated to the CGU and then to other assets on a pro rata
basis comprising the CGU, provided that each identifiable asset is not reduced to below its recoverable
amount.

2017 PERFORMANCE

An assessment is made at each reporting date to determine whether there is an indication that previously
recognised impairment losses no longer exist or have decreased. If such indication exists, the asset’s or
CGU’s recoverable amount is estimated.

LEADERSHIP

The recoverable amount is the higher of fair value less costs of disposal and value-in-use. In assessing valuein-use, the estimated future cash flows per the management accounts for the next five years are discounted
to their present value using a pre-tax discount rate that reflects current market assessments of the time value
of money and the risks specific to the asset. In determining fair value less costs of disposal, recent market
transactions are taken into account. If no such transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model
is used.
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3.

3.5

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

Significant accounting estimates, judgements and assumptions (continued)

Loyalty benefit point scheme
Loyalty benefit points are redeemed through additional sales to customers. Historical redemption rates of
the points are used to determine the extent to which the points which are accrued by customers are likely to
be redeemed and therefore the extent they are provided for.
As mentioned above, the Group experiences low levels of unredeemed loyalty points due to the ease with
which customers can redeem them at point of sale. The points are derecognised upon redemption by the
customers.

3.6

New and amended standards and interpretations effective for the period ended 28 February 2017

The following new or revised standards became effective in the current period but had no significant impact
on the financial position or performance of the Group:
• IFRS 14 Regulatory Deferral Accounts

• Amendments to IFRS 11 Joint Arrangements: Accounting for Acquisitions of Interests

• Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 38: Clarification of Acceptable Methods of Depreciation and Amortisation
• Amendments to IAS 16 and IAS 41 Agriculture: Bearer Plants

• Amendments to IAS 27: Equity Method in Separate Financial Statements
• Annual Improvements 2012 – 2014 Cycle

• Amendments to IAS 1 Disclosure Initiative

• Amendments to IFRS 10, IFRS 12 and IAS 28 Investment Entities: Applying the Consolidation Exception

82

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

THIS IS DIS-CHEM

3.

3.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards issued; not yet effective

Standard

Pronouncement Scope

IFRS 9

New standard

Financial
Instruments

The IASB has issued the final version of IFRS 9, which combines
classification and measurement of financial assets and liabilities,
the expected credit loss impairment model for financial assets
measured at amortised cost and fair value through other
comprehensive income and hedge accounting.

Effective
date
1 January
2018

IFRS 15

Revenue from
Contracts from
Customers

New standard

IFRS 15 establishes a single, comprehensive framework for
1 January
determining when to recognise revenue and the amount of
2018
revenue to be recognised. IFRS 15 replaces the previous revenue
standards that are currently in place.

The standard also specifies how to account for the incremental
costs of obtaining a contract and the costs directly related to
fulfilling a contract.

The new standard is more prescriptive than current IFRS and the
disclosure requirements are more extensive. Management has
put together a project team to assess the impact the new
standard will have on the Group’s and company’s recognition of
revenue, and the additional disclosure that it will need to provide.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Application guidance is provided in the standard to assist entities
in applying its requirements to determining the consideration
paid to a customer (particularly with regard to slotting fee
arrangements and co-operative advertising arrangements),
variable consideration, common arrangements, including
licences, warranties, rights of return, principal-versus-agent
considerations, options for additional goods or services, and
breakage. These could be relevant to the Group.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The standard outlines the principles an entity must apply to
measure and recognise revenue. The core principle is that an
entity will recognise revenue at an amount that reflects the
consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in
exchange for transferring goods or services to a customer.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Management has put together a project team to assess the
impact the new standard will have on the classification of financial
assets as well as calculation of impairment losses. Based on the
company’s and Group’s current portfolio of financial instruments
(note 30), management does not expect the standard to have a
significant impact on performance, except for a possible increase
in the allowance for impairment losses.

LEADERSHIP

The Group has not applied various IFRS and IFRIC interpretations that have been issued, but which are not
yet effective, and does not plan on early adoption. These are as follows:

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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3.

3.7

Summary of significant accounting policies (continued)

International Financial Reporting Standards issued; not yet effective (continued)

Standard

Pronouncement Scope

IFRS 16
Leases

New standard

Effective
date

IFRS 16 will require lessees to recognise most leases, subject 1 January
to certain policy elections and exemptions, “on balance
2019
sheet” as lease liabilities with corresponding right-of-use
assets, similar to what is currently done for finance leases.
The accounting by lessors under the new standard is
substantially unchanged from current accounting.
Management has put together a project team to assess the
impact the new standard will have on the Group’s and
company’s results.

IAS 7
Disclosure
Initiative

Amendments to The amendments to IAS 7 Statement of Cash Flows require 1 January
IAS 7
entities to provide disclosures about changes in their
2017
liabilities arising from financing activities, including both
changes arising from cash flows and non-cash changes (such
as foreign exchange gains or losses).
Management is still assessing the impact of the new
standard.

IAS 12
Recognition of
Deferred Tax
Assets for
Unrealised
Losses

Amendments to The IASB issued the amendments to IAS 12 Income Taxes to 1 January
IAS 12
clarify the accounting for deferred tax assets for unrealised
2017
losses on debt instruments measured at fair value. This
amendment is not expected to impact the company or
Group results.

IFRS 2
Amendments to The IASB issued amendments to IFRS 2 Share-based
1 January
Classification
IFRS 2
Payment in relation to the classification and measurement of
2018
and
share-based payment transactions. The amendments
Measurement of
address three main areas:
Share-based
• The effects of vesting conditions on the measurement of a
Payment
cash-settled share-based payment transaction.
Transactions
• The classification of a share-based payment transaction with
net settlement features for withholding tax obligations.
• The accounting where a modification to the terms and
conditions of a share-based payment transaction changes
its classification from cash-settled to equity settled.
Management is still assessing the impact of the new
standard.
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4.

Group information

Majority shareholder

The majority shareholder of the Group is Ivlyn Proprietary Limited that holds 53.2% (2016: 69.8%) of the shares.
The consolidated financial statements of the Group include:
(all companies are incorporated in South Africa except for Dis-Chem Swakopmund Proprietary Limited that is
incorporated in Namibia)
% equity interest
Name

100.0

50.1

51.3
100.0
70.0

26.0
50.1
35.1

* During the current and prior period, the company opened new stores which exist within a statutory entity or a new statutory entity. These entities
were not acquired from a third party and therefore were not treated as business combinations
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83.3
51.0
83.3
51.0
56.7
70.0
51.0
51.0
86.7
100.0
75.0
100.0
80.0
51.0
51.0
66.7
51.0
50.0
100.0
51.0
89.6
95.0
100.0
100.0
50.1
100.0
100.0
100.0
–
–
–
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100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
70.0
51.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
75.0
100.0
80.0
51.0
100.0
66.7
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
89.6
95.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
100.0
80.0
100.0

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Wholesaler of pharmaceutical products and supporting services
CJ Pharmaceutical Enterprises Limited#
Evening Star Trading Proprietary Limited
(t/a Nelspruit Pharmaceutical Wholesaler)
CJ Marketing Proprietary Limited#
The Pharmacy Development Academy Proprietary Limited

2016

2017 PERFORMANCE

Pharmaceutical retailer
Dis-Chem Riverside Lifestyle Mall Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Hemmingways Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Cape Road Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Garden Route Mall Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Mooi River Mall Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Ballito Junction Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Krugersdorp Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Brooklyn Mall Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Woodlands Boulevard Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Savannah Mall Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Three Rivers Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Bay-side Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem The Galleria Amanzimtoti Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Glen Fair Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Jeffrey’s Bay Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Flamewood Value Centre Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Nicolway Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Glenacres Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Festival Mall Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Secunda Proprietary Limited#
Dis-Chem Park Station Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Worcestor Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem North Cape Mall Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Highveld Mall Proprietary Limited
The Local Choice Proprietary Limited#
Pharma-Logistical Solutions Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Distribution Proprietary Limited
Oncology Proprietary Limited
Platinum Park Proprietary Limited*
Rynfield Terrace Proprietary Limited*
Dis-Chem Swakopmund Proprietary Limited*

2017

LEADERSHIP

Information about subsidiaries
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4.

Group information (continued)

Information about subsidiaries (continued)

The company acquired the non-controlling interest of 14 entities (as indicated in the table above with #) for
an amount of R461 million in Dis-Chem shares, R60.8 million in cash and R94 million in contingent
consideration (note 23) based on the future performance of the stores.
There were no material non-controlling interests identified within the Group in the current and prior financial
period. The Group assesses the share of non-controlling interest in profit after tax to be material if the
interest is higher than 10% (2016: 10%) of consolidated profit after tax.

Associates

The Group has a 40% interest in Dis-Chem Bothamed Proprietary Limited.

5.

Acquisitions
Acquisitions in 2017
Evening Star Trading
Proprietary Limited
The Pharmacy Development
Academy Proprietary Limited
Dis-Chem Platinum Park
Proprietary Limited

Date of
acquisition

Principal activity

Control
acquired
(%)

Pharmaceutical wholesaler

1 September 2016

51.3

Training

1 September 2016

70.0

Retailer

1 September 2016

100.0

On 1 September 2016, the Group acquired an additional interest in the voting shares of Evening Star Trading
Proprietary Limited and The Pharmacy Development Academy Proprietary Limited, unlisted companies
based in South Africa and specialising in the wholesale of pharmaceutical products and training activities.
Prior to 1 September the Group held 26% and 35% respectively in these companies.
On 1 August 2016, the Group acquired the assets and liabilities of Platinum Park Proprietary Limited, an
unlisted pharmaceutical company based in South Africa.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these companies as at the date of acquisition were:
Evening
Star
R’000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Inventory
Trade receivables*
Cash and cash equivalents
Other
Liabilities
Trade payables
Loans
Other

Pharmacy
Development
R’000

Platinum
Park
R’000

Total
R’000

109
5 869
12 511
886
156

11
–
337
1 013
–

1 722
2 599
714
19
–

1 842
8 468
13 562
1 918
156

19 531

1 361

5 054

25 946

(8 392)
(844)
(531)

(586)
(1 523)
(59)

(3 294)
–
–

(12 272)
(2 367)
(590)

(3 294)

(15 229)

1 760
–
–
7 670

10 717
(4 510)
(2 436)
8 509

9 430

12 280

Total identifiable net assets/(liabilities)
at fair value
Non-controlling interest at proportionate share
Derecognition of equity accounted investments
Goodwill arising on acquisition

(9 767)

(2 168)

9 764
(4 752)
(2 436)
274

(807)
242
–
565

Purchase consideration transferred

2 850

–

* The carrying amount reflects the gross contractual amounts receivable and we expected to receive the full amount at date of acquisition
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Acquisitions (continued)

Total
R’000

Net cash acquired with the subsidiary
Cash paid

886
–

1 013
–

19
(9 430)

1 918
(9 430)

Net cash flow on acquisition

886

1 013

(9 411)

(7 512)

From the date of acquisition, the following revenue and profit before tax was contributed to the Group:

Revenue
Loss before tax

Evening
Star
R’000

Pharmacy
Development
R’000

21 260
(575)

1 200
(39)

Platinum
Park
R’000
19 883
(1 486)

Total
R’000
42 343
(2 100)

2017 PERFORMANCE

No cash payment occurred for the acquisition of the Evening Star and Pharmacy Development companies
as the consideration was made through the issue of 126 498 (before the 1-for-150 share split) Dis-Chem
Pharmacies shares measured at the listing price.

LEADERSHIP

The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition which is not
separately recognised.
Evening
Pharmacy
Platinum
Star Development
Park
R’000
R’000
R’000

If the acquisitions had taken place at the beginning of the year, the following revenue and profit before tax
would have been contributed to the Group:

6.

Pharmacy
Development
R’000

57 134
1 261

3 020
209

Platinum
Park
R’000
40 314
(1 150)

Total
R’000
100 468
320

Segmental information

The Group has identified two reportable segments. The following describes the operations in each of the
reportable segments:

Retail

Retail consists of the Dis-Chem stores, retailers of pharmaceutical and a variety of health and beauty
products, as well as pharma-logistic services and oncology and retailers of pharmaceutical products.
All retail stores have been aggregated into one segment as they have similar economic characteristics,
products and services, type of customer and distribution methods.

Wholesale

There are no external customers that account for more than 10% of the Group’s revenue in the current
and prior financial year.
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Wholesale consists of the CJ Wholesale and Dis-Chem Distribution businesses, wholesalers of
pharmaceutical and a variety of health and beauty products. The wholesale subsidiaries have been
aggregated into one segment as they have similar economic characteristics, products and services, type
of customer and distribution methods.

AUDITED ANNUAL
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An operating segment is defined as a component of an entity that engages in business activities from which
it may earn revenues and incur expenses whose operating results are regularly reviewed by the entity’s chief
operating decision-maker in order to make decisions about resources to be allocated to the segment and
assess its performance and for which discrete financial information is available.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Revenue
Profit/(loss) before tax

Evening
Star
R’000
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6.

Segmental information (continued)

Geographic information

With the exception of 1 store in Namibia, the Group operates in one principal geographical area, that being
South Africa.
Wholesale
R’000

2017
External customers
Inter-segment

15 646 131
–

1 622 344
9 295 733

–
(9 295 733)

17 268 475
–

Total turnover
Cost of sales

15 646 131
(11 853 918)

10 918 077
(9 995 286)

(9 295 733)
8 790 050

17 268 475
(13 059 154)

Gross profit
Other income
Other expenses (excluding depreciation
and amortisation)
Depreciation and amortisation
Net finance costs
Share of profit from associates

922 791
90 469

(505 683)
(96 699)

4 209 321
604 861

(3 176 755)
(126 036)
(125 639)
–

(884 352)
(35 992)
(99 601)
–

535 675
–
–
501

(3 525 432)
(162 028)
(225 240)
501

974 874
1 226 549

Capital expenditure
Total assets
Total liabilities

(191 249)
4 711 001
3 123 181

2016 (restated – refer to next page)
External customers
Inter-segment
Total turnover
Cost of sales
Gross profit
Other income
Other expenses (excluding depreciation
and amortisation)
Depreciation and amortisation
Net finance costs
Share of profit from associates
Profit/(loss) before tax

Total
R’000

3 792 213
611 091

Profit/(loss) before tax
Earnings before interest, tax,
depreciation and amortisation (EBITDA)

Gross profit margin
EBITDA margin
Operating margin

88

Intergroup/
consolidation
R’000

Retail
R’000

(6 685)
128 908
(30 210)
4 329 291
2 955 555

(66 206)

901 983

(66 707)

1 288 750

–
(3 143 630)
(1 312 557)

(221 459)
5 896 662
4 766 179

%

%

%

24.2
7.8
7.0

8.5
1.2
0.9

24.4
7.5
6.5

Retail
R’000

Wholesale
R’000

Intergroup/
consolidation
R’000

Total
R’000

13 573 393
–

1 487 900
7 444 913

–
(7 444 913)

15 061 293
–

13 573 393
(10 329 480)

8 932 813
(8 169 741)

(7 444 913)
6 964 688

15 061 293
(11 534 533)

3 243 913
430 134

763 072
96 783

(480 225)
(87 241)

3 526 760
439 676

(2 660 048)
(113 585)
(14 109)
–

(751 492)
(37 189)
(75 042)
–

502 556
–
–
344

(2 908 984)
(150 774)
(89 151)
344

886 305

(3 868)
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Segmental information (continued)
Wholesale
R’000

Intergroup/
consolidation
R’000

Total
R’000

EBITDA

1 013 999

108 363

(64 910)

1 057 452

Capital expenditure
Total assets
Total liabilities

(155 156)
3 812 444
3 131 629

(69 495)
3 312 618
1 938 148

2016

(224 651)
5 169 833
4 330 150

%

%

%

23.9
7.5
6.6

8.5
1.2
0.8

23.4
7.0
6.0

During the 2017 financial year the composition of the financial information reviewed by the chief operating
decision-maker was amended to incorporate the performance of its operating segments through a change
in the allocation of rebates and fees earned by the wholesale segment between the two operating
segments. This has resulted in the revenue line item previously reported in the segments being restated in
order to show the effect of this change. The following table shows the impact of this restatement:
Wholesale
R’000

Intergroup/
consolidation
R’000

Total
R’000

12 months to 29 February 2016
Turnover – previously reported
Change in fees charged

13 573 393
–

9 237 646
(304 833)

(7 749 746)
304 833

15 061 293
–

Turnover

13 573 393

8 932 813

(7 444 913)

15 061 293

374 144
639 855

748 218
(639 855)

(64 910)
–

1 057 452
–

108 363

(64 910)

1 057 452

EBITDA – if previously reported
Change in fees charged
EBITDA

1 013 999

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Retail
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

Gross profit margin
EBITDA margin
Operating margin

–
(1 955 229)
(739 627)

LEADERSHIP

Retail
R’000

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SHAREHOLDER
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7.

Revenue

Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received or receivable. Turnover comprises
sales of fast-moving consumer goods, net of returns, discounts, and is stated exclusive of value-added
tax. Revenue is recognised when the significant risks and rewards of ownership of the goods have passed
to the buyer and the amount can be reliably measured. Significant risk and rewards of ownership are
transferred when the customer takes ownership of the goods and the Group has no continued management
involvement. For retail sales this generally occurs when the customer takes delivery at the point of sale.
For wholesale transactions this generally occurs when the goods are delivered to the customer.
Finance income is recognised utilising the effective interest rate method, being the rate that exactly
discounts the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter
period, where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in
finance income in profit or loss.
Unless specifically stated otherwise, other income is recognised with reference to the stage of completion of
the transaction at the end of the reporting period if the outcome of a transaction can be estimated reliably.
However, when a specific act is much more significant than any other acts, the recognition of revenue is
postponed until the significant act is executed.
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is established.
Please refer to note 3.5 for the discussion of the advertising income and the significant judgements and
estimates.
Company

Turnover
Finance income
Other income
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Advertising income
Commission income
Dividend received
Franchisee income
Marketing
Data fees
Gain from renegotiated lease terms
Insurance refund received
Payroll-related recovery
Profit on sale of assets
Rental related recovery
Other*

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

11 070 211
19 525
611 134

9 624 054
6 568
414 927

17 268 475
23 977
604 861

15 061 293
7 315
439 676

229 807
48 936
68 440
35 335
56 223
53 532
29 208
9 347
7 025
6
9 665
63 610

165 645
18 286
48 553
24 829
37 593
38 918
–
1 413
9 077
808
9 543
60 262

234 053
54 825
–
6 693
57 550
71 868
109 344
10 871
13 494
6
11 601
34 556

163 801
23 115
–
3 116
39 873
58 579
91 602
1 978
14 888
19 244
16 069
7 411

11 700 870

10 045 549

17 897 313

15 508 284

* Other consists of conference income and other sundry income
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8.

Profit before taxation

Profit before taxation has been determined after taking into account the following:
Group
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

Expenses
Depreciation of tangible assets (note 12)
Amortisation of intangible assets (note 13)
Computer expenses
Advertising expenses
Commission
Donations
Security
Foreign exchange loss
Occupancy costs

96 420
8 211
118 763
251 534
89 237
28 523
38 328
–
365 581

81 982
6 681
90 520
211 909
97 138
30 412
35 008
–
307 438

152 205
9 823
137 796
253 995
116 012
28 559
60 718
35 812
504 417

143 761
7 013
107 312
222 008
127 577
30 441
55 200
22
434 633

– Lease payments
– Other (including electricity and rates)

242 388
123 193

211 882
95 556

338 937
165 480

301 729
132 904

Employee benefits

1 449 575

1 210 329

2 038 179

1 675 961

–
–
–
–
–

1 326 067
45 738
25 892
12 336
39 542

1 095 884
34 857
21 611
7 564
50 413

1 858 254
60 478
34 120
17 840
67 487

1 518 716
46 286
28 028
10 683
72 248

429

–

429

–

Salaries and benefits
Pension costs
Medical aid
Leave pay
Other

For details on directors’ emoluments and key
management personnel refer to note 29.
Write-off and loss on sale of assets

The write-off mainly relates to the fixture and fittings in the Bloemfontein store that were written off due to
the flooding that occurred. Included in other income is insurance recovery of R3.4 million.

Net financing costs
Finance income

Finance income is recognised utilising the effective interest method, being the rate that exactly discounts
the estimated future cash receipts over the expected life of the financial instrument or a shorter period,
where appropriate, to the net carrying amount of the financial asset. Interest income is included in finance
income in profit or loss.

Finance costs

All borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss using the effective interest method, unless the borrowing
costs are directly attributable to the acquisition, constriction or production of qualifying assets, in which
case the directly attributable costs are capitalised.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

2016
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

2017
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Company

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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9.

Net financing costs (continued)
Company
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

Finance income

19 525

6 568

23 977

7 315

– Bank accounts
– Other

19 395
130

6 331
237

22 099
1 878

6 506
809

Finance costs

(149 319)

(20 446)

(249 217)

(96 466)

–
–
–
–
–

(133 696)
(15 573)
–
(12)
(38)

(20 226)
–
–
(206)
(14)

(142 556)
(15 573)
(89 099)
(1 923)
(66)

(25 651)
–
(69 758)
(610)
(447)

(129 794)

(13 878)

(225 240)

(89 151)

Bank overdraft
Bank loan
Finance lease
SARS
Other

Net financing costs

10.

Group

Taxation

Current tax

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and prior periods are measured at the amount expected to
be recovered from or paid to taxation authorities. The tax rates and laws used to compute the amount are
those that are enacted, or substantively enacted at the reporting date. Current income tax relating to items
recognised directly in equity is recognised in equity and not in profit or loss. Management periodically
evaluates positions taken in the tax returns where applicable tax regulations are subject to interpretation and
establishes provisions where appropriate.

Deferred tax

Deferred taxation is provided using the liability method on all temporary differences between the tax
bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts at the reporting date. Deferred tax liabilities are
recognised for all taxable temporary differences except:
• where the deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of goodwill of an asset or liability in
a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the transaction, affects neither the
accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of taxable temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in joint
ventures, where the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be controlled and it is probable
that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable future.
Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences, carry-forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profit will be available against
which the deductible temporary differences, the carry-forward of unused tax credits, and unused tax losses
can be utilised:
• except where the deferred tax asset relating to the deductible temporary difference arises from the initial
recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction that is not a business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting nor taxable profit or loss; and

• in respect of deductible temporary differences associated with investments in subsidiaries and interests in
joint ventures, deferred tax assets are only recognised to the extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable future and taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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10.

Taxation (continued)

Company
2016
R’000

2016
R’000

12 017
(15 899)

279 352
14 786

220 426
(8 100)

(7 067)
20 022

(36 383)
(10 884)

South African normal tax

Current income tax
– Current year
– Prior year under/(over) provision
Deferred tax
– Attributable to temporary differences
– Prior year (over)/under provision

Reconciliation of tax rate







(11 396)
(11 748)

4 201
25 589

188 456

9 073

246 871

242 116

%

%

%

%

28.00
0.43

28.00
2.14

Standard tax rate
Prior year net (over)/under provision
Adjusted for permanent differences:
Non-taxable:
Dividends received
ETI and learnerships
Tenant allowance
Non-deductible:
Legal fees
SARS interest and penalties
S18A donations carried forward
Listing costs
Unwinding of contingent liability
S18A donations brought forward
Other*

28.00
(0.05)

28.00
6.64

(2.48)
(0.82)
(0.13)

(21.90)
(7.80)
(2.10)

–
(0.77)
(0.13)

–
(0.71)
(0.16)

0.01
–
–
0.29
0.12
(0.50)
(0.01)

0.36
–
11.52
–
–
–
(0.11)

0.01
0.07
–
0.25
0.10
(0.43)
(0.16)

0.03
0.02
0.87
–
–
–
(0.59)

Effective tax rate

24.43

14.61

27.37

29.60

11.

Earnings per share
Earnings per share

Earnings per share is calculated using the weighted average number of ordinary shares in issue during the
period and is based on the profit after tax attributable to equity holders of the parent.

Headline earnings per share

Headline earnings per share (HEPS) is determined as per the JSE Listings Requirements as set out in the
HEPS circular.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

* Other consists mainly of fines and consulting fees

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW





200 271
11 329

2017 PERFORMANCE

2017
R’000

LEADERSHIP

2017
R’000

Group

Adjusted headline earnings per share

1) Items deemed to relate to capital structure of the Group – these items are removed from HEPS as
management believes it relates to the capital structure of the Group but is not explicitly provided for in
the HEPS circular.
2) Items related to neither Retail nor Wholesale general operations – these items represent income and
expenses that arise outside of the Group’s core retail and wholesale business.

3) Items not expected to reoccur – these items are income and expenses that management does not expect
to reoccur in the foreseeable future.
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Adjusted Headline earnings per share is (HEPS) is a performance measure derived from HEPS for three
categories of items:
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11.

Earnings per share (continued)

The calculation of headline earnings per share is based on the weighted average number of ordinary shares.
The calculation is reconciled as follows:
Group
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent
Net loss/(profit) on disposal of property, plant and equipment and
intangible assets
Insurance recovery from third parties
Taxation

612 346

512 775

Headline earnings
Items deemed to relate to capital structure of the Group
Finance lease obligation renegotiation
Operating lease renegotiation
Items related to neither Retail nor Wholesale general operations
Fair value loss relating to non-hedging derivatives
Items not expected to reoccur
Transaction costs on listing
Taxation

610 314

Adjusted headline earnings
Earnings per share (cents)
– Basic
– Diluted
Headline earnings per share (cents)
– Basic

423
(3 245)
790

(80 136)
(29 208)

(20 249)
–
5 706
498 232
(91 602)
–

35 812

–

8 074
20 589

–
25 649

565 445

432 279

75.0
75.0

212.0
212.0

74.7

206.0

69.2
69.2

178.8
178.8

5 296 308

1 212 121

62 383

400 084

Share in issue before the share split
Share split
Shares repurchased after the share split during the year weighted for the
period outstanding
Shares issued after the share split during the year weighted for the period
outstanding

5 358 691
798 444 959

1 612 205
240 218 545

Total weighted number of shares in issue at the end of the year

– Diluted
Adjusted headline earnings per share (cents)
– Basic
– Diluted
Reconciliation of shares in issues to weighted average number of shares in
issue
Total number of shares in issue at beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year before the share split weighted for the period
outstanding

74.7

206.0

(54 858 637)

–

67 672 225

–

816 617 238

241 830 750

On 30 September 2016, a 150-for-1 share split took place and therefore increased the number of shares in
issue. This has been taken into account in the above calculation of the weighted average number of shares as
if the shares were in issue for the whole year and all earlier years presented.
The total weighted average number of shares in issue for the year equals the total weighted average diluted
number of shares in issue for the year as the Group has no share options or other instruments that would
result in a dilutive impact.

94

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

THIS IS DIS-CHEM

12.

Property, plant and equipment

Initial and subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or are recognised as a separate
asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably. All other repairs and maintenance are
charged to profit or loss during the financial period in which they are incurred.
All assets are depreciated from the date they are available-for-use, on a straight-line basis, to allocate their
cost to their residual value over their estimated useful life. Depreciation ceases at the earlier of either the
date the asset is classified as held for sale or the date the asset is derecognised.

LEADERSHIP

Property plant and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation and accumulated
impairment. Property plant and equipment are depreciated on the straight-line basis at rates estimated to
write each asset down to their residual value over the term of its useful life.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
Computer hardware
Office equipment
Improvements to leased premises
Motor vehicles
Furniture and fittings

Three years
Five to six years
Six years, or if shorter, the remaining lease term
Four to five years
Five to six years

The residual values, useful lives and depreciation methods of property plant and equipment are reviewed at
each reporting date and adjusted if appropriate. At each reporting date it is assessed whether there is any
indication that an asset may be impaired. If any such indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
Where carrying values exceed the estimated recoverable amounts, tangible assets are written down to their
recoverable amounts and the impairment is recognised in profit or loss immediately.
An asset is derecognised upon disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or
disposal. Gains and losses on disposal are determined by comparing the proceeds with the carrying amount.
These gains or losses are included in profit or loss in the period of derecognition.

Company

Computer
hardware
R’000

Office
Leasehold
Furniture
equipment* improvements and fixtures#
R’000
R’000
R’000

Motor
vehicles
R’000

Total
R’000

128 433

62 172

298 756

302 123

16 557

808 041

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

105 054
24 456
(1 077)

54 592
8 094
(514)

280 507
20 830
(2 581)

204 468
104 278
(6 623)

16 444
215
(102)

661 065
157 873
(10 897)

Accumulated
depreciation

(93 418)

(43 883)

(225 905)

(149 049)

(12 947)

(525 202)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals

(77 246)
(17 180)
1 008

(38 512)
(5 854)
483

(203 233)
(25 251)
2 579

(104 962)
(46 219)
2 132

(11 132)
(1 916)
101

(435 085)
(96 420)
6 303

Net carrying value

35 015

18 289

153 074

3 610

282 839

72 851

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2017
Cost

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Please refer to note 3.3 on impairment of non-financial assets, where the recoverable amount is discussed.

2017 PERFORMANCE

–
–
–
–
–

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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12.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)
Company
2016
Cost

Computer
hardware
R’000

Office
Leasehold
Furniture
equipment* improvements and fixtures#
R’000
R’000
R’000

Total
R’000

54 592

280 507

204 468

16 444

661 065

82 918
22 516
(380)

46 281
8 733
(422)

244 512
36 211
(216)

124 386
82 216
(2 134)

13 964
2 480
–

512 061
152 156
(3 152)

Accumulated
depreciation

(77 246)

(38 512)

(203 233)

(104 962)

(11 132)

(435 085)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals

(65 653)
(11 610)
17

(33 179)
(5 773)
440

(176 245)
(26 994)
6

(69 654)
(35 679)
371

(9 206)
(1 926)
–

(353 937)
(81 982)
834

Net carrying value

27 808

16 080

77 274

99 506

5 312

225 980

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

105 054

Motor
vehicles
R’000

Computer
hardware
R’000

Leased
land and
buildings
R’000

2017
Cost

187 897

619 000

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals
Acquisition

153 825
35 948
(1 876)
–

619 000
–
–
–

Accumulated
depreciation

(135 881)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals
Adjustment
to lease

(107 987)
(28 543)
649
–

19 713

–

–

–

–

19 713

Net carrying value

52 016

615 350

35 046

88 217

188 042

16 730

995 401

2016
Cost

153 825

619 000

83 962

385 607

264 719

40 244 1 547 357

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

126 427
33 703
(6 305)

–
619 000
–

95 243
26 703
(37 984)

359 762
42 957
(17 112)

213 515
98 367
(47 163)

56 112
9 679
(25 547)

851 059
830 409
(134 111)

Accumulated
depreciation

(107 987)

(9 857)

(58 154)

(289 661)

(142 840)

(19 879)

(628 378)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals

(93 496)
(20 045)
5 554

–
(9 857)
–

(67 991)
(13 101)
22 938

(256 634)
(41 660)
8 633

(115 728)
(50 882)
23 770

(25 809)
(8 216)
14 146

(559 658)
(143 761)
75 041

Net carrying value

45 838

25 808

95 946

121 879

20 365

918 979

Group

Office
Leasehold
Furniture
equipment* improvements and fixtures#
R’000
R’000
R’000

Total
R’000

407 383

379 655

41 049 1 738 837

83 962
30 811
(10 920)
–

385 607
25 764
(3 988)
–

264 719
121 555
(8 461)
1 842

40 244 1 547 357
1 010 215 088
(205) (25 450)
–
1 842

(3 650)

(68 807)

(319 166)

(191 613)

(24 319) (743 436)

(9 857)
(13 506)
–

(58 154)
(15 166)
4 513

(289 661)
(32 756)
3 251

(142 840)
(56 275)
7 502

(19 879) (628 378)
(5 959) (152 205)
1 519
17 434

609 143

103 853

Motor
vehicles
R’000

*	Includes air conditioners, security equipment, medical and clinic equipment, office equipment, PABX, media equipment and machinery and equipment.
#
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12.

Property, plant and equipment (continued)

Motor vehicles held under finance leases amounts to R5.3 million (2016: R5.6 million). These motor vehicles
are held as security for the finance leases (refer to note 24).

13.

Intangible assets

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible
assets acquired in a business combination is its fair value as at the date of acquisition. Following initial
recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less accumulated amortisation and accumulated
impairment losses, if any. Internally generated intangible assets, excluding capitalised development costs,
are not capitalised and expenditure is reflected in profit or loss in the year in which the expenditure is
incurred.
Intangible assets with finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life and assessed for impairment
whenever there is an indication that the intangible asset may be impaired.
The amortisation period and the amortisation method for an intangible asset with a finite useful life is
reviewed at least at the end of each reporting period. Changes in the expected useful life or the expected
pattern of consumption of future economic benefits embodied in the asset is accounted for by changing
the amortisation period or method, as appropriate, and are treated as changes in accounting estimates.
The amortisation expense on intangible assets with finite lives is recognised in profit or loss in the expense
category consistent with the function of the intangible assets.

The estimated useful lives are as follows:
– Computer software

Two years

– Licences

Indefinite

Gains or losses arising from derecognition of an intangible asset are measured as the difference between
the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount of the asset and are recognised in profit or loss when the
asset is derecognised.

2017
Cost

28 686

2 781

31 467

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

25 714
3 124
(152)

2 781
–
–

28 495
3 124
(152)

Accumulated amortisation

(22 715)

–

(22 715)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals

(14 656)
(8 211)
152

–
–
–

(14 656)
(8 211)
152

Net carrying value

5 971

2 781

8 752
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Total
R’000

Company

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Computer
software
R’000

Licences
with
indefinite
useful life
R’000

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Intangible assets with indefinite useful lives are not amortised, but are tested for impairment annually,
either individually or at the cash-generating unit level. The assessment of indefinite life is reviewed annually
to determine whether the indefinite life continues to be supportable. If not, the change in useful life from
indefinite to finite is made on a prospective basis.

2017 PERFORMANCE

The useful lives of intangible assets are assessed as either finite or indefinite.

LEADERSHIP

In the current year the Absa loan was secured by the cession of the book debts in and general notarial bond
over movable assets of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited.
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13.

Intangible assets (continued)
Computer
software
R’000

Licences
with
indefinite
useful life
R’000

Total
R’000

2016
Cost

25 714

2 781

28 495

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

15 726
10 210
(222)

2 781
–
–

18 507
10 210
(222)

Accumulated amortisation

(14 656)

–

(14 656)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals

(7 983)
(6 681)
8

–
–
–

(7 983)
(6 681)
8

Net carrying value

11 058

2 781

13 839

Computer
software
R’000

Licences
with
indefinite
useful life
R’000

Goodwill
R’000

Total
R’000

2017
Cost

35 754

3 181

28 923

67 858

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

29 535
6 371
(152)

3 181
–
–

20 414
8 509
–

53 130
14 880
(152)

Accumulated amortisation

(27 548)

–

–

(27 548)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals

(17 877)
(9 823)
152

–
–
–

–
–
–

(17 877)
(9 823)
152

Net carrying value

8 206

3 181

28 923

40 310

2016
Cost

29 535

3 181

20 414

53 130

Opening balance
Additions
Disposals

19 045
13 242
(2 752)

3 181
–
–

20 414
–
–

42 640
13 242
(2 752)

Accumulated amortisation

(17 877)

–

–

(17 877)

Opening balance
Current charge
Disposals

(11 234)
(7 013)
370

–
–
–

–
–
–

(11 234)
(7 013)
370

Net carrying value

11 658

3 181

20 414

Company

Group
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13.

Intangible assets (continued)

Carrying amount of goodwill and licences allocated to each of the Cash Generating Units (CGUs):
Group

Licences
Retail
Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited
Dis-Chem Cape Road Proprietary Limited

19 327
1 087
274
565

19 327
1 087
–
–

7 670

–

28 923

20 414

2 781
400

2 781
400

3 181

3 181

The CGUs are based on the relevant statutory entity. The recoverable amount of the above CGUs as at
the reporting date, has been determined based on a value-in-use calculation using cash flow projections
from financial budgets approved by senior management covering a five-year period. The pre-tax discount
rate applied to cash flow projections is 13.6% for wholesale companies and 13.4% for the retail company
(2016: 12.11%) and cash flows beyond the five-year period are extrapolated using a 3% (2016: 3%) growth
rate. As a result of the analysis, management did not identify an impairment in the current and prior financial
period.

14.

Deferred taxation

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are only offset if there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax and the asset or liability relates to the same taxation authority and the same taxable entity.
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted at the reporting date.

Also refer to accounting policy under note 10.
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Tax relating to items recognised directly in equity are also recognised directly in equity and not in the
statement of comprehensive income.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

No reasonably possible change in assumptions will result in an impairment loss being recognised in the
current and prior financial year.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The licences relate to the trading of Dis-Chem Pharmacies and Dis-Chem Cape Road. As there is no
foreseeable limit to the period over which these companies will trade, the licence is considered to have
an indefinite useful life. This assumption is re-assessed each period and no impairment is required in the
current or prior period.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Dis-Chem Platinum Park Proprietary Limited

2016
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Goodwill
Wholesale
CJ Pharmaceutical Enterprises Limited
CJ Marketing Proprietary Limited
Evening Star Trading Proprietary Limited
The Pharmacy Development Academy Proprietary Limited
Retail

2017
R’000
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14.

Deferred taxation (continued)
Company

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

67 644

80 599

108 762

138 552

23 145

(12 955)

47 267

Balance at end of year

90 789

67 644

156 029

The deferred tax asset balance is made up as
follows:
Employee-related obligations
Straight-lining of leases
Deferred revenue and S24C allowance
Finance lease
Prepayment
Tax losses
Inventory
Property, plant and equipment
Other*

27 801
40 515
28 794
–
(580)
–
–
(5 741)
–

23 214
38 447
5 202
–
(97)
–
–
–
878

90 789

67 644

Deferred taxation asset
Balance at the beginning of the year
Movements during the year
– Charge to income statement

35 082
54 614
29 225
1 314
(748)
38 289
5 547
(7 771)
477
156 029

(29 790)
108 762

28 816
52 897
4 496
11 053
(265)
4 158
6 296
–
1 311
108 762

* Other consists of income received in advance and provision for bad debts

15.

Investments

An associate is an entity over which the Group has significant influence. Significant influence is the power to
participate in the financial and operating policy decisions of the investee, but is not control or joint control.
The considerations made in determining significant influence are similar to those necessary to determine
control over subsidiaries.
The company’s investments in its associate are accounted for at cost in the separates. The Group’s
investments in its associate are accounted for using the equity method.
Under the equity method, the investment in an associate is initially recognised at cost. The carrying amount
of the investment is adjusted to recognise changes in the Group’s share of net assets of the associate since
the acquisition date. Goodwill relating to the associate is included in the carrying amount of the investment
and is not tested for impairment individually. Any excess of the Group’s share of the net fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of the associate is included as income in the
Group’s share of profit or loss from associate in the period in which the associate is acquired.
The statement of profit or loss reflects the Group’s share of the results of operations of the associate.
Any change in OCI of those investees is presented as part of the Group’s OCI. In addition, when there has
been a change recognised directly in the equity of the associate, the Group recognises its share of any
changes, when applicable, in the statement of changes in equity. Unrealised gains and losses resulting
from transactions between the Group and the associate are eliminated to the extent of the interest in the
associate.
The aggregate of the Group’s share of profit or loss of an associate is shown on the face of the statement of
profit or loss outside operating profit and represents profit or loss after tax and non-controlling interests in
the subsidiaries of the associate.
The financial statements of the associate are prepared for the same reporting period as the Group.
When necessary, adjustments are made to bring the accounting policies in line with those of the Group.
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15.

Investments (continued)

The company holds the investment in subsidiaries at cost.

Investment in associates

(Proprietary Limited unless stated otherwise)
Company

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

–

1 366

–

1 935

–
–

100
–

–
–

–
–

–

1 466

–

1 935

The associates are not considered to be material to the Group. Dis-Chem Bothamed Proprietary Limited
has made an accumulated loss of R2.4 million.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Evening Star Trading
Limpopo Pharmaceutical Wholesale and
Distribution
Dis-Chem Bothamed

LEADERSHIP

After application of the equity method, the Group determines whether it is necessary to recognise an
impairment loss on its investment. At each reporting date, the Group determines whether there is objective
evidence that the investment in the associate is impaired. If there is such evidence, the Group calculates the
amount of impairment as the difference between the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying
value, and then recognises the loss within ‘Share of profit of an associate’ in the statement of profit or loss.

Investment in subsidiaries

Group
2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

411 611
5 104
1 152 973
4 216
7 576
21 550
5 646
36 557
16 812
60 812
10 290
10 894
44 717
32 871
20 416
1

65 413
3 121
1 152 973
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
1

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

1 842 046

1 221 508

–

–

Evening Star Trading Proprietary Limited became a subsidiary in the current year and is disclosed in note 4 and 5.
Refer to note 4 for more information on the Group structure and percentage holdings of associates and
subsidiaries.
All other subsidiaries measured at cost in the separate financial statements and associates in note 4 are
immaterial and therefore not shown above.
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CJ Pharmaceutical Enterprises Limited
CJ Marketing
Dis-Chem Distribution
Evening Star
Dis-Chem Riverside Lifestyle Mall
Dis-Chem Hemmingways
Dis-Chem Cape Road
Dis-Chem Garden Route Mall
Dis-Chem Mooi River Mall
Dis-Chem Brooklyn Mall
Dis-Chem Woodlands Boulevard
Dis-Chem Jefferey’s Bay
Dis-Chem Nicolway
Dis-Chem Glenacres
Dis-Chem Secunda
Other

Company

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

(Proprietary Limited unless stated otherwise)
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16.

Inventories

Inventories comprise merchandise for resale and are valued at the lower of cost determined on a weighted
average moving cost basis and net realisable value. Net realisable value is the estimated selling price in
the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs necessary to make the sale. The cost of merchandise
sold includes normal shrinkage, wastage, inventory losses, trade discounts, rebates and other similar items.
Obsolete and slow moving inventories are identified and written down to their net realisable value. The
carrying amount of inventory is recognised as an expense in the period in which the related revenue is
recognised.
Company

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

Finished goods

1 183 997

1 103 114

3 233 911

2 806 572

Cost of inventories recognised as cost of sales

8 118 479

7 751 942

13 059 154

11 534 533

During the current year, R8 million of inventory was written off due to the flooding in the Bloemfontein store.

17.

Trade and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for merchandise sold or services rendered in the
ordinary course of business and are accounted for as loans and receivables in accordance with the
accounting policy disclosed in note 30. Prepayments and other receivables are stated at their nominal
values.
Company

Trade receivables
Provision for bad debts
Net trade receivables
Other receivables
Related parties (note 29)
VAT
Prepayment
Shareholders for dividends

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

81 160
(290)

99 375
–

541 964
(2 958)

452 675
(588)

80 870
273 295
57 234
–
16 712
–

99 375
183 950
6 244
–
2 714
5 100

539 006
510 998
–
–
41 897
–

452 087
284 567
–
27 743
3 410
–

428 111

297 383

1 091 901

767 807

Provision for bad debt
Opening balance
Provision raised

–
(290)

–
–

(588)
(2 370)

–
(588)

Closing balance

(290)

–

(2 958)

(588)

Trade receivables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 30 days.
Other receivables are non-interest bearing and generally on terms of 30 days. Other receivables consist of
rebates and logistic fee receivables as well as credit card debtors and other sundry receivables.
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17.

Trade and other receivables (continued)

As at 28 February 2017, the age analysis of trade receivables is as follows:
Past due but not impaired
<30
days
R’000

30 – 60
days
R’000

60 – 90
days
R’000

90 – 120
days
R’000

>120
days
R’000

2017

541 964

387 305

54 874

21 320

21 532

42 676

14 257

2016

452 087

396 424

33 010

11 539

1 186

845

9 083

LEADERSHIP

Group

Neither past
due nor
Total
impaired
R’000
R’000

As at 28 February 2017, the age analysis of other receivables is as follows:
Past due but not impaired
<30
days
R’000

30 – 60
days
R’000

60 – 90
days
R’000

90 – 120
days
R’000

>120
days
R’000

2017

510 998

386 919

23 307

18 552

21 196

14 637

46 387

2016

284 567

245 571

256

12 788

14 778

890

10 284

Related party receivables are neither past due not impaired.

Refer to note 30 on credit risk management of trade and other receivables.
In the current year the Absa loan was secured by the cession of the book debts in and general notarial bond
over movable assets of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited.
Trade and other receivables relating to CJ Pharmaceutical Enterprises Limited amounting to R422 million
(2016: R369 million) were pledged as security for the overdraft facilities with Nedbank.

18.

Share capital

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Trade debtors over 120 days in the current and prior year are mainly on payment plans and have been
meeting the payment requirements and therefore not provided for at year-end. An amount of R106 million,
that is past due but not impaired, relates to Optipharm that has been acquired by the Group after year end
(refer note 32).

2017 PERFORMANCE

Neither past
due nor
Total
impaired
R’000
R’000

Ordinary share capital represents the par value of ordinary shares issued.
Group
2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

Authorised – Group and company
1 500 000 000 (2016:10 000 000) ordinary no par
value shares
Issued and fully paid
859 273 673 (2016: 5 296 308*) ordinary no par
value shares

6 140 554

1 352 074

6 140 554

1 352 074

Reconciliation of shares issued
Opening balance
Shares issued during the period (note 4 and 5)
Capitalisation of costs

1 352 074
4 830 774
(42 294)

199 101
1 152 973
–

1 352 074
4 830 774
(42 294)

199 101
1 152 973
–

Closing balance

6 140 554

1 352 074

6 140 554

1 352 074

* Before share split.
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19.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables, sundry creditors and accrued expenses are obligations to pay for goods or services that
have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers. They are accounted for as financial
liabilities in accordance with the accounting policy disclosed in note 30.
Expenses and assets are recognised net of VAT, except:

• when the VAT incurred on a purchase of assets or services is not recoverable from SARS, in which case,
the VAT is recognised as part of the cost of acquisition of the asset or as part of the expense item, as
applicable; and

• receivables and payables which are stated inclusive of VAT. The net amount of sales tax recoverable from,
or payable to, SARS is included as part of receivables or payables in the statement of financial position.
Company

Trade payables
Lease straight-lining accrual
Related parties (note 29)
Other payables
VAT
Derivative liability – FEC (note 30)

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

447 070
12 109
794 263
169 213
20 311
–

401 312
15 716
598 918
81 983
17 342
–

2 368 618
17 632
–
235 998
3 184
15 783

1 681 241
18 434
–
54 618
–
–

1 442 966

1 115 271

2 641 215

1 754 293

Trade and other payables are non-interest bearing and are generally on terms of 7 to 90 days.
Other payables consist of payables relating to payroll as well as general accruals.
Refer to note 30 on liquidity risk management. Refer to notes 24 and 26 for further information on the leases.

20.

Loans receivable/payable

Loans are accounted for as financial assets/liabilities in accordance with the accounting policy disclosed in
note 30.
Loans receivable

Current loans
Directors’ loans
NCI shareholders loans
Related parties (note 29)
Other loans

Company

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

–
–
132 791
20 706

26 353
2 025
130 244
24 011

–
4 703
38 715
28 852

26 363
8 762
99 309
64 238

153 497

182 633

72 270

198 672

Other loans mainly relate to loans given to Optipharm and ASU (2016: Optipharm, Eurolab and ASU) which
are companies within the pharmaceutical industry and payable on demand.
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20.

Loans receivable/payable (continued)

Loans payable

Company
2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

647 000

–

647 000

–

647 000

–

647 000

–

–
206 526
149 000
–
198

–
90 571
–
–
–

4 899
19 691
149 000
–
69

13 192
13 737
–
97
–

355 724

90 571

173 659

27 026

The Absa loan consists of two parts and was obtained in December 2016:
• The first part of the term loan is for R600 million repayable quarterly over four years at a variable interest rate
linked to JIBAR. The first instalment payment was due on 31 March 2017.

• The loan is secured by the cession of the book debts in and general notarial bond over movable assets of
Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited.
Related party loans are considered to be short-term in nature as they are payable on demand and do not
bear interest.

21.

Employee-related obligations

Short-term employee obligations are measured at the undiscounted amount required to settle the present
obligation at the reporting date. Included in short-term employee obligations are bonus and leave pay.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

• The second part of the term loan is for R200 million repayable at the end of four years at a variable interest
rate linked to JIBAR.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Current loans
NCI shareholders loans
Related parties (note 29)
Absa Bank
Nedbank
Other

2017
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Non-current loans
Absa Bank

Group

The expected cost of short-term employee benefits are recognised in the form of paid absences as follows:

• in the case of non-accumulating paid absences, when the absences occur.

The expected cost of profit-sharing and bonus payments are recognised when, and only when:
• there is a present legal or constructive obligation to make such payments as a result of past events; and
• a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made.

A present obligation exists when, and only when, there is no realistic alternative but to make the payments.
When an employee has rendered service to the Group during a period, the Group shall recognise the
contribution payable to a defined contribution plan in exchange for that service as a liability (accrued
expense), after deducting any contribution already paid. The expense is recognised in profit or loss.
Company

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

68 632
30 658

56 296
26 616

91 807
33 584

73 286
29 155

99 290

82 912

125 391

102 441

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Leave pay
Bonus

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

• in the case of accumulating paid absences, when the employees render service that increases their
entitlement to future paid absences.

The bonus is dependent on the Group performance as well as individual ratings.
DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

105

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 28 February 2017

22.

Deferred revenue

Loyalty benefit point scheme

The Group operates a loyalty scheme which allows retail customers to accumulate points that entitle them,
subject to certain criteria, to use these points in the future in any store in exchange for goods or services.
The fair value which includes the expected redemption rate attributed to the points awarded, is deferred as
a liability and recognised as revenue on redemption of the points by customers. The Group experiences low
levels of unredeemed loyalty points due to the ease with which customers can redeem them at point of sale.

Gift vouchers

The fair value of gift vouchers which includes the expected redemption rate attributed to the vouchers, is
deferred as a liability and recognised as revenue on redemption of the gift vouchers by customers.
Company

Loyalty benefit points scheme
Gift vouchers

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

57 277
45 558

37 919
41 625

49 806
45 558

35 401
41 625

102 835

79 544

95 364

77 026

Deferred revenue liability is recognised for expected loyalty benefit points and gift vouchers redeemed by
customers for purchases made by participating customers for the loyalty points and gift vouchers purchased
for cash during the last three years, based on past experience of the level of redemptions. It is expected that
a majority of these will be redeemed in the next financial year and all will have been redeemed within two
years of the reporting date. Assumptions used to calculate the liability are based on current redemption
rates at existing stores which are between 80% and 90% (2016: 80% and 90%).

23.

Contingent consideration

The contingent consideration is measured at fair value through profit and loss with any fair value gains and
losses recognised in other costs.
Company

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

73 309
24 003

–
–

73 309
24 003

–
–

97 312

–

97 312

–

The contingent consideration relates to acquisition of the non-controlling shareholders and is based on the
future performance of each respective partner store, times the respective minority interests each year for
five years to be paid in cash if performance targets are met. The performance targets will be agreed on an
annual basis with each selling non-controlling shareholder.
It is currently assumed that the partner stores will meet the performance targets in all five years and
that the selling non-controlling shareholders will therefore be entitled to the deferred consideration.
The present value of estimated deferred consideration is recognised as a liability which will be unwound
over the five-year period. The current period interest amounted to R3.3 million at a discount rate of 12.9%.
Refer to note 30 for fair value disclosure.
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24.

Finance lease liability
Leases

A lease is classified at the inception date as a finance lease or an operating lease.
Finance leases, which transfer to the lessee substantially all the risks and rewards incidental to ownership of
the leased item, are capitalised at the inception of the lease at the fair value of the leased asset or, if lower,
at the present value of the minimum lease payments. Lease payments are apportioned between the finance
charges and reduction of the lease liability so as to achieve a constant rate of interest on the remaining
balance of the liability. Finance charges are charged directly against profit or loss. Capitalised leased
assets are depreciated over the shorter of the estimated useful life of the asset or the lease term, if it is not
reasonably certain that ownership will transfer at the end of the lease.

Gains from renegotiated lease terms arise where the terms and conditions of lease agreements are
substantially modified. In this case the original lease contract is derecognised and a new lease agreement
recognised.
Group

Less: future finance charges

2016
R’000

64 040
301 292
1 303 571

59 676
279 611
4 066 935

1 668 903
(1 043 606)

4 406 222
(3 752 002)

625 297

654 220

Present value of minimum payment due:
– Within one year
– Within five years
– Over five years

2 390
59 055
563 852

–
–
654 220

625 297

654 220

622 907
2 390

651 679
2 541

625 297

654 220

Non-current liabilities
Current liabilities

Capitalised finance leases relate to motor vehicles and land and buildings and the interest rates are linked to
prime at the contract date. The capitalised finance leases relating to motor vehicles are secured by the motor
vehicles (refer to note 12).

In the 2016 financial year, Dis-Chem Distribution’s lease was renegotiated and classified as a finance lease
instead of an operating lease due to the renewed terms. The lease term for the land and buildings is 30 years
with an escalation of 8%. The leased land and buildings were recognised at its fair value of R619 million at the
date of modification. The effective interest rate of the finance lease liability amounts to 14.7%. This lease was
entered into with a related party, Columbia Falls Property 7 Proprietary Limited (refer to note 29).
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reducing to 10%. The new lease contract results in the lease being benchmarked to comparable industry
rental payments every seven years.
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Present value of minimum payments

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Minimum payments due
– Within one year
– Within five years
– Over five years

2017
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

Leases where the lessor does not retain substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership of the asset are
classified as operating leases. Operating lease rentals with fixed escalation clauses are charged to profit or
loss on a straight-line basis over the term of the leases.

LEADERSHIP

The determination of whether an arrangement is, or contains a lease, is based on the substance of the
arrangement at the inception date and depends on whether the fulfillment of the arrangement is dependent
on the use of a specific asset, and whether the arrangement conveys the right to use the asset.
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25.

Dividends to shareholders
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

870 000
–
–
–

–
58 823
88 235
630 000

870 000

777 058

–
–

170 589
60 756

870 000

1 008 403

Dividends per share

Cents

Cents

Interim paid
Final declared/paid

109.5
7.3

208.1
79.3

Dis-Chem Pharmacies
30 March 2016
29 May 2015
26 June 2015
29 February 2016
Dis-Chem Distribution
1 September 2015
28 September 2015

26.

Operating lease liability

Refer to accounting policy in note 24.
Company

Operating lease liability
– Current portion in trade and other payables
– Non-current portion

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

12 109
132 586

15 716
121 594

17 632
179 162

18 434
170 872

144 695

137 310

196 794

189 306

The Group and company have entered into commercial property leases in respect of its retail stores.
These non-cancellable leases have remaining terms of between 1 and 11 years (2016: 1 and 12 years).
The leases include an escalation clause of 7% to 8% which has been straight-lined over the remaining period
of the initial lease in terms IAS 17 – Leases. No material contingent rentals are paid.

27.

Commitments
Company
Commitments under non-cancellable operating
leases, payable as follows:
Within one year
Within five years
Over five years

108

Group

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

249 385
959 219
648 032

194 874
747 318
427 141

340 170
1 274 970
828 567

266 920
757 897
609 461

1 856 636

1 369 333

2 443 707

1 634 278
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28.

Notes to the statement of cash flows

Cash and cash equivalents are accounted for as loans and receivables and bank overdrafts are accounted for
as financial liabilities in accordance with the accounting policy disclosed in note 30.

Company

28.1 Cash generated by operations

28.3 Taxation paid

Net amount receivable at beginning of the year
Amount charged excluding deferred tax
Net amount payable/(receivable) at end of the year

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

771 309

62 085

901 983

817 871

104 631
149 319
(19 525)
16 378
23 291
(68 440)

88 663
20 446
(6 568)
11 227
18 153
(48 553)

162 028
249 217
(23 977)
22 950
18 338
–

150 774
96 466
(7 315)
15 022
11 684
–

417

(808)

584
(72 648)
(501)
2 370
15 783
–

(20 307)

7 385
–
290
–
100

9 345
–
–
–
–

985 155

153 990

29 136
112 153
(80 883)
(136 118)
304 650

(16 843)
(46 479)
(203 214)
(19 883)
311 581

126 402
(8 734)
(418 871)
(312 746)
832 409

(135 714)
(5 124)
(472 537)
(160 712)
447 219

228 938

25 162

218 460

(326 868)

52 421
(211 600)
8 541

21 587
3 882
(52 421)

44 080
(294 138)
2 578

19 904
(212 326)
(44 080)

(150 638)

(26 952)

(247 480)

(236 502)

1 276 127

(72 757)
(344)
588
–
–
991 682

AUDITED ANNUAL
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Increase/(decrease) in loans receivable
Decrease/(increase) in loans payable
Increase in inventories
Increase in trade and other receivables
Increase in trade and other payables

2016
R’000

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

28.2 Movement in working capital

2017
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

Profit before tax
Adjustments for:
– Depreciation and amortisation
– Finance costs
– Finance income
– Increase in employee obligations
– Increase in deferred revenue
– Dividend income
– Loss/(profit) on sale of tangible and intangible
assets
– Increase/(decrease) from lease liability straightlining and changes in lease terms
– Share of profit in associates
– Increase in provision for bad debt
– Fair value loss relating to non-hedging derivatives
– Impairment of investment in associate

Group

LEADERSHIP

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand and deposits held on call, all of which are available-foruse by the Group.

SHAREHOLDER
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28.

Notes to the statement of cash flows (continued)
Cash and cash equivalents comprise the following:

28.4 Cash and cash equivalents

Cash on hand and balances with banks
Bank overdrafts

Company

2017
R’000

Group
2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

266 458
–

256 348
(1 432 490)

294 698
(167 059)

273 209
(1 529 708)

266 458

(1 176 142)

127 639

(1 256 499)

Cash at bank earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates.

Group

In the current year the Absa loan was secured by the cession of the book debts in and general notarial
bond over movable assets of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited. Trade and other receivables relating to
CJ Pharmaceutical Enterprises Limited amounting to R422 million (2016: R369 million) were pledged as
security for the overdraft facility with Nedbank.

Company

In the prior year suretyship had been given to CJ Pharmaceutical Enterprises Limited in the amount of
R80 million and cross suretyship exists between the company and Dis-Chem Distributions Proprietary Limited
in the amount of R120 million.
Group
The following material non-cash items occurred during the period:

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

–
–
461 458

619 000
1 152 973
–

28.5 Material non-cash items

Additions of land and buildings under finance lease included in property, plant
and equipment (note 12)
Recapitalisation of shares (note 18)
Shares issued for acquisition of non-controlling interest (note 4)

29.

Related party transactions

Related party transactions constitute the transfer of resources, services or obligations between the
Group and a party related to the Group. For the purposes of defining related party transactions with key
management, key management has been defined as directors and includes close members of their families
and entities controlled or jointly controlled by these individuals.
Outstanding balances as at 28 February 2017 and 2016 are unsecured and settlement occurs in cash.
The ultimate controlling party of the Group and company is Ivlyn Proprietary Limited that holds 53.2%
(2016: 69.8%) of the shares in Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited.
Directors’ direct and indirect holdings of shares in the company is disclosed in the Directors Report.
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29.

Related party transactions (continued)

Company
2017

Related party

21/(6 067 499)
–
45/(82)
(9 006)
37/(67)
(4 939)
441/(308)
275/(5 759)
86/(177)
(5 607)
125/(241)
(15 941)
139/(116)
(9 325)
781/(392)
(4 427)
333/(345)
(6 079)
452/(483)
4 454
278/(431)
(7 821)
127/(113)
(2 030)
345/(132)
(27 824)
532/(348)
5 686/(6 304)
569/(606)
(18 657)
637/(391)
(8 480)
633/(1 044)
29 181
433/(483)
(5 220)
211/(114)
4 370/(974)
163/(96)
50/(8 756)
2 029/(1 475)
393/(13 600)
801/(293) 10 485/(10 992)
223/(251) 10 132/(7 296)
113/(306)
1 874/(7 295)
382/(475)
7 039
428/(367)
8 827
591/(329)
(11 254)
–
5 785
45/(103)
9 837
530/(107) 15 000/(1 940)
–
4 270
–
–
–
(7 000)
–
15 133

–
–
1
10
–
2
–
81
47
–
–
–
115
20
12
15
6 025
–
3
14
–
32
12
–
27
6
22 559
–
–
–
–
28 253
–
–

754 988
4
–
–
96
–
–
–
–
5
67
10
–
–
–
–
–
68
–
–
–
–
–
14
–
–
–
421
4
8
74
–
38 504
–

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Trade
and other
payable
R’000

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Trade
and other
receivable
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

Dis-Chem Distribution
Dis-Chem Riverside
Dis-Chem Hemmingway
Dis-Chem Cape Road
Dis-Chem Garden Route
Dis-Chem Highveld Mall
Dis-Chem Mooirivier
Dis-Chem Ballito
Dis-Chem Krugersdorp
Dis-Chem Brooklyn
Dis-Chem Woodlands
Dis-Chem Savanna
Dis-Chem North Cape Mall
Dis-Chem Three Rivers
Dis-Chem Bayside
Dis-Chem Amanzimtoti
Pharma-Logistical Solutions
Dis-Chem Glen Fair
Dis-Chem Jeffreys Bay
Dis-Chem Flamewood Mall
Dis-Chem Nicolway
Dis-Chem Glen Acres
Dis-Chem Festival Mall
Dis-Chem Secunda
Dis-Chem Park Station
Dis-Chem Worcester
Dis-Chem Oncology
Dis-Chem Namibia
Dis-Chem Platinum Park
Dis-Chem Rynfield
Dis-Chem Swakopmund
CJ Marketing
CJ Enterprise
MSDS No 3 Pty Ltd

Loan
receivable/
(payable)
R’000

Sales/
(purchases)
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Related party transactions with a company within same Group of companies:

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

111

NOTES TO THE ANNUAL FINANCIAL STATEMENTS CONTINUED
for the year ended 28 February 2017

29.

Related party transactions (continued)
Company
2016

Related party transactions with a company within same Group of companies:
Loan
Trade
Sales/
receivable/
and other
(purchases)
(payable)
receivable
Related party
R’000
R’000
R’000
Dis-Chem Distribution
Dis-Chem Riverside
Dis-Chem Hemmingway
Dis-Chem Cape Road
Dis-Chem Garden Route
Dis-Chem Highveld Mall
Dis-Chem Mooirivier
Dis-Chem Ballito
Dis-Chem Krugersdorp
Dis-Chem Brooklyn
Dis-Chem Woodlands
Dis-Chem Savanna
Dis-Chem North Cape Mall
Dis-Chem Three Rivers
Dis-Chem Bayside
Dis-Chem Amanzimtoti
Pharma-Logistical Solutions
Dis-Chem Glen Fair
Dis-Chem Jeffreys Bay
Dis-Chem Flamewood Mall
Dis-Chem Nicolway
Dis-Chem Glen Acres
Dis-Chem Festival Mall
Dis-Chem Secunda
Dis-Chem Park Station
Dis-Chem Worcester
Dis-Chem Oncology
Dis-Chem Namibia

18/(4 924 736)
40/(70)
24/(93)
202/(376)
18/(67)
250/(197)
96/(196)
531/(362)
214/(282)
241/(461)
191/(323)
254/(299)
52/(156)
397/(249)
335/(473)
440/(237)
849/(979)
330/(212)
106/(157)
23/(59)
1 291/(741)
520/(205)
164/(136)
161/(75)
209/(383)
299/(274)
–
–

–
(2 508)
1 393/(1 686)
4 165/(1 876)
(1 642)
(6 339)
(6 315)
(2 128)
(4 664)
11 280
(1 903)
3 642
(21 484)
7 453/(1 670)
(6 006)
(5 835)
48 403
(783)
5 674/(974)
50/(5 913)
393/(5 000)
14 926/(4 734)
11 221/(4 837)
4 131/(4 274)
8 165
7 645
53
1 650

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
3 387
2 857
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Trade
and other
payable
R’000
593 694
54
75
323
30
127
178
226
213
433
293
293
–
–
389
156
775
161
167
20
412
68
124
149
352
206
–
–

Company
The company received dividends of R68.4 million (2016: R43.5 million) from its subsidiaries during the
period.
The company paid rentals to various related party property companies amounting to R20.1 million (2016:
R20 million).
For further information in regards to loans receivable/payable, trade receivables and trade payables refer to
note 20, 17 and 19 respectively.
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29.

Related party transactions (continued)

Group
2017

Loan
Sales/ receivable/
(purchases)
(payable)
R’000
R’000

Related party

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Trade
and other
payable
R’000

Leases
paid
R’000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

56 756
–
–
–
–
–
–
26 271

–
(17 096)
2 970
(2 595)
26 462
3 444
5 839
–

2016
Related party transactions with a company that is controlled/jointly controlled by a person that has
significant influence over Dis-Chem Group:

Related party
Columbia Falls Property 7 Pty Ltd
Josneo Pty Ltd
Eleador Pty Ltd
Minlou Pty Ltd
Various property companies

–
–
–
–
–

Trade
and other
receivable
R’000

Trade
and other
payable
R’000

Leases
paid
R’000

–
–

–
–

53 544
–

–
–
–

–
–
–

–
–
25 668

–
84 309
15 000/
(7 002)
(6 735)
–

Company
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

2017
R’000

2016
R’000

43 058
456
–
–
951

35 905
648
–
–
–

43 058
456
–
–
951

35 905
648
–
–
–

44 465

36 553

44 465

36 553
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Compensation of key management
Short-term employee benefits
Post-employment benefits
Other long-term benefits
Termination benefits
Non-executive directors’ fees

Group

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

For further information in regards to loans receivable/payable, trade receivables and trade payables and
finance lease payable refer to note 20, 17, 19 and 24 respectively. The amount owing by the Group to
Columbia Falls Property 7 Proprietary Limited on the finance lease at year-end amounted to R620 million
(2016: R659 million).

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Loan
Sales/ receivable/
(purchases)
(payable)
R’000
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

Columbia Falls Property 7 Pty Ltd
Josneo Pty Ltd
Eleador Pty Ltd
Minlou Pty Ltd
MSDS No 3 Pty Ltd
Dis-Chem Bothamed Pty Ltd
Dis-Chem Namibia
Various property companies

Trade
and other
receivable
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Related party transactions with a company that is controlled/jointly controlled by a person that has
significant influence over Dis-Chem Group:
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29.

Related party transactions (continued)

Executive and non-executive emoluments to directors

2017
Non-executive directors
LM Nestadt #
MJ Bowman#
A Coovadia#
JS Mthimunye#
MSI Gani^
Executive directors
IL Saltzman
LF Saltzman
RM Morais
SE Saltzman (alternate)
NM Hegarty*
SRN Goetsch*
BI Epstein*
KS Sterling*
LLS van der Watt*

Services
as director
R’000

Salary and
allowances
R’000

625
119
72
135
–

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

11 752
9 691
4 995
4 800
2 849
2 853
2 809
2 853
–

Bonuses(1)
R’000

Retirement
and related
benefits
R’000

Other
benefits
R’000

–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–

625
119
72
135

72
72
72
72
42
42
42
42
–

120
–
37
146
15
15
109
14
–

11 944
9 763
5 104
5 018
2 906
2 910
2 960
2 909
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

Total
R’000

* Resigned 13 October 2016
#

Appointed 13 October 2016

^ Appointed 3 May 2017
(1)

Bonuses relates to amount physically paid in the current period

2016
BI Epstein
IL Saltzman
LF Saltzman
NM Hegarty
RM Morais
SE Saltzman
SRN Goetsch
LLS van der Watt
KS Sterling

Salary and
allowances
R’000
3 517
10 679
4 528
3 384
3 379
3 493
3 542
–
3 383

Bonuses
R’000

Retirement
and related
benefits
R’000

Total
R’000

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

72
72
72
72
72
72
72
72
72

3 589
10 751
4 600
3 456
3 451
3 565
3 614
72
3 455

 ll executive directors have service contracts with Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited and are paid by the
A
company.
Refer to the Report of Directors in regards to the share capital held by the directors.
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies
Financial assets and liabilities

All regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on the trade date, which is the date
that the Group commits to purchase the asset. Regular way purchases or sales are purchases or sales of
financial assets that require delivery of assets within the period generally established by regulation or
convention in the marketplace.

LEADERSHIP

Initial recognition
Financial instruments, or their component parts, are classified on initial recognition as financial assets,
financial liabilities or equity instruments in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

Financial assets and liabilities recognised on the statement of financial position include cash and cash
equivalents, trade and other receivables, trade and other payables and loans and borrowings. The particular
recognition methods adopted are disclosed in the individual policy statements associated with each item.

For the purposes of the cash flow statements, cash and cash equivalents consist of cash and cash equivalents
as defined above, net of outstanding short-term bank borrowings as overdrafts are an integral part of the
Group’s cash management policies.
Cash and cash equivalents are recognised initially at fair value plus transaction costs that are attributable to
the acquisition of the financial asset.

Trade and other payables
Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value net of directly attributable transaction costs.
Loans and borrowings
All loans and borrowings are initially recognised at the fair value of the consideration received net of issue
costs associated with the borrowing.

Subsequent measurement
Loans and receivables (including trade and other receivables and cash and cash equivalents)
Loans and receivables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or determinable payments that are not
quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) method, less impairment. Amortised cost is calculated
by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs that are an integral part
of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included in finance income in the statement of profit or loss. The losses
arising from impairment are recognised in the statement of profit or loss in finance costs for loans and in
other operating expenses for receivables.

Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any discount or premium on acquisition and fees or costs
that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortisation is included as finance costs in profit or loss.
At fair value (including FEC and contingent consideration)
After initial recognition, items are subsequently measured at fair value with any fair value gains and losses
recognised in other costs.

DIS-CHEM PHARMACIES Annual Integrated Report for the financial year ended 28 February 2017

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION

Loans and borrowings (including trade and other payables)
After initial recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings are subsequently measured at amortised cost
using the EIR method. Gains and losses are recognised in profit or loss when the liabilities are derecognised
as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Derivative liability – FEC
FECs are initially recognised at the fair value on the contract date.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Trade and other receivables
Trade receivables, which generally have seven to 30-day terms, are recognised and carried at original
invoice value less an allowance for uncollectable amounts. Provision is made when there is objective
evidence that the Group will not be able to collect the debts. Where the effect of the time value of money
is significant, receivables have been reflected at amortised cost using the effective interest rate method.
Bad debts are written off when identified.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash at bank and on hand and short-term deposits with an original
maturity of three months or less, and are measured at amortised cost.
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Derecognition of financial assets and liabilities
Financial assets
A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar financial assets)
is derecognised when:
• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired;

• the right to receive cash flows from the asset is retained, but has assumed an obligation to pay them in full
without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass through’ arrangement; or

• the rights to receive cash flows from the asset have been transferred and either (a) has transferred
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset, or (b) has neither transferred nor retained substantially all
the risks and rewards of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset.
Where the rights to receive cash flows from an asset has been transferred but all the risks and rewards of the
asset has been substantially transferred or retained nor has control of the asset been transferred, the asset
is recognised to the extent of continuing involvement in the asset. Continuing involvement that takes the
form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at the lower of the original carrying amount of the
asset and the maximum amount of consideration that could be required to be repaid.
Financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged or cancelled or
expires.
Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on substantially different
terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified, such an exchange or modification is
treated as a derecognition of the original liability and the recognition of a new liability, and the difference in
the respective carrying amounts is recognised in profit or loss.
Impairment of financial assets
At each reporting date it is assessed whether a financial asset or group of financial assets are impaired.
Assets carried at amortised cost
If there is objective evidence that an impairment loss on loans and receivables carried at amortised cost has
been incurred, the amount of the loss is measured as the difference between the asset’s carrying amount
and the present value of estimated future cash flows (excluding future expected credit losses) discounted
at the financial asset’s original effective interest rate (i.e. the effective interest rate computed at initial
recognition). The carrying amount of the asset is reduced through use of an allowance account. The amount
of the loss is recognised in profit or loss.
If, in a subsequent period, the amount of the impairment loss decreases and the decrease can be related
objectively to an event occurring after the impairment was recognised, the previously recognised
impairment loss is reversed. Any subsequent reversal of an impairment loss is recognised in profit or loss.
In relation to trade and other receivables, a provision for impairment is made when there is objective
evidence (such as default or delinquency in payments, the probability of insolvency or significant financial
difficulties of the debtor or group of debtors) that all of the amounts due under the original terms of the
invoice will not be collected. If the Group determines that no objective evidence of impairment exists for an
individually assessed financial asset, whether significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial
assets with similar credit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. The carrying
amount of the receivable is reduced through use of an allowance account. Impaired debts are derecognised
when they are assessed as uncollectible.
Offsetting of financial instruments
Financial assets and financial liabilities are offset and the net amount is reported in the statement of financial
position if, and only if, there is a currently enforceable legal right to offset the recognised amounts and there
is an intention to settle on a net basis, to realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.
Fair value measurement
In addition to the financial instruments carried at fair value (available for sale financial instruments), the fair
values of financial instruments measured at amortised cost are disclosed should it be determined that the
carrying value of these instruments does not reasonably approximate their fair value at each reporting date.
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date.
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Financial assets and liabilities (continued)

• In the principal market for the asset or liability; or

• In the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.
The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.

The valuation techniques that are used to measure fair value are appropriate in the circumstances and for
which sufficient data is available, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.
All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the annual consolidated financial
statements are categorised within the fair value hierarchy, described as follows, based on the lowest level
input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole:
• Level 1 Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities.

2017 PERFORMANCE

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would
use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their economic best interest.
A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant
that would use the asset in its highest and best use.

LEADERSHIP

Fair value measurement (continued)
The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the
liability takes place either:

• Level 2 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is directly or indirectly observable.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the annual consolidated financial statements at fair value, or
for which the fair value is disclosed, on a recurring basis, it is determined whether transfers have occurred
between the levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period.
The Group’s principal financial instruments comprise loans, cash and short-term deposits. The main purpose
of these financial instruments is to provide finance for the company’s operations. The company has various
other financial instruments such as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise directly from its
operations.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The main risks arising from the company’s financial instruments are interest rate risk, liquidity risk, and credit
risk. The Group has immaterial foreign exchange risk. The board reviews and agrees policies for managing
each of these risks, which are summarised below.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

• Level 3 Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement
is unobservable.

SHAREHOLDER
INFORMATION
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Classification of financial instruments

Company
February 2017
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Deferred taxation
Investments at cost
Investment in associates at cost
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable
Taxation receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Trade and other payables
Employee obligations
Deferred revenue
Loan payable
Contingent consideration
Taxation payable
Bank overdraft
February 2016
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible asset
Deferred taxation
Investments at cost
Investment in associates at cost
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable
Taxation receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Operating lease liability
Trade and other payables
Employee obligations
Deferred revenue
Loan payable
Bank overdraft

118

Financial
liability at Financial asset –
amortised
loans and Non-financial
cost
receivables
instruments
R’000
R’000
R’000

Financial
instrument
R’000

At fair
value
R’000

–
–
–
–
–
–
428 111
153 497
–
266 458

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
411 399
153 497
–
266 458

282 839
8 752
90 789
1 842 046
–
1 183 997
16 712
–
–
–

–
1 410 546
–
–
1 002 724
97 312
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
97 312
–

–
1 410 546
–
–
1 002 724
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–

132 586
32 420
99 290
102 835
–
–
8 541
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
294 669
182 633
–
256 348

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
294 669
182 633
–
256 348

225 980
13 839
67 644
1 221 508
1 466
1 103 114
2 714
–
52 421
–

–
1 082 213
–
–
90 571
1 432 490

–
–
–
–
–
–

–
1 082 213
–
–
90 571
1 432 490

–
–
–
–
–
–

121 594
33 058
82 912
79 544
–
–
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Classification of financial instruments (continued)

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
1 050 004
72 270
–
294 698

995 401
40 310
156 029
–
3 233 911
41 897
–
12 141
–

–
–
2 620 399
–
–
820 659
–
97 312
167 059

–
–
15 783
–
–
–
–
97 312
–

–
–
2 620 399
–
–
820 659
–
–
167 059

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

625 296
179 162
20 816
125 391
95 364
–
14 719
–

–
–
–
–
–
740 064
198 672
–
273 209

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
–
–
–
740 064
198 672
–
273 209

918 979
35 253
108 762
1 935
2 806 572
27 743
–
58 644
–

–
–
1 735 859
–
–
27 026
–
1 529 708

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

–
–
1 735 859
–
–
27 026
–
1 529 708

–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

654 220
170 872
18 434
102 441
77 026
14 564
–
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–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–
–

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

–
–
–
–
–
1 050 004
72 270
–
294 698

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

February 2016
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred taxation
Investments
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable
Taxation receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Finance lease liability
Operating lease liability
Trade and other payables
Employee obligations
Deferred revenue
Loan payable
Tax payable
Bank overdraft

At fair
value
R’000

2017 PERFORMANCE

February 2017
Assets
Property, plant and equipment
Intangible assets
Deferred taxation
Investments
Inventories
Trade and other receivables
Loans receivable
Taxation receivable
Cash and cash equivalents
Liabilities
Finance lease liability
Operating lease liability
Trade and other payables
Employee obligations
Deferred revenue
Loan payable
Tax payable
Contingent consideration
Bank overdraft

Financial
instrument
R’000

LEADERSHIP

Group

Financial
liability at Financial asset –
amortised
loans and Non-financial
cost
receivables
instruments
R’000
R’000
R’000
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Credit risk

The carrying amount of financial assets represents the maximum credit exposure which relates to trade and
other receivables, loans receivables and positive cash and cash equivalents.
Trade and other receivables
The Group and company are exposed to credit risk in relation to trade and other receivables from its retail
and wholesale business.
2017
R’000

2016
R’000

The maximum exposure to credit risk for trade receivables
(excluding intercompany) is as follows:
Retail
Wholesale

181 960
357 046

153 237
298 850

The maximum exposure to credit risk for other receivables is as follows:
Retail
Wholesale

312 396
198 602

208 194
76 373

In relation to the retail business, trade receivables primarily relate to amounts recoverable from medical aids.
These receivables are deemed to be low credit risk as medical schemes pay within 14 days and all amounts
are neither past due nor impaired. The majority of other receivables relates to rebates receivable from
suppliers and are deemed to be low credit risk as the net position with the supplier is a creditor.
In wholesale, customers (excluding intercompany) are primarily independent pharmacists and other
pharmaceutical companies. The majority of other receivables relates to rebates receivable from suppliers
and are deemed to be low credit risk as the net position with the supplier is a creditor.
The risk is managed through formal procedures for granting of credit to trade debtors. Credit quality of
underlying wholesale customers is assessed before credit is granted and re-assessed on a regular basis.
The Group determines the provision for doubtful debt by means of applying a percentage that reflects the
best estimate of incurred credit losses at the reporting date determined with reference to past history to
the relevant age buckets of the trade debtors. The process for managing wholesale credit risk is to allow
10 days after payment is due, for customer to pay. If payment is not subsequently made after following up
with the customer, the customer’s account will be suspended until payment is received or a payment plan is
implemented.
Cash and cash equivalents
With respect to the credit risk arising from cash resources, the company’s and Group’s exposure to credit
risk arises from the default of the counterparty with the maximum exposure equal to the carrying amount of
these resources.
The Group manages and monitors daily funding requirements and has limited foreign currency exposure.
Surplus funds are invested with banking institutions of a high credit standing.
Loans
The Group and company are exposed to credit risk in relation to loans with related and other parties. The
risk is managed through formal procedures for granting of these loans. The recoverability of these loans are
assessed annually. Based on past payment history, the credit quality of these loans are considered to be of a
high credit standing.

Currency risk

The Group’s exposure to currency risk arises from the FEC taken out during the year.
If the USD, with, all other variables held constant, strengthened or weakened by 10% at year end, the impact
of the Group’s profit before tax would be approximately R4 million.
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Interest rate risk

As part of the process of managing the Group’s interest rate risk, interest rate characteristics of new
borrowings and refinancing of existing borrowings are positioned according to anticipated movements in
interest rates. Funds on call earn interest at prevailing market call rates. Interest payable on bank borrowings
fluctuates in accordance with prime bank lending rates while the Absa loan fluctuates with the JIBAR rate.

LEADERSHIP

The Group and company’s exposure to the risk of changes in market interest rates relates primarily to the
Absa loan with a floating interest rate linked to JIBAR as well as interest incurred on overdraft facilities
(note 9).

If the interest rate, with all other variables held constant, increased or decreased by 50 average basis points
(2016: 200) at year-end, the impact of the Group’s profit before tax would be approximately R9.4 million
(2016: R20 million). The sensitivity analysis for both periods presented was based on the average balance
of the funds during the period on the bank borrowings, Absa loan and finance lease liability.

Liquidity risk

In the prior year, the company has a general banking facility of R100 million with Nedbank and a corporate
call account with Investec as a working capital overdraft facility of R600 million. CJ Pharmaceutical has a
revolving credit facility of R10 million to be used by way of vehicle and asset finance and general banking
facility of R160 million with Nedbank. An additional seasonal facility of R40 million was available during the
first quarter of the year.
The table on the next page summarises the maturity profile of the company’s/Group’s financial liabilities at
year-end, based on contractual and undiscounted payments.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

During the current year, Dis-Chem had a general banking facility of R100 million with Nedbank, a corporate
call account with Investec as a working capital overdraft facility of R600 million (the ‘Investec Facility’) and
an unsecured facility up to R1 500 000 000 (the ‘Bridge Facility’) with Absa Bank Limited. The Investec
Facility and the Bridge Facility were replaced in December 2016 by the Absa loan of R800 million as well as
an overdraft prime lending facility of up to R700 million. CJ Pharmaceutical has a revolving credit facility of
R10 million to be used by way of vehicle and asset finance and general banking facility of R200 million with
Nedbank.

2017 PERFORMANCE

If the interest rate, with all other variables held constant, increased or decreased by 50 average basis
points at year-end, the impact of the company’s profit before tax would be approximately R5.9 million.
The sensitivity analysis presented was based on the average balance of the funds during the period on
the bank borrowings and Absa loan.
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)
On demand
R’000

Total
R’000

Company
2017
Trade and other payables
Loans payable excluding Absa loan
Contingent consideration
Absa loan linked to JIBAR

–
206 724
–
–

1 410 546
–
25 056
221 550

–
–
104 257
775 986

1 410 546
206 724
129 313
997 536

Undiscounted payments
Less: future finance charges

206 724
–

1 657 152
(73 603)

880 243
(159 934)

2 744 119
(233 537)

206 724

1 583 549

720 309

2 510 582

–
90 571
–

1 082 213
–
1 432 490

–
–
–

1 082 213
90 571
1 432 490

90 571

2 514 703

–

2 605 274

Group
2017
Trade and other payables
Loans payable excluding Absa loan
Bank overdraft
Contingent consideration
Absa loan linked to JIBAR

–
24 659
–
–
–

2 636 182
–
167 059
25 056
221 550

–
–
–
104 257
775 986

2 636 182
24 659
167 059
129 313
997 536

Undiscounted payments
Less: future finance charges

24 659
–

3 049 847
(73 603)

880 243
(159 934)

3 954 749
(233 537)

24 659

2 976 244

720 309

3 721 212

–
26 929
–

1 735 859
97
1 529 708

–
–
–

1 735 859
27 026
1 529 708

26 929

3 265 664

–

3 292 593

2016
Trade and other payables
Loans payable
Bank overdraft

2016
Trade and other payables
Loans payable
Bank overdraft
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Less than Greater than
12 months
12 months
R’000
R’000
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30.

Financial risk management objectives and policies (continued)

Fair value

Level 2
R’000

Level 3
R’000

2017
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
– Derivative liability
– Contingent consideration

–
–

15 783
–

–
97 312

2016
Financial liabilities at fair value through profit and loss
– Derivative liability
– Contingent consideration

–
–

–
–

–
–

Group

The disclosure for the company would be as per the above except for derivative liability that relates to the
Group and not the company.
The derivatives represent forward exchange contracts (FECs). The fair value of the FEC liability is measured
with reference to market data. The key input into this valuation is the forward exchange rate as provided by a
reputable bank.

Reconciliation of recurring Level 3 fair value movements:

2017
R’000
–
94 027
–
3 285

Closing balance

97 312

There has been no change in the range of undiscounted contingent consideration outcomes during the
year. A reasonable movement in the unobservable inputs would not significantly impact the fair value of the
contingent consideration as at the end of the reporting period and therefore not significantly impact profit
after tax or equity.
There were no transfers of financial instruments between Level 1, Level 2 and Level 3 fair value
measurements during the year ended February 2017.

31.

Capital management

The primary objective of the company’s capital management is to ensure that it maintains a strong credit
rating and healthy capital ratios in order to support its business and maximise shareholder value.

No changes were made in the objectives, policies and processes for managing capital during the years
ended 28 February 2017 and 29 February 2016.
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The company considers share capital and retained income as capital. The board of directors considers
capital requirements from time to time and makes adjustments accordingly.
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Opening balance
Acquisitions
Payments
Interest

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The fair value of the contingent consideration payable is measured with reference to the performance
forecasts which can be used to estimate future cash flows. The key inputs into this valuation are the
estimated future cash flows and the average discount rate of 12.9% used to determine the present value of
the future cash flows.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Level 1
R’000

LEADERSHIP

The information below analyses financial assets and liabilities that are carried at fair value or financial assets
and liabilities that have carrying amounts that differ from their fair values:
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32.

Events after reporting period

The directors are not aware of any matter or circumstance arising since the end of the financial year up
to the date of this report that would require amendment or additional disclosure in these annual financial
statements, except for the acquisition of Optipharm Proprietary Limited.
On 1 April 2017, the Group acquired certain assets and liabilities of Optipharm Proprietary Limited,
an unlisted wholesale company based in South Africa. The calculation of the fair value of the assets and
liabilities are still being finalised.

Assets acquired and liabilities assumed

The provisional fair values of the identifiable assets and liabilities of these companies as at the date of
acquisition were:
R’000
Assets
Property, plant and equipment and software
Trade receivables
Intangibles
Liabilities
Finance lease
Trade and other payables
Deferred tax

16 034
1 913
43 696
61 643
(2 252)
(113 265)
(12 235)
(127 752)

Total identifiable net assets at fair value
Non-controlling interest at fair value
Goodwill arising on acquisition
Purchase consideration transferred

(66 109)
–
66 109
–

The goodwill comprises the value of expected synergies arising from the acquisition which is not separately
recognised.
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Analysis of ordinary shareholders as at 28 February 2017

Shareholder spread
1 – 1 000
1 001 – 10 000
10 001 – 100 000
100 001 – 1 000 000
Over 1 000 000

4 528
2 635
570
137
47

57.19
33.28
7.20
1.73
0.60

1 623 795
8 652 558
17 424 063
46 179 401
785 393 856

0.19
1.01
2.03
5.37
91.40

Total

7 917

100.00

859 273 673

100.00

Number of
shareholdings

% of total
shareholdings

Number
of shares

% of issued
capital

Distribution of shareholders
Assurance companies
Close corporations
Collective investment schemes
Custodians
Foundations and charitable funds
Hedge funds
Insurance companies
Investment partnerships
Managed funds
Medical aid funds
Organs of state
Private companies
Public companies
Public entities
Retail shareholders
Retirement benefit funds
Scrip lending
Sovereign funds
Stockbrokers and nominees
Trusts

21
51
157
11
37
26
7
28
20
23
7
161
4
4
6 439
204
4
2
10
701

0.27
0.64
1.98
0.14
0.47
0.33
0.09
0.35
0.25
0.29
0.09
2.03
0.05
0.05
81.33
2.58
0.05
0.03
0.13
8.85

12 550 128
554 506
117 237 516
16 043 681
1 148 993
10 717 443
419 690
202 319
3 467 456
370 683
20 749 969
626 647 179
34 621
81 836
16 217 841
11 385 253
1 226 917
11 173 190
1 513 997
7 530 455

1.46
0.07
13.64
1.87
0.13
1.25
0.05
0.02
0.40
0.04
2.41
72.93
–
0.01
1.89
1.33
0.14
1.30
0.18
0.88

Total

7 917

100.00

859 273 673

100.00

Shareholder type
Non-public shareholders
Directors and associates
Public shareholders

7
7 910

0.09
99.91

601 176 725
258 096 948

69.96
30.04

Total

7 917

100.00

859 273 673

100.00
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of shares
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% of total
shareholdings
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Analysis of ordinary shareholders as at 28 February 2017 (continued)
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Number
of Shares

% of issued
capital

Fund managers with a holding greater than 3% of the issued shares
Capital Research and Management Company
Fidelity Worldwide Investment

37 736 500
36 728 745

4.39
4.27

Total

74 465 245

8.66

Beneficial shareholders with a holding greater than 3% of the issued shares
Ivlyn (Pty) Ltd
Stansh (Pty) Ltd
SMALLCAP World Fund Inc
Niajul (Pty) Ltd
Fidelity Worldwide Investment

457 041 396
71 340 504
37 736 500
35 670 315
34 521 691

53.19
8.30
4.39
4.15
4.02

Total

636 310 406

74.05
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DEFINITIONS
Adjusted headline earnings

Adjusted Headline earnings per share is (HEPS) is a performance
measure derived from HEPS for three categories of items:

• items deemed to relate to capital structure of the Group – these
items relates to the capital structure of the Group but is not
explicitly provided for in the HEPS circular;

• items related to neither Retail nor Wholesale general operations
– these items represent income and expenses that arise outside
of the Group’s core retail and wholesale business; and
• items not expected to reoccur – these items are income and
expenses that management does not expect to reoccur in the
foreseeable future.
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Capital expenditure –
to maintain operations

Capital expenditure incurred in replacing existing capital (for
example, refurbishment of existing new store).

Capital expenditure –
to expand operations

Capital expenditure that is not to maintain operations (for example,
capital expenditure to open a new store).

Creditors days

Creditors days is calculated as the average trade and other
payables divided by cost of sales for the period, multiplied by
365 days.

Debtors days

Debtors days is calculated as the average trade and other
receivables divided by turnover for the period, multiplied by
365 days.

Dividend payout ratio

Target pay-out ratio is approximately 40% of adjusted headline
earnings weighted by the amount of time the company has been
listed.

Dividend per share

Dividend per share is the interim cash dividend paid and the final
cash dividend declared, expressed as cents per share.

Earnings per share

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent divided by the
WANOS for the period.

EBIT and EBITDA

EBIT is calculated as total comprehensive income adjusted for net
financing expense and taxation. EBITDA is calculated as EBIT
adjusted for depreciation and amortisation.

Gross profit margin

Gross profit margin is calculated as gross profit dividend by
turnover.

Headline earnings

Profit attributable to equity holders of the parent adjusted for the
after-tax effect of goodwill impairment and certain other capital
items.

Headline earnings per share

Headline earnings divided by the WANOS in issue for the period.

Inventory days

Inventory days is calculated as the average inventory divided by
cost of sales for the period, multiplied by 365 days.

Like-for-like revenue growth

Like-for-like revenue growth is defined as total growth in turnover
only taking into account stores that have been open for at least two
full financial years.

Net asset value per share
(WANOS)

Net asset value per share is calculated as total equity at year-end
divided by the weighted average number of shares (WANOS) for
the year.
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Operating margin

Operating margin is calculated as operating profit dividend by
turnover.

Return on Equity

Return on Equity is calculated as profit attributable to equity
holders of the parent divided by average equity attributable to
equity holders of the parent at the start and end of the year.

Revenue

Revenue is calculated as turnover plus other income plus finance
income.

Total working capital days

Total working capital days is calculated as debtors days plus
inventory days less creditors days.

Turnover

Turnover comprises sales of fast-moving consumer goods, net of
returns, discounts, and is stated exclusive of value-added tax.

Weighted average number
of shares (WANOS)

The number of ordinary shares in issue, increased by shares issued
during the period and reduced by shares purchased or shares
cancelled during the period, weighted on a time basis for the
period during which they have participated in the income of the
Group. A share split is taken into account in weighted average
number of shares as if the shares were issued for the whole year
and all earlier years.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Net asset value per share is calculated as total equity at year-end
divided by the actual number of shares issued at year-end.
LEADERSHIP

Net asset value per share
(Actual shares at year-end)
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SHAREHOLDER ANALYSIS
Shareholders analysis at 28 February 2017
Shareholder spread

Number of
shareholdings

% of total
shareholdings

Number
of shares

% of
issued capital

1 – 1 000
1 001 – 10 000
10 001 – 100 000
100 001 – 1 000 000
Over 1 000 000

4 528
2 635
570
137
47

57.19
33.28
7.20
1.73
0.59

1 623 795
8 652 558
17 424 063
46 179 401
785 393 856

0.19
1.01
2.03
5.37
91.40

Total

7 917

100.00

859 273 673

100.00

Number of
shareholdings

% of total
shareholdings

Number
of shares

% of
issued capital

Distribution of shareholders

132

Assurance companies
Close corporations
Collective investment schemes
Custodians
Foundations and charitable
funds
Hedge funds
Insurance companies
Investment partnerships
Managed funds
Medical aid funds
Organs of state
Private companies
Public companies
Public entities
Retail shareholders
Retirement benefit funds
Scrip lending
Sovereign funds
Stockbrokers and nominees
Trusts

21
51
157
11

0.27
0.64
1.98
0.14

12 550 128
554 506
117 237 516
16 043 681

1.46
0.06
13.64
1.87

37
26
7
28
20
23
7
161
4
4
6 439
204
4
2
10
701

0.47
0.33
0.09
0.35
0.25
0.29
0.09
2.03
0.05
0.05
81.33
2.58
0.05
0.03
0.13
8.85

1 148 993
10 717 443
419 690
202 319
3 467 456
370 683
20 749 969
626 647 179
34 621
81 836
16 217 841
11 385 253
1 226 917
11 173 190
1 513 997
7 530 455

0.13
1.25
0.05
0.02
0.40
0.04
2.41
72.93
0.00
0.01
1.89
1.32
0.14
1.30
0.18
0.88

Total

7 917

100.00

859 273 673

100.00
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Number
of shares

% of
issued capital

Non-public shareholders
Directors and associates
Public shareholders

7
7 910

0.09
99.91

601 176 725
258 096 948

69.96
30.04

Total

7 917

100.00

859 273 673

100.00

Number
of shares

% of
issued capital

Ivlyn (Pty) Ltd
Stansh (Pty) Ltd
SMALLCAP World Fund Inc
Niajul (Pty) Ltd
Fidelity Worldwide Investment

457 041 396
71 340 504
37 736 500
35 670 315
34 521 691

53.19
8.30
4.39
4.15
4.02

Total

636 310 406

74.05

Major beneficial shareholders with a holding greater than 3% of the
issued shares

Distribution
DISTRIBUTION OF SHAREHOLDERS
(%)

100 001 – 1 000 000

1 001 – 10 000

Over 1 000
000
Custodians

10 001 – 100 000

Shareholder
SHAREHOLDER
TYPE type

Assurance Companies
Insurance Companies
Organs of State
Retail Shareholders
Stockbrokers & Nominees

Close Corporations
Collective Investment Schemes
Assurance
Companies
Organs of State
Foundations & Charitable Funds
Hedge Funds
Close
Corporations
Private Companies
Investment Partnerships
Managed Funds
Medical Aid Funds
Collective
Investment
Public Companies
Private Companies
Public Schemes
Companies Public Entities
Retirement Beneﬁt Funds Scrip Lending
Sovereign
Funds Entities
Custodians
Public
Trusts
Foundations
& Charitable Funds
Retail Shareholders
Hedge Funds
Retirement Benefit Funds
Insurance Companies
Scrip Lending
Investment Partnerships
Sovereign Funds
Managed Funds
Stockbrokers & Nominees
Medical Aid Funds
Trusts
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING
Notice is hereby given that the seventh Annual General Meeting of shareholders of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited
(“Dis‑Chem” or “the Company”) will be held at Investec, 100 Grayston Drive, Sandton, Johannesburg, 2196, on
28 July 2017 at 10:00. To ensure that registration procedures are completed by 10:00, please register for the Annual
General Meeting from 09:30. Only those shareholders listed in the shareholders’ register as at Friday, 21 July 2017
will be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting. Accordingly, the last day to trade in order to be eligible go
participate in and vote at the Annual General Meeting is Tuesday, 18 July 2017.
The purpose of the Annual General Meeting is to propose the passing of the following ordinary and special resolutions:

1.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1
Approval of annual financial statements

Resolved that the annual financial statements of the Company and its subsidiary companies for the year
ended 28 February 2017, together with the reports of the Directors, Auditors and Audit and Risk Management
Committee be and are hereby considered and adopted.

2.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2

Appointment of auditors and designated auditor
Resolved that Ernst and Young Inc. be and are hereby re-appointed auditors of the Company and that
Mr Derek Engelbrecht is hereby appointed the designated auditor to hold office for the ensuing year.
The Company’s Audit and Risk Committee has recommended the re-appointment of Ernst & Young Inc. as
auditors of the Company with Mr Derek Engelbrecht being appointed as the designated auditor for the current
financial year.

3.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3
Re-election of director

Resolved that Mr Mark John Bowman, who retires in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation,
be re-elected a director of the Company.
The curriculum vitae for Mr Bowman appears on page 21 of this annual report.

4.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4
Re-election of director

Resolved that Dr Anuschka Coovadia, who retires in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation,
be re-elected a director of the Company.
The curriculum vitae for Ms Coovadia appears on page 21 of this annual report.

5.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5
Re-election of director

Resolved that Mr Mahomed Salim Ismail Gani, who retires in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation, be re-elected a director of the Company.
The curriculum vitae for Mr Gani appears on page 21 of this annual report.

6.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 6
Re-election of director

Resolved that Mr Johannes Sanyana Mthimyune, who retires in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation, be re-elected a director of the Company.
The curriculum vitae for Mr Mthimyune appears on page 21 of this annual report.

7.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 7
Re-election of director

Resolved that Mr Laurence Michael Nestadt, who retires in terms of the Company’s Memorandum of
Incorporation, be re‑elected a director of the Company.
The curriculum vitae for Mr Nestadt appears on page 20 of this annual report.
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8.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 8

Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member

9.

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 9

Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member
Resolved that Dr Anuschka Coovadia be appointed a member of the Audit and Risk Committee and that this
appointment shall be valid up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

LEADERSHIP

Resolved that Mr Mark John Bowman be appointed a member of the Company’s Audit and Risk Committee
and that this appointment shall be valid up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

10. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 10

Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member

11. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 11

Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member
Resolved that Mr Johannes Sanyana Mthimunye be appointed a member of the Audit and Risk Committee and
that this appointment shall be valid up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

12. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 12

2017 PERFORMANCE

Resolved that Mr Mahomed Salim Ismail Gani be appointed a member of the Audit and Risk Committee and
that this appointment shall be valid up to the date of the next Annual General Meeting of the Company.

Remuneration Policy

Resolved that, as a non-binding advisory vote, the Remuneration Policy, as tabled, be and is hereby approved.
As this is not a matter that is required to be resolved or approved by shareholders, no minimum voting
threshold is required. Nevertheless, for record purposes, the minimum percentage of voting rights that is
required for this resolution to be adopted as a non-binding advisory vote is 50% (fifty percent) of the voting
rights plus 1 (one) vote to be cast on the resolution.

13. SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

The Remuneration Policy, which forms part of the Remuneration Report, as set out on pages 52 to 57 of the
annual report, for the financial year ended 28 February 2017, will be tabled at the Annual General Meeting.

Non-executive directors’ fees for the financial year ending 28 February 2018 and quarter ending 31 May 2018

28 February 2018
Chairperson

R2 670 000

Non-executive director

R247 776

Chairperson of the Audit Committee

R260 592

Member of the Audit Committee

R167 240

Chairperson of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

R125 430

Member of the Remuneration and Nomination Committee

R67 284
R60 876

Chairperson of Special Committees

R6 500 per hour

Member of Special Committees

R6 000 per hour
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Resolved that the fees, to be paid to the non-executive directors for their services as directors of the Company,
for the year ending 28 February 2018 and the quarter ending 31 May 2018 (being a quarter of the fees payable
for the year ending 28 February 2018) be approved as follows:
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NOTICE OF ANNUAL GENERAL MEETING CONTINUED
The reason for this special resolution is to obtain shareholder approval for the remuneration of each of the nonexecutive directors of the Company for the financial year ending 28 February 2018 and for the quarter ending 31 May
2018 in accordance with section 66(9) of the Companies Act, 2008. The passing of this special resolution will have
the effect of approving the remuneration of each of the non-executive directors of the Company for the financial year
ending 28 February 2018 and quarter ending 31 May 2018. The fees payable for the quarter ending 31 May 2018 will
be based on a quarter of the fees as approved above. Shareholders will be requested to approve any adjustment to
the fees payable for the quarter ending 31 May 2018 at the 2018 Annual General Meeting.

14. SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2
Loans or other financial assistance

Resolved that the Board of directors may, subject to the Companies Act, 2008 (“the Act”) and the Memorandum
of Incorporation, authorise the Company to provide direct or indirect financial assistance:
•

by way of a loan, guarantee, the provision of security or otherwise to any person for the purpose of, or in
connection with, the subscription of any option, or any securities, issued or to be issued by the Company or a
related or inter-related company, or for the purpose of any securities of the Company or a related or interrelated company, as contemplated in section 44 of the Act, at any time during a period commencing on the
date of passing of this special resolution and ending at the expiry of two years from the date of adoption of
this special resolution number 2; and/or

•

to a director of the Company or of a related or inter-related company, or to a related or inter-related company
or corporation, or to a member of a related or inter-related company, or to a person related to any such
company, corporation, director, prescribed officer or member, as contemplated in section 45 of the Act, at
any time during a period commencing on the date of passing of this special resolution and ending at the
expiry of two years from the date of the adoption of this special resolution number 2.

The reason for special resolution number 2 is to approve generally the provision of financial assistance to the
parties stated in the said special resolution number 2. Any financial assistance given will be subject to the Company
complying with the Solvency and Liquidity Test as more fully set out in section 4 of the Companies Act, 2008.

15. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 13
General authority over unissued shares

Resolved that all the authorised unissued ordinary shares in the Company be and are hereby placed under
the control of the directors until the date of the next Annual General Meeting, subject to the provisions of the
JSE Listings Requirements and the condition that no issue of these shares will be made if it could have the effect
of changing control of the Company.
No issue of these shares is contemplated at the present time and no issue will be made that could effectively
change the control of the Company without the prior approval of shareholders in a general meeting.

16. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 14
General authority to issue shares for cash

Resolved that the directors of the Company be and are hereby authorised, by way of a general authority, to
issue shares for cash (as contemplated in terms of the JSE Listings Requirements) for up to 10% of the ordinary
shares in issue at the date of the notice of the Annual General Meeting, net of treasury shares, i.e. 86 008 448 of
the ordinary issued shares in the capital of the Company as and when they in their discretion deem fit, subject to
the Companies Act, No. 71 of 2008, as amended, the Memorandum of Incorporation of the Company and the
JSE Listings Requirements as presently constituted and which may be amended from time-to-time.
The reason for the above ordinary resolution number 14 is to give the directors authority to issue up to 10% of the
unissued shares for cash to enable the Company to pursue suitable business opportunities as and when they arise.
Additional requirements imposed by the JSE Listings Requirements
It is recorded that the Company may only make an issue of shares (as defined in the JSE Listings Requirements)
for cash under the above general authority if the following JSE Listings Requirements are met:
(a)

the shares, which are the subject of the issue for cash, must be of a class already in issue, or where this is not
the case, must be limited to such equity securities or rights that are convertible into a class already in issue;

(b) the general authority shall only be valid until the Company’s next Annual General Meeting or for 15 (fifteen)
months from the date of passing of this ordinary resolution, whichever period is shorter;
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(c)

(d) that issues in the aggregate in any 1 (one) financial year may not exceed 10% (ten percent) of the number of
the shares of the Company in issue of that class of shares before such issue, taking into account the dilution
effect of convertible equity securities and options in accordance with the JSE Listings Requirements;
in determining the price at which an issue of shares may be made in terms of this general authority, the
maximum discount permitted will be 10% (ten percent) of the weighted average traded price on the JSE of
those shares measured over the 30 (thirty) business days prior to the date that the price of the issue is agreed
to between the Company and the party/ies subscribing for the shares; and

(f)

any issue will only be made to “public shareholders” as defined by the JSE Listings Requirements and not to
related parties.

17. ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 15

Directors’ or Company Secretary’s authority to implement special and ordinary resolutions
Resolved that any director of the Company or the Company Secretary be and is hereby authorised to do all
such things and sign all such documents as may be necessary for or incidental to the implementation of the
resolutions passed at this meeting.

18. SOCIAL AND ETHICS COMMITTEE

Voting and Proxies
All ordinary resolutions (except for Ordinary resolution number 14) will, in terms of the Companies Act, 2008,
require the support of more than 50% of the voting rights of shareholders exercised thereon to be approved.
A general issue of shares for cash must be approved by ordinary resolution with a 75% majority of shareholders
voting in favour thereof. Accordingly ordinary resolution number 14 will require the support of more than 75% of
the voting rights of shareholders exercised thereon to be approved.

General Instructions and information

The annual report to which this notice of the Annual General Meeting is attached, provides details of:
•

the directors of the Company on pages 20 to 21;

•

the director’s shareholding in the Company on page 57; and

•
•

the major shareholders of the Company on page 133;

the share capital of the Company in note 18 on page 103.

Entitlement to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting in person or by proxy

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

All the Special resolutions will, in terms of the Companies Act, 2008, require the support of at least 75% of the
total voting rights exercised thereon to be approved.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

A report on the Social and Ethics Committee, in terms of Regulation 43 of the Companies Act, 2008, has been
included in the annual report (page 58). The report sets out the matters as required in terms of the Social and
Ethics Committee’s terms of reference. Shareholders will not be asked to vote on any matters contained in the
Social and Ethics Committee’s terms of reference but may raise any questions they may have regarding the said
terms of reference.

2017 PERFORMANCE

(e)

LEADERSHIP

a SENS announcement will be published giving full details, including the number of shares issued, the average
discount to the weighted average traded price of the shares over the 30 (thirty) days prior to the date that the
price of the issue was agreed in writing between the Company and party/ies subscribing for such shares at
the time of any issue representing, on a cumulative basis within 1 (one) financial year, 5% (five percent) of the
number of shares in issue prior to that issue;

All shareholders are encouraged to attend, speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting.

•
•

you may attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting; or, alternatively,

you may appoint an individual as a proxy, (who need not also be a shareholder of the Company) to attend,
participate in and speak and vote in your place at the Annual General Meeting, by completing the attached
form of proxy and returning it to the registered office of the Company or to the transfer secretaries,
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, the details of which are set out on page 142 of the
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If you hold certificated shares (i.e. have not dematerialised your shares in the Company) or are registered as
an own name dematerialised shareholder (i.e. have specifically instructed your Central Securities Depository
Participant (“CSDP”) to hold your shares in your own name in the Company’s sub-register), as at Friday, 21 July
2017, then:
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annual report. Please note that your proxy may delegate his/her authority to act on your behalf to another
person, subject to the restrictions set out in the attached form of proxy. Please also note that the attached
form of proxy must be delivered to the registered office of the Company or to the transfer secretaries,
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited as aforesaid, before your proxy may exercise any of your
rights as a shareholder at the Annual General Meeting.
Any shareholder of the Company that is a company may authorise any person to act as its representative at the
Annual General Meeting. Section 63(1) of the 2008 Companies Act, requires that persons wishing to participate
in the Annual General Meeting (including the aforementioned representative) provide satisfactory identification
before they may so participate.
Please note that if you are the owner of dematerialised shares (i.e. have replaced the paper share certificates
representing the shares with electronic records of ownership under the JSE’s electronic settlement system,
Share Transactions Totally Electronic (“STRATE”) held through a CSDP or broker (or their nominee) and are not
registered as an “own name dematerialised shareholder”) then you are not a registered shareholder of the
Company, but your CSDP or broker (or their nominee) would be.
Accordingly, in these circumstances, subject to the mandate between yourself and your CSDP or broker as the
case may be:
•
•

if you wish to attend the Annual General Meeting you must contact your CSDP or broker, as the case may be,
and obtain the relevant letter of representation from it; or alternatively;
if you are unable to attend the Annual General Meeting but wish to be represented at the meeting, you must
contact your CSDP or broker, as the case may be, and furnish it with your voting instructions in respect of the
Annual General Meeting and/or request your CSDP to appoint a proxy.

You must not complete the attached form of proxy. The instructions must be provided in accordance with the
mandate between yourself and your CSDP or broker, as the case may be, within the time period required by your
CSDP or broker, as the case may be.
CSDPs, brokers or their nominees, as the case may be, recorded in the Company’s sub-register as holders of
dematerialised shares held on behalf of an investor/beneficial owner in terms of STRATE should, when authorised
in terms of their mandate or instructed to do so by the owner on behalf of whom they hold dematerialised shares in
the Company, vote by either appointing a duly authorised representative to attend and vote at the Annual General
Meeting or by completing the attached form of proxy in accordance with the instructions thereon and returning it
to the registered office of the Company or to the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services Proprietary
Limited, the details of which are set out on page 142 of the annual report.
By order of the Board

W T Green
Company Secretary
Johannesburg
23 June 2017
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FORM OF PROXY

This form of proxy is only for use by certificated, own name dematerialised shareholders and CSDPs or brokers (or
their nominees) registered in the Company’s sub-register as the holder of dematerialised ordinary shares.

LEADERSHIP

Form of proxy for use at the Annual General Meeting of Dis-Chem Pharmacies Limited (“the Company”) to be held
at Investec, 100 Grayston Drive, Sandton, Johannesburg, at 10:00 on Friday, 28 July 2017. Shareholders listed in the
shareholder register as at Friday, 21 July 2017 will be eligible to vote at the Annual General Meeting.
This form of proxy is not to be used by beneficial owners of shares who have dematerialised their shares
(“dematerialised shares”) through a Central Securities Depository Participant (“CSDP”) or broker, as the case may
be, unless you are recorded on the sub-register as an own name dematerialised shareholder. Generally, you will not
be an own name dematerialised shareholder unless you have specifically requested your CSDP to record you as the
holder of the shares in your own name in the Company’s sub-register.

Each shareholder entitled to attend and vote at the Annual General Meeting is entitled to appoint a proxy (who
need not also be a shareholder of the Company) to attend, participate in and speak and vote in place of that
shareholder at the Annual General Meeting, and at any adjournment thereafter.
•
•
•

the appointment of your proxy may be suspended at any time to the extent that you choose to act directly and in
person in the exercise of your rights as a shareholder at the Annual General Meeting;
the appointment of the proxy is revocable; and
you may revoke the proxy appointment by:

(i) cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and
(ii) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy, and to the Company.

Note that voting will be performed by way of a poll so each shareholder present or represented by way of proxy will
be entitled to vote.
I/We______________________________________________________________________________________________________
Address: __________________________________________________________________________________________________
Contact telephone number: ________________________________________________________________________________
being the holder/s of __________________________________________ordinary shares in the Company, hereby appoint:

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

Please note that any shareholder of the Company that is a company may authorise any person to act as its
representative at the Annual General Meeting. Please also note that section 63(1) of the Companies Act, 2008
requires that persons wishing to participate in the Annual General Meeting (including the aforementioned
representative) provide satisfactory identification before they may so participate.

2017 PERFORMANCE

Please note the following:

1. ________________________________________________________________________________________or failing him/her,
3. the Chairman of the Annual General Meeting,
as my/our proxy to attend, participate in and speak and vote at the meeting in my/our place and on my/our behalf
at the Annual General Meeting which will be held for the purpose of considering and, if deemed fit, passing the
resolutions to be proposed thereat and at any adjournment thereof and to vote for or against such resolutions or
to abstain from voting in respect of the shares in the issued capital of the Company registered in my/our name/s, in
accordance with the instructions set out below.
My/our proxy may delegate to another person his/her authority to act on my behalf at the Annual General Meeting,
provided that my/our proxy:
•

•

may only delegate his/her authority to act on my behalf at the Annual General Meeting to a director of the
Company; and

must provide written notification to the transfer secretaries of the Company, namely Computershare Investor
Services Proprietary Limited, of the delegation by my/our proxy of his/her authority to act on my behalf at the
Annual General Meeting; and

must provide to his/her delegee a copy of his/her authority to delegate his/her authority to act on my behalf at
the Annual General Meeting.
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AUDITED ANNUAL
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2. ________________________________________________________________________________________or failing him/her,
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Number of votes (one vote per ordinary share)

For

Against

Abstain

ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 1:
Approval of annual financial statements.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 2:
Appointment of the auditors and designated auditor.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 3:
Re-election of Mr M J Bowman as a director.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 4:
Re-election of Ms A Coovadia as a director.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 5:
Re-election of Mr M S I Gani as a director.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 6:
Re-election of Mr J S Mthimyune as a director.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 7:
Re-election of Mr L M Nestadt as a director.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 8:
Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member Mr M J Bowman.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 9:
Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member Ms A Coovadia.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 10:
Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member Mr M S I Gani.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 11:
Appointment of Audit and Risk Committee member Mr J S Mthimyune.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 12:
Approval of Remuneration Policy and Report.
SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 1:
Approval of non-executive directors’ remuneration.
SPECIAL RESOLUTION NUMBER 2:
Approval loans or other financial assistance.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 13:
General authority over unissued shares.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 14:
General authority to issue shares for cash.
ORDINARY RESOLUTION NUMBER 15:
Authority any director or Company Secretary to sign documents.
Insert an “X” in the relevant spaces above according to how you wish your votes to be cast. If you wish to cast your
votes in respect of a lesser number of shares than you own in the Company, insert the number of shares held in
respect of which you desire to vote.
Signed at___________________________________________ on_________________________________________________2017
Signature:_________________________________________________________________________________________________
(Authority of signatory to be attached if applicable – see note 8)
Telephone number: ________________________________________________________________________________________
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NOTES TO THE FORM OF PROXY
Summary of shareholders’ rights in respect of proxy appointments as contained in section 58 of the Companies Act, 2008
Please note that in terms of section 58 of the Companies Act, 2008:
this proxy form must be dated and signed by the shareholder appointing the proxy;

•

your proxy may delegate his/her authority to act on your behalf to another person, subject to any restriction set out in this
proxy form;

•

•
•

•

•

•

the appointment of your proxy or proxies will be suspended at any time to the extent that you choose to act directly and in
person in the exercise of any of your rights as a shareholder at the Annual General Meeting;
the appointment of your proxy is revocable unless you expressly state otherwise in this proxy form;
as the appointment of your proxy is revocable, you may revoke the proxy appointment by:
(i) cancelling it in writing, or making a later inconsistent appointment of a proxy; and

(ii) delivering a copy of the revocation instrument to the proxy and to the Company. Please note the revocation of a proxy
appointment constitutes a complete and final cancellation of your proxy’s authority to act on your behalf as of the later of
(i) the date stated in the revocation instrument, if any, or the date on which the revocation instrument was delivered to the
Company and the proxy as aforesaid.

if this proxy form has been delivered to the Company, as long as that appointment remains in effect, any notice that is
required by the Companies Act, 2008 or the Company’s Memorandum of Incorporation to be delivered by the Company to
you will be delivered by the Company to you or your proxy or proxies, if you have directed the Company to do so, in writing
and paid any reasonable fee charged by the Company for doing so;

your proxy is entitled to exercise, or abstain from exercising, any voting right of yours at the Annual General Meeting, but only
as directed by you on this proxy form;
the appointment of your proxy remains valid only until the end of the Annual General Meeting or any adjournment or
postponement thereof or for a period of 6 (six) months, whichever is shortest, unless it is revoked by you before then on the
basis set out above.

1. Only shareholders listed in the shareholder register as at Friday, 21 July 2017 will be eligible to vote at the Annual General
Meeting to which this proxy forms part.

2. The person whose name stands first on the proxy form and who is present at the Annual General Meeting will be entitled to act
as a proxy to the exclusion of those whose names which follow thereafter.
3. If no proxy is inserted in the spaces provided, then the Chairperson shall be deemed to be appointed as the proxy to vote or
abstain as the Chairperson deems fit.

5. A shareholder or his/her proxy is not obliged to use all the votes exercisable by the shareholder or by his/her proxy, but the
total of the votes cast and in respect of which abstention is recorded may not exceed the total of the votes exercisable by the
shareholder or by his/her proxy.

6. Proxy forms must be lodged at the Head Office of the Company, 23 Stag Road, Midrand or posted to the Company Secretary at
PO Box 260362, Excom, 2023, or lodged with or posted to the transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services Proprietary
Limited, Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank, Johannesburg, 2196 (PO Box 61051, Marshalltown, 2107, South
Africa) so as to be received by no later that 10:00 on Wednesday, 26 July 2017.

8. Any alteration or correction made to this proxy form must be initialled by the signatory/ies, but any such alteration or correction
will only be validly made if it is accepted by the Chairperson.
9. A minor must be assisted by his/her parent or guardian unless the relevant documents establishing his/her legal capacity are
produced or have been registered by the Company Secretary.
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7. Documentary evidence establishing the authority of a person signing this proxy form in a representative capacity must be
attached to this proxy form unless previously recorded by the Company Secretary or waived by the Chairperson of the
Annual General Meeting if he is reasonably satisfied that the right of the representative to participate and vote has been
reasonably verified. CSDPs or brokers registered in the Company’s sub-register voting on instructions from beneficial owners
of shares registered in the Company’s sub-register, are requested that they identify the beneficial owner in the sub-register
on whose behalf they are voting and return a copy of the instruction from such owner to the Company Secretary or to the
transfer secretaries, Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited, Rosebank Towers, 15 Biermann Avenue, Rosebank,
Johannesburg, 2196 (PO Box 62053, Marshalltown, 2107), together with this form of proxy.

AUDITED ANNUAL
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

4. A shareholder’s instructions to the proxy must be indicated by the insertion of the relevant number of votes exercisable by that
shareholder in the appropriate box provided. If there is no clear indication as to the voting instructions to the proxy, the proxy
form will be deemed to authorise the proxy to vote or to abstain from voting at the Annual General Meeting as he/she deems fit
in respect of all the shareholder’s votes exercisable thereat.

CORPORATE
GOVERNANCE REVIEW

•

this proxy form must be delivered to the Company, or to the transfer secretaries of the Company, namely Computershare
Investor Services Proprietary Limited, before your proxy exercises any of your rights as a shareholder at the Annual General
Meeting;

2017 PERFORMANCE

•

you may appoint an individual as a proxy, including an individual who is not a shareholder of the Company, to participate in
and speak and vote at the Annual General Meeting on your behalf;

LEADERSHIP

•
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SHAREHOLDERS’ DIARY
Annual General Meeting
28 July 2017

Preliminary results announcements:

Interim results to August 2017: on or about 20 October 2017
Final results to February 2017: early May 2017

Publication of 2018 Integrated Annual Report:
June 2018

Ordinary share dividend 2017 final dividend

Last day to trade cum dividend on the JSE: Tuesday, 30 May 2017
Payment date: Monday, 5 June 2017

2018 interim dividend

Last day to trade cum dividend on the JSE: Early November 2017

2018 final dividend

Last day to trade cum dividend on the JSE: May 2017
Payment date: June 2018

CORPORATE INFORMATION
Company registration number:
2005/009766/06
JSE code: DCP
ISIN: ZAE000227831

Registered office
23 Stag Road
Midrand
1685

Company Secretary: WT Green
Registered auditors: Ernst & Young Inc.
Sponsor: The Standard Bank of South Africa Limited
Transfer secretaries:
Computershare Investor Services Proprietary Limited
Rosebank Towers
15 Biermann Avenue
Rosebank
Johannesburg 2196
Investor relations
Investorrelations@dischem.co.za
For more information, please visit our website: www.DischemGroup.com
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